
1  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

TO:  Zoning Board of Adjustment  
FROM:  Peter Stith, AICP, Planning Department  
DATE:  April 13, 2022  
RE:    Zoning Board of Adjustment April 19, 2022                                                                
          

  

 

OLD BUSINESS   
     1. 0 Sims Avenue (11 Fletcher) – Request for Extension  

     2. 686 Maplewood Avenue – Request for Extension 

     3 & 4. Congress Street - Appeal of Administrative Decision/Variance – REQUEST 

TO POSTPONE 

      
      

  

 NEW BUSINESS   
1.  32 Monteith Street 

2.  212 Woodbury Avenue  

     3.  240 Hillside Drive 

     4.  138 Gates Street  

     5.  328 Aldrich Road  

     6.  635 Sagamore Avenue 

     7.  629 Broad Street 

 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

 



2  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

OLD BUSINESS  

1.  

Petition of Lancen & Sophie LaChance , Owners, for property located on Sims Avenue wherein 

relief is needed from the Zoning Ordinance to construct a single family dwelling on a nonconforming 

lot which requires: 1) A Variance from Section 10.521 to allow the following: a) a lot area and lot area 

per dwelling unit of 12,850 square feet where 15,000 square feet is required for each; and b) 57 feet 

of continuous street frontage where 100 feet is required.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 

233 Lot 76-1 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District.     

The above variances were granted on April 21, 2020 with the following stipulation: 

1)  An engineered drainage and water runoff evaluation must be conducted for any 
proposed development of the lot and this evaluation must be approved by the 
Department of Public Works and the Inspection Department before granting a 
Building Permit.   
 

A drainage plan was provided and approved by DPW based on the original house design.  

Since then, the lot has changed ownership and the new owners have modified the house 

design which will require an updated drainage plan.  It is the understanding of staff that a 

revised drainage evaluation is being worked on for the revised design of the house from what 

was previously before the Board.  Below is a comparison of what was originally approved vs 

what is proposed.  If the Board grants the extension, staff would recommend the Board 

acknowledging the change and affirming the original stipulation requiring the drainage 

evaluation prior to the issuance of a building permit.     

 



4  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

Original:

  
Proposed: 

 
 



5  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

2.  

Request of the Islamic Society of the Seacoast Area, Owner, for property located at 686 

Maplewood Avenue wherein relief is needed from the Zoning Ordinance to construct a 4,000± s.f. 

building to house a religious place of assembly which includes the following: 1) A Special Exception 

under Section 10.440, Use #3.11  to allow a religious place of assembly in a district where the use is 

only allowed by Special Exception; and 2) A Variance from Section 10.521 to allow 47’±  of 

continuous street frontage where 100’ is required.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 220 Lot 

90 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District.    

 

The above requests were granted on April 21, 2020.  Original approval for the same requests 

were granted in 2017 and a subsequent 1 year extension in 2019 that expired on February 21, 

2020.  The applicant came back before the Board in April of 2020 and is now seeking a one-

year extension, which if granted, would expire on April 21, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





7  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

3.  

          REQUEST TO POSTPONE 
 

Request  of Francis X. Bruton, (Attorney for Appellants), for Appeal of Administrative 
decision that the merged lot at 1 Congress is not subject to the height allowances (2 
stories, 4th short, 45 feet in height) pursuant to Map 10.5A21B and as permitted pursuant 
to Section 10.5A21.22(a) & (c) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Said property is shown on 
Assessor Map 117 Lot 14 and lies within Character District 4 (CD-4), Character District 5 
(CD-5) and the Historic District.   

 

The appellants are appealing an administrative decision made by the Planning Director with 

regard to the proposed development on the recently merged parcels at 1 Congress Street.  

Below is the email from the Planning Director to the applicant stating that Section 

10.5A21.22(c) does apply to this portion of the property and a variance is needed to allow the 

additional story and height.  Additionally, a sketch showing how the height would be applied to 

this portion, showing the 50 foot setback from both High Street and Haven Court.  The original 

request for the variance is the second item on the agenda and will be heard if the appeal is 

denied.  If the appeal is granted, the applicant should withdraw the variance request, as it will 

not be needed if the decision of the Planning Director is overturned.  

 



8  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

 



9  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

 

 

 



10  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

4. REQUEST TO POSTPONE 

Request of One Market Square LLC (Owner), for the property located at 1 Congress 
Street whereas relief is needed to construct a 3 story addition with a short 4th story and 
building height of 44'-11" which requires the following: 1) A Variance from Section 
10.5A.43.31 and Map 10.5A21B to allow a 3-story addition with a short 4th and building 
height of 44'-11" where 2 stories (short 3rd) and 40' is the maximum allowed. Said 
property is shown on Assessor Map 117 Lot 14 and lies within Character District 4 (CD-4), 
Character District 5 (CD-5) and the Historic District. 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 

TABLE IS FOR CD4 
ZONING 

Existing 
 

Proposed 
 

Permitted / Required  

Land Use:  Mixed 
use/parking lot 

4 story 
addition       

Primarily mixed uses  

Primary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

NA 1’6” 15  
max. 

Right Yard (ft.): NA 15 NR  

Left Yard (ft.): NA 0 NR 

Rear Yard (ft.): NA 10 Greater of 5’ from rear 
lot line or 10’ from CL 
of alley 

min. 

Height (ft.): NA  3 stories 
(short 4th), 
44’-11” 

2-3 stories, 40’ max. 

Building Coverage (%): 0 67 90 max. 

Open Space Coverage 
(%): 

 32 10 min. 

Parking: 18 19 4 space credit for 
Residential/ 0 required 
for commercial use in 
DOD 

 

Estimated Age of 
Structure: 

1800 Variance request(s) shown in red. 
 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 

Planning Board/TAC – Site Review and Conditional Use Permit for Parking 
Historic District Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Neighborhood Context  

  
 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



12  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
March 29, 2012 – Relief from Zoning Ordinance including: 

1. Variance from Section 10.1115.20 and the requirements of 10.1115.30 to allow no 
off-street parking spaces to be provided where 1 space per 100 s.f. Gross Floor Area 
is required. 

2. Special Exception under Section 10.1113.112 to allow 6 off-street parking spaces to 
be provided on another lot in the same ownership and within 300’ of the property line 
of the lot in question.   

The Board voted to grant the Variance as presented. With the granting of the Variance 
the Board determined the Special Exception would not be required. 

Planning Department Comments 

The applicant is seeking to merge the two properties and construct a 3-story addition with a 
short 4th, which requires a variance to do so.  The two parcels are zoned differently, one 
CD4 and one CD5 and both have separate height requirements as shown on the map 
below.  All other dimensional requirements are met with the proposal.  The project will need 
HDC approval as well as site plan approval through TAC and Planning Board.   

     
    
 
 
 

CD4 Zone/2-3 

Story 40’ height 

CD5 Zone/2-3 (short 4th) 

Story 45’ height 



13  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Review Criteria 
This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 
 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

 (a)The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the 

general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the 
property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 

Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it. 

 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





15  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

1. 

The request of Charles Dudas (Owner), for property located at 32 Monteith Street 
whereas relief is needed for demolition of existing shed and construction of a 2-story 
attached garage with accessory dwelling unit which requires the following: 1) Variance from 
Section 10.521 to allow an 8' right side yard where 10' is required.  Said property is shown 
on Assessor Map 143 Lot 22 and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) district.   

Existing & Proposed Conditions 

 Existing 
 

Proposed 
 

Permitted / Required  

Land Use:  Single family Attached 
garage w/ 
ADU 

Primarily residential 
uses 

 

Lot area (sq. ft.):  30,644 30,644 7,500 min. 

Lot Area per Dwelling 
Unit (sq. ft.): 

30,644 30,644 7,500 min. 

Lot depth (ft): 140 140 70  min. 

Street Frontage (ft.):  312 312 100  min. 

Primary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

6 13 15 (6 per front yard 
averaging) 

 min. 

Right Yard (ft.): 32  8 10  min. 

Left Yard (ft.): 170 170 10 min. 

Rear Yard (ft.):  129 20 min. 

Height (ft.): <35 <35 35 max. 

Building Coverage (%): 5 7 25 max. 

Open Space Coverage 
(%): 

>30 >30 30 min. 

Parking: 4 4 3  

Estimated Age of 
Structure: 

1900 Variance request(s) shown in red. 
 

 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 

Planning Board – CUP for Accessory Dwelling Unit 
Wetland Conditional Use Permit – Granted June 18, 2020; extension granted June 23, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



16  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

Neighborhood Context     
 

 

 

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



17  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 

No prior BOA history found. 

Planning Department Comments 

The applicant is seeking relief to add a new attached garage with accessory dwelling unit 
above.  The garage will encroach into the right side yard 2’, thus the requested variance.   
The property is over 30,000 square feet in size where only 7,500 is required, however the 
majority of it is encumbered by the 100 wetland buffer, including most of the house.   
 
 

Review Criteria 

This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 
 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

 (a)The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the 

general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the 
property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 

Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it. 

 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 
 

 

 

  

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



18  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



19  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

2. 

Request of Frederick J. Baily III (Owner), for the property located at 212 Woodbury 

Avenue whereas relief is needed for a lot line adjustment on four lots to create 3 conforming 

lots with the existing dwelling and demolition of one existing dwelling and construction of 2 

duplexes and 4 single family dwellings on one lot which requires the following: 1) Variance 

from Section 10.513 to allow more than one free-standing principal structure on a lot   Said 

property is shown on Assessor Map 175 Lot 1 and lies within the General Residence A 

(GRA) District. 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 

 Existing 
 

Proposed 
 

Permitted / 
Required 

 

Land Use: TABLE IS 
FOR PROPOSE LOT 
1 

Single 
family 

Construct 2, two-family/   
4 single family dwellings 
on one lot 

Primarily 
residential 

 

Lot area (sq. ft.):  26,012 60,025 7,500 min. 

Lot Area per Dwelling 
Unit (sq. ft.): 

26,012 7,503 7,500 min. 

Lot depth (ft): >200 >200 70  min. 

Street Frontage (ft.):  >400 382 100  min. 

Primary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

36 15 15  min. 

Secondary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

16 32 15  min. 

Side Yard (ft.): 20 10 10 

Rear Yard (ft.): >120 20 20 min. 

Height (ft.): <35 <35 35 max. 

Building Coverage (%): <25 20.5 25 max. 

Open Space Coverage 
(%): 

>30 61 30 min. 

Parking: 4 16 13  

Estimated Age of 
Structure: 

1870  Variance request(s) shown in red. 
 

 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 

TAC/Planning Board – Lot line adjustment/Site Plan Review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

 

Neighborhood Context     

 
 

 

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



21  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 

May 16, 2000 – The applicant withdrew an application for the following are request:  

1) a Variance from Article III, Section 10-301(A)(2) to allow an apartment in the existing 
dwelling to be relocated to the detached garage, and 2) a Variance from Article II, Section 
10-206(4) to allow the detached garage to be expanded by adding a second floor and 
constructing a 12’ x 20’ deck.   

Planning Department Comments 

The applicant is proposing to re-subdivide three lots and create 2 conforming lots on 
properties located at 214 and 216 Woodbury Ave.  The existing lot at 212 Woodbury will be 
reconfigured to include the rear portions of 214 and 216 to create a 60,025 square foot lot, 
where the new development will be located.  The proposal includes two duplexes and 4 
single family dwellings, which will conform to dimensional regulations and lot are per 
dwelling unit, however only one principal structure is permitted on a lot, therefore the need 
for a variance to allow the 6 freestanding structures.  The project will need to go through 
TAC and Planning Board for site plan review and re-subdivision.    
 

Review Criteria 

This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 
 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

 (a)The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the 

general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the 
property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 

Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it. 

 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 

 





23  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

3. 

Request of Amanda Blanchette (Owner), for the property located at 240 Hillside Drive 

whereas relief is needed to extend the existing deck which requires the following: 1) 

Variance from Section 10.521 to allow 22% building coverage where 20% is the maximum 

allowed.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 231 Lot 43 and lies within the Single 

Residence B (SRB) District.  

Existing & Proposed Conditions 

 Existing 
 

Proposed 
 

Permitted / Required  

Land Use:  Single family  Extend deck Primarily residential  

Lot area (sq. ft.):  2,625 2,625 15,000 min. 

Lot Area per Dwelling 
Unit (sq. ft.): 

2,625 2,625 15,000 min. 

Lot depth (ft): 120 120 100  min. 

Street Frontage (ft.):  257 257 100  min. 

Primary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

33 33 30  min. 

Secondary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

10 10 30  min. 

Left Yard (ft.): 11 11 10 

Rear Yard (ft.): 30 30 30 min. 

Height (ft.): <35 <35 35 max. 

Building Coverage (%):  22 20 max. 

Open Space Coverage 
(%): 

>40 >40 40 min. 

Parking: 4 4 2  

Estimated Age of 
Structure: 

1972 Variance request(s) shown in red. 
 

 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 

None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

Neighborhood Context     
 

 

 

Zoning Map 

Aerial Map 



25  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 

June 30, 1987 – The Board denied variances to to allow construction of a 24’ x45’ pool 
enclosure over existing pool with the following a) 15’ rear yard where a 30’ rear yard is 
required and b) building lot coverage of 24.97% where a maximum building lot coverage of 
20% is allowed. 

Planning Department Comments 

The applicant is seeking to add an extension to an existing deck.  The property had an in 
ground pool which has since been removed and the applicant is looking to extend the deck 
over part of the area where the pool was previously located.  The additional decking will 
increase the building coverage slightly over the 20% maximum allowed to 22%.     
 
       

Review Criteria 

This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 
 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

 (a)The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the 

general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the 
property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 

Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it. 

   

       10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 





27  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

   4. 

Request of  Sandra L. Smith-Weise (Owner), for property located at 138 Gates Street 
whereas relief is needed for construction of a one-story rear mudroom and 1/2 bath addition 
which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.521 to allow 36% building 
coverage where 30% is the maximum allowed.  2)  A Variance from Section 10.321 to allow 
a nonconforming building or structure to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without 
conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance.  Said property is shown on assessor Map 
103 Lot 54 and lies within the General Residence B (GRB) and Historic Districts. 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 

 Existing 
 

Proposed 
 

Permitted / Required  

Land Use:  Single family Rear addition Primarily residential  

Lot area (sq. ft.):  2,439 2,439 5,000 min. 

Lot Area per Dwelling 
Unit (sq. ft.): 

2,439 2,439 5,000 min. 

Lot depth (ft): 63 63 60  min. 

Street Frontage (ft.):  38 38 80  min. 

Primary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

0.8 0.8 5  min. 

Right Yard (ft.): 11 12 10  min. 

Left Yard (ft.): 1 1 10 

Rear Yard (ft.): 25 25 25 min. 

Height (ft.): <35 <35 35 max. 

Building Coverage (%): 30 36 30 max. 

Open Space Coverage 
(%): 

>40 >40 25 min. 

Parking: 1 1 2  

Estimated Age of 
Structure: 

1750  Variance request(s) shown in red. 
 

 

 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 

Historic District Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



28  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

Neighborhood Context  
  

 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



29  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
No prior BOA history found. 

Planning Department Comments 

The applicant is seeking to add a small mudroom addition on the rear of the existing 
dwelling.  The addition will result in just under 36% building coverage, where 30% is the 
maximum allowed.  The addition does not encroach into any setbacks and there is almost 
double the amount of open space on the lot than what is required for the district, despite the 
small lot size.     
  

Review Criteria 
This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 
 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

 (a)The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the 

general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the 
property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 

Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it. 

 
 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



30  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

 
 
 
 



31  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

5. 

 Request of Trisha and Kevin Anderson (Owners), for property located at 328 Aldrich 

Road whereas relief is needed to demolish existing garage and construct new 12' x 16' 

shed which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.573.20 to allow a 5' left side 

yard where 10' is required.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 166 Lot 49 and is 

located within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 

 Existing 
 

Proposed 
 

Permitted / 
Required 

 

Land Use:  Single 
family  

Demo shed/construct 
new shed 

Primarily 
residential 

 

Lot area (sq. ft.):  9.147 9,147 15,000 min. 

Lot Area per Dwelling 
Unit (sq. ft.): 

9,147 9,147 15,000 min. 

Lot depth (ft): 100 100 100  min. 

Street Frontage (ft.):  90 90 100  min. 

Primary Front Yard (ft.): 3 (house) 3 (house) 30  min. 

Right Yard (ft.): 60 (shed) 73 (shed) 10  min. 

Left Yard (ft.): 18 (shed) 5 (shed) 10 

Rear Yard (ft.): 29 (shed) 29 (shed) 30 min. 

Height (ft.):  10 35 max. 

Building Coverage (%): 20 20 20 max. 

Open Space Coverage 
(%): 

>40 >40 40 min. 

Parking: 2 2 2  

Estimated Age of 
Structure: 

1910  Variance request(s) shown in red. 
 

 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 

None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



32  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

Neighborhood Context     
 

 
 

 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 

No prior BOA history found. 

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



33  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Planning Department Comments 

The applicant is seeking demolish the existing shed that is in poor condition and construct a 
smaller shed, closer to the left side lot line.  The new location will require a variance, as it is 
proposed to be 5 feet from the side yard where 10 is required.    
 
 

Review Criteria 

This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 
 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

 (a)The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 

AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the 

general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the 
property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 

Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it. 

 
 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





35  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

6. 

Request of 635 Sagamore Development LLC (Owner), for property located at 635 
Sagamore Avenue whereas relief is needed to remove existing commercial structure and 
construct 5 new single-family dwellings which requires the following: 1) A Variance from 
Section 10.513 to allow 5 principal structures on a lot where only 1 is permitted.  2) A 
Variance from Section 10.521 to allow a lot area per dwelling unit of 22,389 square feet 
where 1 acre per dwelling is required.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 222 Lot 19 
and lies within the Single Residence A (SRA) District 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 

 Existing 
 

Proposed 
 

Permitted / Required  

Land Use:  Commercial w/ 
1 apartment 

5 single family 
dwellings 

Primarily residential  

Lot area (sq. ft.):  84,795 84,795 43,560 min. 

Lot Area per Dwelling 
Unit (sq. ft.): 

84,795 16,959 43,560 min. 

Lot depth (ft): 358 358 200  min. 

Street Frontage (ft.):  160 160 150  min. 

Primary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

28 >30 30  min. 

Right Yard (ft.): 60 >20 20  min. 

Left Yard (ft.): 30 21 20 

Rear Yard (ft.): 219 >40 40 min. 

Height (ft.): <35 <35 35 max. 

Building Coverage 
(%): 

4 9.6 10 max. 

Open Space 
Coverage (%): 

>50 78 50 min. 

Parking: 4+ 20 8  

Estimated Age of 
Structure: 

1950  Variance request(s) shown in red. 
 

 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 

TAC/Planning Board – Site Plan Review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



36  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

Neighborhood Context   

 
 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



37  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
No prior BOA history found. 

Planning Department Comments 

The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing structures and construct 5 free standing 
single family dwellings.  The SRA zone requires 1 acre per dwelling unit and only allows 1 
principal structure on a single lot.  With 5 dwellings, the proposed lot area per dwelling will 
be 16,959, where 43,560 is required.  With the exception of the density, all other 
dimensional requirements are in compliance with the proposed layout.  This will require site 
plan review before TAC and Planning Board if the variances are granted.   
   

Review Criteria 
This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 
 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

 (a)The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the 

general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the 
property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 

Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it. 

 
 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



38  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

 
 
 
 
 
 



39  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

7. 

Request of Savannah Mary Fodero and Tyler Jacob Forthofer (Owners), for property 
located at 629 Broad Street whereas relief is needed for upward expansion of existing 
garage which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.521 to allow a 2' front yard 
where 15' is required.  2) A Variance from Section 10.321 to allow a nonconforming building 
or structure to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to the 
requirements of the Ordinance. Said property is shown Assessor Map 221 Lot 13 and lies 
within the General Residence A (GRA) District. 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 

 Existing 
 

Proposed 
 

Permitted / Required  

Land Use:  Single family Upward 
expansion 

Primarily single 
residence 

 

Lot area (sq. ft.):  6,586 6,586 7,500 min. 

Lot area per dwelling 
(sq. ft.): 

6,586 6,586 7,500 min. 

Lot depth (ft): 116 116 70  min. 

Street Frontage (ft.):  190 190 100  min. 

Primary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

12 12 15  min. 

Secondary Front Yard 
(ft.): 

2 2 15  min. 

Left Yard (ft.): 11 11 10 

Rear Yard (ft.): 52 52 20 min. 

Height (ft.): 8 (garage) 12 (garage) 35 max. 

Building Coverage (%): 24 24 25 max. 

Open Space Coverage 
(%): 

>30 >30 30 min. 

Parking: 2 2 2  

Estimated Age of 
Structure: 

1958 Variance request(s) shown in red. 
 

 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 

None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40  

  

                                                                                              April 19, 2022 Meeting   
          

Neighborhood Context  

  
 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



41  

  

                                                                                            April 19, 2022 Meeting 
 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
No prior BOA history found. 

Planning Department Comments 

The applicant is seeking to increase the height of the existing garage, which currently has a 
flat roof.  The proposal will increase the height from 8’ feet to 12’.  The lot is a corner lot, 
having frontage on Broad Street and Jones Avenue and the house is situated at the front of 
the lot with the existing garage having only a 2’ setback on Jones Avenue.  The upward 
expansion increases the nonconformity of the structure, thus the need for the requested 
variance.  
    

Review Criteria 
This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 
 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

 (a)The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the 

general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the 
property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 

Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it. 

 
 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

REGULAR MEETING* 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 

Members of the public also have the option to join the meeting over Zoom  
(See below for more details)* 

 
7:00 P.M.                                                        April 19, 2022 
                                                                 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
      A) Approval of the minutes of the meetings of March 15, 2022. 

 
 

II. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Lancen and Sophie LaChance - 11 Fletcher Street request a 1-year extension to the 
variances granted on April 21, 2020. (LU-20-42) 

B. Maple Masjid - 686 Maplewood Avenue request a 1-year extension to the special 
exception and variances granted on April 21, 2020. (LU-20-37) 

 
 

C. REQUEST TO POSTPONE The request of Francis X. Bruton, (Attorney for 
Appellants), for Appeal of Administrative decision that the merged lot at 1 Congress is 
not subject to the height allowances (2 stories, 4th short, 45 feet in height) pursuant to 
Map 10.5A21B and as permitted pursuant to Section 10.5A21.22(a) & (c) of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 117 Lot 14 and lies within 
Character District 4 (CD-4), Character District 5 (CD-5) and the Historic District. 
REQUEST TO POSTPONE (LU-22-12) 

 
D. REQUEST TO POSTPONE The request of One Market Square LLC (Owner), for 

the property located at 1 Congress Street whereas relief is needed to construct a 3 story 
addition with a short 4th story and building height of 44'-11" which requires the 
following: 1) A Variance from Section 10.5A.43.31 and Map 10.5A21B to allow a 3-
story addition with a short 4th and building height of 44'-11" where 2 stories (short 3rd) 

PLEASE NOTE:  ITEMS H. THROUGH O. WILL BE HEARD AT 
THE APRIL 26, 2022 BOARD OF ADJUSMENT MEETING. 

 



Agenda, Board of Adjustment Meeting, April 19, 2022                                                Page 2 
 

and 40' is the maximum allowed. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 117 Lot 14 
and lies within Character District 4 (CD-4), Character District 5 (CD-5) and the Historic 
District. REQUEST TO POSTPONE (LU-22-12)  

 
 

III.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. The request of Charles Dudas (Owner), for property located at 32 Monteith Street 
whereas relief is needed for demolition of existing shed and construction of a 2-story 
attached garage with accessory dwelling unit which requires the following: 1) Variance 
from Section 10.521 to allow an 8' right side yard where 10' is required.  Said property is 
shown on Assessor Map 143 Lot 22 and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) 
district. (LU-22-44) 
 

B. The request of Frederick J. Baily III (Owner), for the property located at 212 
Woodbury Avenue whereas relief is needed for a lot line adjustment on four lots to 
create 3 conforming lots with the existing dwelling and demolition of one existing 
dwelling and construction of 2 duplexes and 4 single family dwellings on one lot which 
requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.513 to allow more than one free-
standing principal structure on a lot   Said property is shown on Assessor Map 175 Lot 1 
and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) District. (LU-22-52) 
 

C. The request of Amanda Blanchette (Owner), for the property located at 240 Hillside 
Drive whereas relief is needed to extend the existing deck which requires the following: 
1) Variance from Section 10.521 to allow 22% building coverage where 20% is the 
maximum allowed.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 231 Lot 43 and lies within 
the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-22-1) 
 

D. The request of  Sandra L. Smith-Weise (Owner), for property located at 138 Gates 
Street whereas relief is needed for construction of a one-story rear mudroom and 1/2 bath 
addition which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.521 to allow 36% 
building coverage where 30% is the maximum allowed.  2)  A Variance from Section 
10.321 to allow a nonconforming building or structure to be extended, reconstructed or 
enlarged without conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance.  Said property is 
shown on assessor Map 103 Lot 54 and lies within the General Residence B (GRB) and 
Historic Districts.  (LU-22-55) 
 

E. The request of Trisha and Kevin Anderson (Owners), for property located at 328 
Aldrich Road whereas relief is needed to demolish existing garage and construct new 12' 
x 16' shed which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.573.20 to allow a 5' 
left side yard where 10' is required.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 166 Lot 49 
and is located within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-22-56) 
 

F. The request of 635 Sagamore Development LLC (Owner), for property located at 635 
Sagamore Avenue whereas relief is needed to remove existing commercial structure and 



Agenda, Board of Adjustment Meeting, April 19, 2022                                                Page 3 
 

construct 5 new single-family dwellings which requires the following: 1) A Variance 
from Section 10.513 to allow 5 principal structures on a lot where only 1 is permitted.  2) 
A Variance from Section 10.521 to allow a lot area per dwelling unit of 22,389 square 
feet where 1 acre per dwelling is required.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 222 
Lot 19 and lies within the Single Residence A (SRA) District. (LU-22-57) 
 

G. The request of Savannah Mary Fodero and Tyler Jacob Forthofer (Owners), for 
property located at 629 Broad Street whereas relief is needed for upward expansion of 
existing garage which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.521 to allow a 
2' front yard where 15' is required.  2) A Variance from Section 10.321 to allow a 
nonconforming building or structure to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without 
conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance. Said property is shown Assessor Map 
221 Lot 13 and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) District. (LU-22-53) 
 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WILL BE HEARD ON TUESDAY, APRIL 26, 2022 
 

H. The request of Amanda J. Telford Revocable Trust (Owner), for property located at 
322 Lincoln Avenue whereas relief is needed to amend previously approved demolition 
of existing carriage house and construction of new accessory structure which requires the 
following: 1) Variances from Section 10.521 to allow a) 35% building coverage where 
25% is the maximum allowed; b) a 3'6" side yard where 10' is required; and c) a 13' rear 
yard where 20' is required.  2) A Variance from Section 10.321 to allow a nonconforming 
building or structure to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to the 
requirements of the Ordinance.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 130 Lot 26 and 
lies within the General Residence A (GRA) District. (LU-22-59) 
 

I. The request of William S. and Karen C. Bartlett (Owners), for property located at 607 
Colonial Drive whereas relief is needed to construct a 24' x 16' rear addition and 10'x 12' 
deck which requires the following: 1) A Variance from Section 10.521 to allow 25% 
building coverage where 20% is the maximum allowed.  Said property is shown on 
Assessor Map 260 Lot 26 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-22-
60) 
 

J. The request of HCA Health Services of NH, Inc. dba Portsmouth Regional Hospital 
(Owner), for property located at 333 Borthwick Avenue whereas relief is needed for 
building addition on the existing hospital which requires the following: 1) A Variance 
from Section 10.531 to allow a 40' front yard where 50' is required.  Said property is 
shown on Assessor Map 240 Lot 2 and lies within the Office Research (OR) District. 
(LU-22-35) 
 

K. The request of Mark Griffin (Owner), for property located at 728 State Street, Unit 1 
whereas relief is needed to demolish existing garage and construct a new garage which 
requires the following: 1) Variances from Section 10.521 to allow 61.5% building 
coverage where 35% is the maximum allowed.  2) Variances from Section 10.573.20 to 



Agenda, Board of Adjustment Meeting, April 19, 2022                                                Page 4 
 

allow a) a 1.5' side yard where 10' is required; b) a 0' front yard (Chatham St.) where 5' is 
required; and c) a 0.5' front yard (Winter St.) where 5' is required.  3) A Variance from 
Section 10.571 to allow an accessory structure in the front yard and closer to the street 
than the principal structure.  4) A Variance from Section 10.321 to allow a 
nonconforming structure to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to 
the requirements of the Ordinance.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 137 Lot 10-
1 and lies within the General Residence C (GRC) District. (LU-22-63) 
 

L. WITHDRAWN The request of Portsmouth Lumber and Hardware LLC (Owner), 
for property located at 105 Bartlett Street whereas relief is needed to remove two 
existing accessory structures and replace with one new shed which requires the 
following: 1) A Variance from Section 10.516.20 to allow a 6' setback where 15' is 
required from the railroad right of way.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 157 Lot 
2 and lies within the Character District 4-W (CD4-W). WITHDRAWN  (LU-22-58) 
 

M. The request of Randi and Jeff Collins (Owners), for property located at 77 Meredith 
Way whereas relief is needed to construct a second free-standing dwelling which requires 
the following: 1) A Variance from Section 10.513 to allow a second principal structure 
on a lot.  2) A Variance from Section 10.1114.31 to allow 2 driveways on a lot where 
only 1 is allowed. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 162 Lot 16 and lies within the 
General Residence A (GRA) District. (LU-22-61) 
 

N. The request of 64 Vaughan Mall LLC (Owner), for property located at 64 Vaughan 
Street whereas relief is needed for the addition of a rooftop penthouse which requires the 
following: 1) A Variance from Section 10.5A43.30 and Map 10.5A21B to allow a 
building height of 51'6" where 42' is the maximum allowed for a penthouse.  2) A 
Variance from Section 10.1530 to allow a penthouse with a 9.5' setback from the edge of 
the roof where 15 feet is required.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 126 Lot 1 
and lies within the Character District 5 (CD-5) and Downtown Overlay and Historic 
Districts. (LU-22-65)  
 

O. The request of William H. Schefer Jr. and Donna Schefer (Owners), for property 
located at 994 South Street, Unit 2 whereas relief is needed to install a mini-split system 
which requires the following: 1) A Variance from Section 10.515.14 to allow a 1.5' 
setback where 10' is required.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 150 Lot 9-2 and 
lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-22-54)  

 
IV.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 
 

V.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



Agenda, Board of Adjustment Meeting, April 19, 2022                                                Page 5 
 
*Members of the public also have the option to join this meeting over Zoom, a unique meeting ID 
and password will be provided once you register. To register, click on the link below or copy 
and paste this into your web browser:  
 

 https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_t3M9_CSbSuO_Yfv3VhBIMg  

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_t3M9_CSbSuO_Yfv3VhBIMg


MINUTES OF THE 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING 

EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 

7:00 P.M.                                                                                             March 15, 2022                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Arthur Parrott, Chair; Jim Lee, Vice Chair; David MacDonald, 

Beth Margeson, Thomas Rossi, Paul Mannle; Alternate Phyllis 
Eldridge 

 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Peter Stith, Planning Department  
                                                                                             

 
The appeal of Duncan McCallum (Attorney for Appellants), of the December 16, 2021 decision of the 
Planning Board for property located at 31 Raynes Avenue, 203 Maplewood Avenue, and 1 Raynes 
Avenue WILL NOT BE HEARD DUE TO THE STAY ORDER FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT 

 
Chairman Parrott acknowledged the above appeal will not be heard due to the Court Order.  
 

I.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A) Approval of the minutes of the meetings of February 15, 2022 and February 23, 2022. 
 
The February 15 minutes were approved by unanimous vote as amended. The February 23 
minutes were approved by unanimous vote as presented. 
 
II.   OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. REQUEST TO POSTPONE The request of Francis X. Bruton, (Attorney for 
Appellants), for Appeal of Administrative decision that the merged lot at 1 Congress is 
not subject to the height allowances (2 stories, 4th short, 45 feet in height) pursuant to 
Map 10.5A21B and as permitted pursuant to Section 10.5A21.22(a) & (c) of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 117 Lot 14 and lies within 
Character District 4 (CD-4), Character District 5 (CD-5) and the Historic District 
REQUEST TO POSTPONE.   (LU-22-12) 

DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Ms. Margeson moved to postpone the petition to a future meeting, seconded by Vice-Chair Lee. 
 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 2 
 

Ms. Margeson said the applicant asked for a continuance of the administrative appeal of this 
matter so that further discussions with the Legal department could occur. She said a continuance 
was merited. Vice-Chair Lee concurred and had nothing to add. 
 
The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0. 
 

B. REQUEST TO POSTPONE The request of One Market Square LLC (Owner), for 
the property located at 1 Congress Street whereas relief is needed to construct a 3 story 
addition with a short 4th story and building height of 44'-11" which requires the 
following: 1) A Variance from Section 10.5A.43.31 and Map 10.5A21B to allow a 3-
story addition with a short 4th and building height of 44'-11" where 2 stories (short 3rd) 
and 40' is the maximum allowed. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 117 Lot 14 
and lies within Character District 4 (CD-4), Character District 5 (CD-5) and the Historic 
District. REQUEST TO POSTPONE (LU-22-12)  

DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Vice-Chair Lee moved to postpone the petition to the April 6 meeting, and Ms. Eldridge 
seconded. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0. 
 
III. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. The request of Kelly Rose Shea (Owner), for property located at 725 Colonial Drive 
whereas relief was needed to demolish existing garage and construct new 24' x 28' 
addition with single car garage which requires the following: 1) Variances from Section 
10.521 to allow a) a 5.5' right side yard where 10' is required; b) a 20' rear yard where 30' 
is required; and c) a 20' front yard where 30' is required; and d) 25% building coverage 
where 20% is the maximum allowed.  2) A Variance from Section 10.321 to allow a 
nonconforming building or structure to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without 
conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance. Said property is located on Assessor 
Map 260 Lot 14 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-22-18) 

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
The applicant and co-owner Nick Geist was present to review the petition. He said the project 
would raise his family’s quality of life and the value of his home. He said the abutters were fine 
with the project and noted that their garages were much closer to the property line than what he 
was requesting. He reviewed the criteria and said they would be met. 
 
Mr. Mannle asked what the setbacks for the existing garage were. Mr. Geist said they were 
greater than 10 feet. Mr. Mannle said a variance wasn’t needed for that then. Ms. Margeson said 
the lot was very small compared to the minimum allowed for the SRB District. She said the right 
yard setback would go from 18 feet to 5.5 feet, which was a significant reduction, and the 
building coverage would go from 17 percent to 25 percent, where 20 percent was the maximum 
allowed. She said it was a significant increase on such a small lot. She asked what accounted for 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 3 
 

the increase in building coverage in terms of the breezeway, expanded kitchen, and garage. Mr. 
Geist said they had considered varying the size of the kitchen or the garage but felt that 24’x28 
was a good balance. He said the proposed garage would be bigger than the current one. 
 
Mr. Rossi said the setback on one side of the addition was almost at ten feet and that it was just 
about 10 feet on the other side. He asked if the problem was that the lot was angled and that was 
why it went down to 5.5 feet. Mr. Geist agreed. 
 
Chairman Parrott opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION OR 
SPEAKING IN OPPOSITION TO THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. Chairman Parrott closed the public hearing. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Rossi moved to grant the variances as presented, and Mr. Mannle seconded. 
 
Mr. Rossi said he didn’t think granting the variances would be contrary to the public interest. He 
said the spirit of the ordinance was observed because the ordinance is designed in this section to 
encourage single-family housing, and the project makes the property more suitable for single-
family use. He said he didn’t see any loss of value or anything for the neighborhood, so he 
believed that substantial justice is served. He said there are some unusual aspects of the property, 
notably the angled side yard that make the side yard clearance more difficult to manage than it 
might ordinarily be on a rectangular lot.  
 
Mr. Mannle concurred. He said the requests were small, even for Panaway Manor where 
practically every house was nonconforming.  
 
The motion passed by a vote of 6-1, with Ms. Margeson voting in opposition. 

 
B. The request of Christopher S. and Kristin L. Martin (Owners), for property located at 

27 Sewall Road whereas relief was needed to construct a rear addition with 2 decks and a 
10x10 shed which requires the following:  1) Variances from Section 10.521 to allow a) a 
6.5' left side yard where 10' is required; and b) 22% building coverage where 20% is the 
maximum allowed.  Said Property is located on Assessor Map 170 Lot 12 and lies within 
the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-22-27) 

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 4 
 

The applicant/owner Christopher Martin was present to speak to the petition. He said he is a 
local builder did a major renovation to the home in 2018, but now he had a growing family and 
needed more space. He said the addition would allow a kitchen and dining room and would 
displace the current deck, so he wanted to add a deck on either side. He said the shed was crucial 
for space needed for mowers, bikes, and so on. He said the relief sought was for the south side 
yard setback and that he intended to keep the same plane as the existing house. He reviewed the 
criteria and also noted that all the abutters were in support of the addition. 
 
The Board had no questions. Chairman Parrott opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION OR 
SPEAKING IN OPPOSITION TO THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. Chairman Parrott closed the public hearing. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Vice-Chair Lee moved to grant the variances as presented, seconded by Ms. Margeson. 
 
Vice-Chair Lee said the request was similar to the previous petition. He said the setbacks were 
there to insure that there’s access to the property from all sides for safety reasons and that 
decreasing the setback was innocuous. He said the lot area was pretty small and the request for 
variances was driven by a growing family. He said granting the variances would not be contrary 
to the public interest and would observe the spirit of the ordinance. He said substantial justice 
would be done because the benefit to the applicant is not outweighed by any benefit to the 
general public. He said the well thought-out addition would most likely enhance surrounding 
properties. He said literal enforcement of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship 
because the family would not be able to meet their need for space for their growing family. 
 
Ms. Margeson concurred. She said the setbacks are put in place for access for emergency 
vehicles and also for the movement of air and light, which has been deemed important. She said 
setbacks were not always de minimis and, unlike the previous application, she found this 
application more suitable because the setback diminution on the left side is only 1.5 feet from 
what it currently is now. She said it’s a very large lot and that she felt it could accommodate that. 
She said the building coverage is two percent over what’s allowed by the ordinance, but the 
existing building coverage is under what’s allowed, so she didn’t think the variances unduly 
conflicted with the purpose, spirit and intent of the ordinance, and she would support it. 
 
The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0. 
 
Mr. Margeson was recused from the following petition. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 5 
 

 
C. The request of Nerbonne Family Revocable Trust (Owner), for property located 189 

Gates Street whereas relief was needed for conversion of the existing garage into a 
Garden Cottage with a 12' x 16' addition and 6' x 14' deck which requires the following: 
1) Variances from Section 10.521 to allow a) 35.5% building coverage where 30% is the 
maximum allowed; and b) a 1' right side yard where 10' is the minimum.  2) A Variance 
from Section 10.321 to allow a nonconforming building or structure to be extended, 
reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance.  Said 
property is located on Assessor Map 103 Lot 6 and lies within the General Residence B 
(GRB) and Historic Districts. (LU-22-30) 

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
The applicant Kelly Sanders and project architect Anne Whitney were present to speak to the 
petition. Ms. Sanders said she was the owners’ daughter and was residing at the house because 
her father had Alzheimer’s and needed supervision. She explained that her parents wanted to age 
in their home and build a cottage for a caregiver. She noted that the Board had two letters, one 
from her father’s neurologist highlighting how important it was to provide a secure family home 
environment, and a letter from the president of the Seacoast Village Project that promotes aging 
in place. She said her parents also did extensive research and planning regarding this next phase 
of their life by investigating different options and consulting experts. 
 
Ms. Whitney said a revision was made to the project after receiving feedback from the closest 
abutter, and she handed out copies of the revision to the Board. She said they were now asking 
for less nonconformity. She noted that she also had an additional abutter’s letter. She said there 
were concerns about how close the addition would be to the property line and also about its size. 
She said anything added onto the back of the garage would be nonconforming. She said she 
shifted the addition away from the drop line and downsized it, so they were ending up with a 
10.5’x14.5’ addition that would push the side setback to four feet instead of one foot. She said 
they also downsized the deck. She noted that there weren’t a lot of options to add other structures 
to the property because it abutted the Point of Graves cemetery and the existing driveway and 
yard areas made it difficult and costly to put a structure in the yard. She said the garage was in 
good condition and that adding a small addition to it made sense for a living space of 500 square 
feet. She said they were changing the use, so the existing garage’s wall would have to be made 
into a fire wall. She reviewed the current garage’s dimensions and said it would not be a very tall 
addition. She noted that almost all the houses in the area had additions. She reviewed the criteria 
and noted that the special condition was the nonconformance of the existing garage. She said 
they also had to obtain a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 
 
Mr. Macdonald said there seemed to be a lot of public comment, most of it favorable, and he 
asked if anyone raised objections to the project. Ms. Whitney said the immediate abutter who 
was the most affected did, even after some negotiations. Mr. Rossi asked how necessary the deck 
was to the project. Ms. Whitney said it wasn’t completely necessary and that the owners were 
willing to let it go. Mr. Rossi asked if the project would be in conformance with the building 
coverage if the deck wasn’t there. Mr. Stith said it would be 30.8 percent, so one percent over. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 6 
 

Chairman Parrott asked what the deck’s revised dimensions were as proposed. Ms. Whitney said 
it was 6’x13.6’ and came in six inches on either side. 
 
Chairman Parrott opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION 
 
Linda McVay of 42 Hunking Street said the neighborhood had a high number of older families 
and that the biggest concern facing older families was to be able to age in place. She said she had 
a similar situation in the past. She said the applicant wanted to modify an existing structure that 
would add value to the surrounding properties and would allow the owners to age in place.  
 
Carol Morin of 170 Mechanic Street said that approving the petition would allow the owners to 
stay in their home. She said approval was given to a similar house and that there would likely be 
more. She said the south end was tight and many houses didn’t conform to the ordinance. 
 
Peter Morin of 170 Mechanic Street said he and his wife wanted to age in place also and that it 
was tough to find accommodations to do so. He said he fully supported the petition. 
 
Emily Heffner of 213 Gates Street said she supported the project and thought it would be a great 
addition to the neighborhood. 
 
Kathleen Beauchamp of 21 Blossom Street said she went through something similar 18 years ago 
when her husband had a disability and that she’d like to think the City would do everything 
possible to help people stay in their homes. 
 
SPEAKING IN OPPOSITION TO THE PETITION 
 
Attorney Eric Maher said he represented Devan Quinn and James Butler of 199 Gates Street who 
were opposed to the project. He said his clients were sympathetic to the need for the conversion 
and addition, but they believed that it needed to be properly sited and designed and that there 
were alternatives that would be less adverse to their property. He said his clients made a 
substantial investment in their property, including $30,000 to improve their backyard for their 
children. He said the drainage issues and the proposed addition and garage expansion 
undermined that investment and their intended use as well as the property’s value. He said the 
requested variance relief should be denied or that the Board should insist that the applicant agree 
to a continuance so that a more viable and agreeable solution can be worked out. He said his 
clients tried to contact the owners and was only able to do so on March 7 when they suggested 
that the application be continued. He said the revision did not match their concern. He said his 
clients were concerned that the variance requests were not consistent with the spirit of the 
ordinance or would be contrary to the public interest. He said the lot’s topography dropped as 
one went to the rear and there was also a shelf that dropped it even further, so the existing height 
of the garage was actually higher on his clients’ property. He said extending that by 10 feet 
meant that the exposed foundation would be well above six feet at the rear portion of the lot and 
a 10-ft addition would go eighteen feet high, going into his clients’ backyard and no further than 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 7 
 

four feet from their property line. He said it would diminish their air and light and cause drainage 
issues. He said the setbacks exist to ensure adequate light and space. He said the lot coverage 
restrictions exist to ensure that there’s enough impervious coverage and a place for the 
stormwater runoff to go. He said the garage’s drip edges are on or over the property line, so his 
clients were already getting stormwater on their property and the proposal would add an 
additional amount of surface area coming off the back of the garage and more at the roof, which 
was pitched toward his clients’ property. He said there was no stormwater management proposal 
and that the drainage issues would be increased. He said garden cottages are supposed to be built 
within the confines of existing structures and that the ordinance made it clear that only two 
expansions are permitted without modification from the Planning Board. He said one is a 50ft 
entrance or up to a 300-s.f. deck. He said the ordinance doesn’t allow for a modification to allow 
for an expansion of the footprint under other circumstances, which was to add a living room onto 
to an existing garage. He said the proposal was for a detached ADU masquerading as a garden 
cottage and that the applicant was trying to get around the various restrictions that exist for 
attached ADUs, one of which is the requirement for them to have a certain amount of lot size. 
He said the substantial justice test was whether the benefit to be gained by the public in the 
denial of the variance is outweighed by the loss suffered by the applicant. He said alternatives 
exist and can be worked out between the two parties. He said the petition as presented would 
cause his clients significant loss, but because alternatives exist, the denial of the variance would 
not jeopardize the applicant from submitting something more palpable. He said the assessing 
card for the property has 3200 square feet of gross space, and 18 of which is living space. He 
said they had not heard why the existing dwelling could not be expanded with an addition, or 
why some of the other additional space in the primary dwelling could not be converted to 
accommodate an attached ADU. He said his clients believed that there would be a significant 
diminution of property value. He said one appraiser they consulted said he didn’t know where he 
would start valuing the diminution of value because the proposal was so unique. He said the 
reason why it was so unique is that there are very few detached garden cottages located in such 
proximity to an existing abutting dwelling. He said it was establishing a separate dwelling on the 
property that was effectively an outbuilding and that there wasn’t a lot of those in the 
neighborhood, especially so close to abutting properties, and that it will be within ten feet of his 
clients’ home. He said he didn’t believe that there were special circumstances to the property to 
constitute a hardship because almost all the lots in the neighborhood were sub-sized and had 
restrictions on them. For all those reasons, he said the petition was contrary to the spirit and 
intent of the ordinance and that other alternatives were available, so it wasn’t a reasonable use. 
 
Devan Quinn and James Butler of 199 Gates Street said they had invested in their backyard. Ms. 
Quinn said the garage sat at the property line and their home was 11 feet from it. She said it 
would allow less than four feet for their property line and the foundation would add more height 
onto the building and block their light and air flow. She said the deck would further encroach on 
the property line and would sit many feet above their yard and look down into their yard. She 
said the owner could sell the property to someone who could rent the addition as an ADU every 
weekend to tourists. She said she and her husband suggested other options to the applicant and 
had hoped the petition could be continued so that further discussions could take place. Attorney 
Mayer interjected and said he had context photos, which he gave to the Board. 
 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 8 
 

Vice-Chair Lee asked Ms. Quinn which house in the photo was hers, and Ms. Quinn said it was 
the yellow one. Mr. Mannle said short-term and weekend tourist rentals were only allowed in the 
Downtown Overlay District. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
Joanne Wolfe of 213 Gates Street said she hoped something could be worked out that was 
satisfactory to everyone and that it didn’t divide the neighbors. 
 
Ms. Whitney said they could eliminate the deck. Relating to drainage, she said they could 
stipulate that they would be guttering both of the gabled ends and directing them to a rain garden 
or a dry well. She said it wasn’t a huge amount of roof to divert. In terms of scale, she said the 
addition lined up with the edge of the abutter’s stairway and there was just a small area of their 
yard that was directly impacted by light and air. She said the addition requested was pretty small.  
 
No one else spoke, and Chairman Parrott closed the public hearing. 
 
DISCUSSION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Mannle said it was an ongoing ADU application, so the applicant would go before the 
Planning Board and any additions or modifications were all part of the ADU CUP process as 
well and the Planning Board could add any stipulations they chose. Mr. Stith agreed. 
 
Vice-Chair Lee spoke to the assertion that there would be a diminution of value in surrounding 
properties. He said as a real estate broker for 40 years, he could not fathom that adding a small 
addition to the garage would in any way diminish the value of any of the properties there. 
Referring to Ms. Quinn’s yellow house, he said there was a clear sightline from the Point of 
Graves cemetery to the backyard and that bumping out the garage ten feet would make more 
building to look at, but as far as diminishing the value of surrounding properties, he said he 
didn’t think that would happen. Mr. Rossi said he was impressed with the applicant’s willingness 
to be flexible and reach reasonable accommodations with the revised plan. Ms. Eldridge said it 
seemed that the relief being asked for, particularly with the revised plan, was very small. She 
said the building coverage was less than one percent over the allowed. She said the four feet was 
quite a bit less than 10 feet but was a lot more than zero, and the applicant was willing to do 
away with the deck. She said the height wasn’t a problem and that the applicant would be 
allowed to build something of that height. She said the back addition would go no further than 
the steps, which would leave a backyard of about 30 feet, so that was a backyard with lots of 
open air and light, and she didn’t see that it would diminish the abutter’s ability to use the yard, 
especially without the deck. She said she was inclined to vote in favor but wasn’t completely 
convinced that there was a hardship or that there wasn’t another place to put the addition.  
 
Mr. MacDonald was what was presented to the Board was a picture of conflicting interests. He 
said one party had a young midlife interest, and the other party had an end-of-life interest. He 
said he believed that the BOA wasn’t ever designed, commissioned, or operated to be the King 
Solomon who decides between competing interests of that kind. He proposed that the Board not 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 9 
 

take a position and force a winner/loser situation but instead require that the parties negotiate and 
reach a conclusion and then return to the Board. Chairman Parrott said there had to be a motion 
to postpone for a particular reason, which would be for additional information presented to the 
Board. Mr. MacDonald said the case and the parties had wound up in a zone that wasn’t the 
purview of the Board. Chairman Parrott said the Board couldn’t say that they just didn’t want to 
deal with it. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. MacDonald moved to advise the applicant that the petition they presented was not really 
actionable and that they should withdraw their petition.  
 
Chairman Parrott said that couldn’t be done because the Board had to take a positive action, if it 
was only to postpone. 
 
Mr. MacDonald amended his motion and moved to postpone a decision until the April 19 
meeting so that the parties could bring more information about zoning issues to the Board. Mr. 
Mannle seconded the motion for discussion. 
 
Mr. Mannle asked Mr. Stith whether the Board had to have the applicant’s permission to 
postpone the petition. Mr. Stith said the Board could postpone it and request a revised drawing 
based on the discussions. Chairman Parrott said the Board did it reluctantly but that sometimes it 
was appropriate. Vice-Chair Lee said he looked at the revised application and thought it met all 
the criteria, so he would not support the motion to postpone. 
 
The motion failed by a vote of 4-2, with Mr. Mannle, Vice-Chair Lee, Mr. Rossi, and Ms. 
Eldridge voting against the motion.  
 
Vice-Chair Lee said when the Board granted a variance or special exception, they were granting 
it to the property and not to the person. He said he sympathized with the struggles of aging 
parents, but the Board was granting the relief to the property and it ran in perpetuity. He said the 
variance would survive long after everyone in the room was gone. He said the revised plan more 
than met the criteria and that he would move to approve. 
 
Vice-Chair Lee moved to grant the modified addition without the deck, and Ms. Eldridge 
seconded. (Vice-Chair Lee had no further comments and did not address the criteria). 
 
The motion passed by a vote of 5-1, with Chairman Parrott voting in opposition. 
 

D. The request of Christopher H. Garrett Revocable Trust of 2007 (Owner), for property 
located at 1299 Islington Street whereas relief was needed to Subdivide one lot into two 
lots which requires the following: 1) Variances from Section 10.521 to allow a) a lot area 
and lot area per dwelling unit of 12,366 square feet where 15,000 is required for each; 
and b) 99' of continuous street frontage where 100' is required.  Said property is located 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 10 
 

on Assessor Map 233 Lot 119 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. 
(LU-22-33) 

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
Attorney Monica Kaiser was present on behalf of the applicant, along with project engineer Alex 
Ross. She gave the Board Exhibit E, a list of abutters in support of the proposal, and a revised 
Exhibit C, a map of the surrounding lots that were nonconforming to frontage or and/or lot size. 
She noted that 41 percent of the lots on the tax map were nonconforming as to frontage and lot 
size, and 50 percent were nonconforming to lot size only. Attorney Kaiser reviewed the petition, 
noting that the owners’ family had owned the property since the 1900s but that it was becoming 
too much for them. She said the left side of the lot was unused and bordered by residential 
properties except for the back, where there was a railroad bed. She said the owner wanted to 
create two lots, one for the existing house and was conforming, and the other one, which needed 
the relief. She reviewed the criteria and said they would be met. She noted that several of the 
neighbors supported the proposal. 
 
The Board had no questions. Chairman Parrott opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION 
 
Ralph Dibernardo of 1374 Islington Street said there were 19 houses on their block and more 
than half of them were on lots that had 50 feet of frontage, were 100 feet deep and 500 square 
feet, as well as some houses on Islington Street that had houses built on lots 50’x100’. He said 
the exception was a handful of larger lots, which the applicant’s lot was one of.  
 
SPEAKING IN OPPOSITION TO THE PETITION OR 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. Chairman Parrott closed the public hearing. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Rossi moved to grant the variance as requested, and Mr. Mannle seconded. 
 
Mr. Rossi said the core of the motion is that the deviation, in terms of the frontage requirement, 
is very minor, and in terms of lot area, there is a special condition for the lot. He said there’s a 
little notch taken out of the back of it that borders along the railroad track that really doesn’t 
affect anyone else, but probably takes away just the amount of square footage that will bring this 
into compliance. On that basis, he said he saw nothing that was contrary to the public interest or 
to the spirit of the ordinance. He said the proposed use would be in character for the area and for 
the neighborhood. He said substantial justice would be done because there would be no loss of 
utility to the public or anyone around the area, and there would be a good gain for the property 
owner. He said he saw no indication that granting the variance would diminish the value of 
surrounding properties and probably would enhance them. He said the property’s special 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 11 
 

condition was its odd shape that made the second lot appear to be somewhat smaller than it 
otherwise would be. 
 
Mr. Mannle concurred. He said he wasn’t an abutter but lived in the neighborhood and thought 
the variance requests were minimal. He said when the lot was split, the least one will be a 
conforming lot and the other lot will be slightly under. He said he saw no issue with it. 
 
The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0. 
 
At this point, Chairman Parrott said the Board had a request to switch the order of Petition F, 139 
Essex Street and Petition E, 405 South Street. 
 
Mr. Rossi moved to switch the order of the two petitions, seconded by Ms. Eldridge. The motion 
passed by unanimous vote, 7-0. 
  
NOTE: Petition F, 139 Essex Street, was then heard, and Petition E, 405 South Street, was heard 
afterwards. 
 

E. The request of Julia R. Tiebout Revocable Trust of 2009 (Owner), for the property 
located at 405 South Street whereas relief was needed to Subdivide one lot into two lots 
and construct a single family dwelling which requires the following: 1) Variances from 
Section 10.521 to allow a) 30' of continuous street frontage where 100' is required for 
proposed Lot 2: and b) 15.5' rear yard where 20' is the minimum required. Said property 
is located on Assessor Map 111 Lot 18 and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) 
district. (LU-22-9) 

 
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
Attorney Derek Durbin was present on behalf of the applicant, along with the representative 
from SAI Builders, project engineer John Chagnon, and the owner Julie Robb. Attorney Durbin 
said the property was unique because it was long and rectangular and had frontage on two 
streets. He said the home had a garage adjacent to South Street and that most of the property 
consisted of open land in the back. He said the applicant wanted to subdivide the property into 
lots of near equal size, with Lot 1 having the existing house and Lot 2 being purchased by SAI 
Builders to build a single-family home. In order to subdivide the property, he said his client 
needed a variance due to the lack of street frontage and to construct the proposed home on Lot 2. 
He said the Board received letters of support from the abutters but would hear opposition related 
to drainage on the northern portion of the lot and concerns about access. He noted that those 
issues would go before the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and that all the technical 
issues would be addressed at the Planning Board level. He said his client would improve the 
drainage conditions on the property, which will benefit surrounding properties including some 
that drained onto his client’s property. He said public access would be improved. He reviewed 
the criteria in detail and said they would be met. He also noted snow removal issues and said 
they would be alleviated by moving the garage back a bit. He emphasized that his client could 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 12 
 

construct up to three condos on the existing lot if they wanted to and that the value of 
surrounding property values would increase with the creation of a new single-family home. He 
gave examples of other nonconforming homes that SAI Builders had renovated in the south end. 
 
Mr. Mannle asked if McNabb Court was a public street all the way to the applicant’s property. 
Attorney Durbin said it was a public street and was recognized as such. He said the plan they 
were able to get showed McNabb Court extending farther than it does now. Mr. MacDonald 
asked if there would be an easement for the snow storage. Attorney Durbin said he thought the 
City would require an easement because there was nowhere else for the snow to go. Mr. 
MacDonald asked if the City was favorable now. Attorney Durbin said he didn’t believe that 
there were significant concerns expressed at the TAC work session. Mr. Chagnon said TAC was 
concerned about drainage and protecting the neighborhood, so the team was working on 
solutions that would not impact the neighborhood. He said TAC made some suggestions and that 
the team would implement them in the next design phase. He said there was a clear way forward 
if the drainage issues were dealt with. He said an easement for snow plowing was also discussed.  
Ms. Margeson said she was familiar with McNabb Court and knew it was very tricky. She said 
someone could have an oversized driveway and have a provision that they could do a turnaround. 
Mr. Chagnon agreed. He pointed out a one-car garage and a second parking spot on the plan and 
said either one would allow turn-arounds and heading out. He noted that there were two spaces 
that fronted to the street. 
 
Mr. Rossi asked, in regard to the rear yard setback, if the request for a 15.5 setback was 
necessitated by the garage due to the main body of the house being 20 feet. Attorney Durbin said 
it was actually 19.4 feet to the back wall of the house in the northern portion of the lot. In 
response to further questions from Mr. Rossi, Mr. Chagnon said the garage was 22 feet deep and 
that he was working with the builder to position the house in the best place possible. He said that 
due to the lot’s topography, there was a hill coming off South Street, and the northerly part of the 
lot acted as the relief point for all the abutting properties, so the properties to the west and north 
all drained on his client’s property. He said they had to consider different options for placing the 
house due to concerns about snow removal. He said grade changes also required stairways, so 
having that offset also helped with the layout of the house and the interior stairway. Chairman 
Parrott noted that one of the architect’s drawings showed the garage as 24’x15’. Mr. MacDonald 
asked if McNabb Court was served by storm drains. Mr. Chagnon said there were currently some 
located on the portion of McNabb Court before the turn, so the solution would probably be to 
extend that storm drainage. 
 
Chairman Parrott opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION 
 
Andrew Tiebout was present on behalf of his mother, the owner Julie Robb, and he read a letter 
that she wrote. Ms. Robb described the property’s history and said she was selling the property 
because she couldn’t afford the upkeep or the taxes. She wanted to pass the property on to her 
son but couldn’t do that without selling the other lot. She said she wanted control on what would 
be built on the lot and was impressed by SAI Builders’ architectural styles used on the homes 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 13 
 

they built. She said every concern had been addressed by SAI Builders and Ambit Engineering 
and that the project was tastily designed and situated. She said she would welcome a new family 
who appreciated the area. She said it was a change but a positive and well-planned one. 
 
SPEAKING IN OPPOSITION TO THE PETITION 
 
Alex and Lauren LePage of 53 McNabb Court said they were direct abutters to 405 South Street. 
Mr. LePage said the street was barely wide enough two cars. He said they were positive 
interactions with Ms. Robb but when they asked what her plans were, she said she was redoing 
the garage and redoing a survey. He said they learned about the proposed house in the fall when 
holes were being dug and was told to meet with the builder liaison. He said the proposal stated 
that the applicant took a conscientious approach by engaging surrounding property owners, but it 
was dishonest because he and his wife were never asked about their concerns and weren’t 
involved in the planning process. He said the proposal was not an addition or tearing down a 
house but was a new single-family home that was quite larger than the other homes on a dead-
end street that was already highly congested. Ms. LePage said a big concern was the request for a 
2,500 s.f. home on 30 feet on McNabb Court, where the street was only 21 feet wide, so the 
applicant was really asking for 24 feet of frontage. She said the logistics of access and egress of 
another house on McNabb court was a safety concern. She said a four-bedroom house with a 
garage and driveway would also take away the only two street parking spaces, would cause more 
people to come and go, would cause concerns for children who walked to school or played in the 
street, and so on. She said their front door stepped out to where the driveway was planned, so 
that would be a safety risk. She was also concerned about resale value, how the community 
interacted with one another, and stormwater runoff. She said the development would affect the 
water the water they got in their basement, and the driveway’s surface area would cause 
additional water runoff.  
 
Ben Otis of 46 McNabb Court said the street was unique because it was a dead-end, had no 
sidewalks or curbing, and was very narrow. He said no one could park in front of their house 
without blocking the street. He said a fifth house on the end of the street would get rid of two 
parking spaces. He noted that Lincoln and Elwyn Avenues backed up to McNabb court and 
added to the street’s traffic. He said the parking and drainage issues would be big impacts. 
 
Kristen Otis of 46 McNabb Court said the snow was piled against the fence only once, when 
there was a blizzard, and that it shouldn’t be piled there due to the fire hydrant. She said they 
chose to live on McNabb Court because it was a quiet street that their kids could safely play in. 
She said adding a home to the end of the street will affect parking and create more traffic. 
 
Ben Lacava of 72 Lincoln Avenue said they owned the property that abutted the north edge of 
Lot 2 and lived where the water collected. He said the applicant didn’t have a strong solution for 
where the water would go. He said another concern was the neighborhood children’s safety 
because they played in the street. He asked where the construction equipment and trucks would 
go because a fire truck couldn’t even go down the street and that’s why there was a fire hydrant.  
 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 14 
 

Alex Greiner of 88 Lincoln Avenue said their driveway was off McNabb Court. He said there 
was no effort on the applicant’s part to reach out to the neighbors about their concerns. He said 
water runoff was also a concern, as well as safety during the construction phase.  
 
Lucinda Lloyd of 54 McNabb Court said she abutted the applicant’s land and worried about the 
safety of the neighborhood kids, water in the basements, and added traffic. She said the proposed 
house was bigger than most of the houses on the street and thought there was no way that the 
applicant would only need a single-car garage.  
 
Ryan Russman of 137 Elwyn Avenue said he had access to his garage on the back side of the 
applicant’s property, which was the actual area being used for the road’s egress. He said 
McNabb Street was plowed using a backhoe and the back end would swing out. He said the way 
they intended to remove the snow would kill everyone’s grass. He said a fire truck wouldn’t 
make the corner. He said the applicant didn’t consult the neighbors about the project and there 
were other alternatives. He said an ingress/egress of 24 feet was an enormous ask and the 
variances requested were extraordinary.  
 
Nina Herlihy of 60 Lincoln Avenue said she owned the property but lived in Rye. She said she 
was never contacted about the project and first heard of it when she got the notice about the BOA 
meeting less than a week before the meeting. She said she also had water problems and that the 
residents’ basements would probably be even more flooded. She said there was no hydrology 
study and was uncomfortable having a variance passed until there were drainage solutions in 
place. She said she felt that there had been a lack of transparency with the plan. 
 
Brandon Seppa of 151 Elwyn Avenue said his property abutted McNabb Court on the back and 
his yard was where the snow was piled. He said he also wasn’t consulted and that his primary 
concern was the neighborhood’s kids’ safety. He said the neighbors had even discussed placing 
bollards in the street to slow traffic down. He asked how construction vehicles would turn around 
when normal delivery trucks could not. 
 
Alex LePage of 53 McNabb Court said he had two letters from abutters who couldn’t attend the 
meeting, one from Patricia Cabrera of 113 Elwyn Avenue and one from Greg and Stephanie 
Sullivan of 43 McNabb Court. He read each letter, which included concerns about the water 
table, the proposed house’s size and style, additional traffic, less parking, the intensity of land 
use, and general noncompliance with the ordinance. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
Derek Rolfe of 419 South Street said the owner had reached the point where she had no other 
choice but to sell. He suggested having a third party validate the situations. 
 
Attorney Durbin said as far as access safety, the perception was that the end of McNabb Court 
couldn’t be used, but he said his client had a fence that could be removed to allow access. H said 
she could construct any kind of driveway access there. He said the Public Works Division 
wanted to see how the snow was taken in on the left side, which was the reason he was asking 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 15 
 

for the rear yard setback. He said those concerns had been addressed and that technical concerns 
would be addressed proactively. He said they were not eliminating open space but were well 
exceeding open space requirements.  
 
Patrick Nysten of SAI Builders said when they first started the project, they proposed a house on 
the northerly portion of the lot, and when they did soil testing there, several abutters came out 
and voiced drainage and water concerns and the house’s siting. He said he listened to those 
concerns and redesigned the house to be on the southerly side of the lot. He said the lot was 11, 
000 square feet, one of the largest in the area, and was more compliant than many of the nearby 
properties in terms of setbacks and lot coverage. He said it would have on-site parking but that 
his client had a right to park on the street. He said the snow storage was the recommendation of 
the City and that he would provide an easement if the City asked for it. He said they got nice 
feedback about how the architect’s other houses were integrated into the neighborhood and that 
the main body of the house was emblematic of the houses on McNabb Court, with similar 
massing and scale. He noted that they did not put in a two-car garage. 
 
Mr. Chagnon said they were in the process of going before TAC and the Planning Board, which 
would be robust. He said they would deal with drainage concerns and that the police, fire, and 
public works departments would weigh in. He said the project would not cause additional 
burdens to the existing situation in the neighborhood and that the street would still be a dead-end 
street. He said change was difficult, and adding one more family to the neighborhood would not 
change the dynamic of the dead-end street. Ms. Margeson asked what the fire department had 
said so far about the proposal during the preliminary review before TAC. Mr. Chagnon said the 
fire department did not raise any concerns and didn’t say that there needed to be studies of 
vehicle movement or traffic, nor did they ask for additional firefighting measures. Ms. Margeson 
said one of the abutters spoke about the frontage actually being 24 feet and some of it being on 
another property. Mr. Chagnon said the amount of frontage was 30 feet, and what happened was 
that the public portion on the south side cut very close to the porches, so the 30 feet was the 
public right-of-way and the 24 feet was the area of pavement that exists within that public right-
of-way. He said the driveway extension will be that 24 feet but it didn’t mean that there was less 
than 30 feet of frontage. Ms. Eldridge said another concern was moving construction vehicles 
back and forth. Mr. Chagnon said it would be a temporary imposition and that they could work 
with the neighborhood to minimize the impact of construction. He said it would have to be 
staged appropriately and perhaps small deliveries would be used. 
 
Nina Herlihy of Rye said the builder spoke to the subject property’s owners but not the 
neighbors. 
 
Mr. Nysten said he spoke with Mr. LePage, Lucinda Lloyd, and the gentleman from 88 Lincoln 
Avenue.  He said they came to the property and talked to him and also the project engineer, the 
property owner, and the construction manager. 
 
Lucinda Lloyd of 54 McNabb Court said no one mentioned that Lots 1 and 2 originate on South 
Street. She asked why the property couldn’t be accessed by South Street. Mr. Chagnon said the 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 16 
 

grade change make it difficult to do that and the applicant would have to take out their garage. 
He said it would require more paved area, which would mean more runoff. 
 
No one else spoke, and Chairman Parrott closed the public hearing. 
 
DISCUSSION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Rossi asked whether the issues of drainage and mitigation were part of the Board’s criteria 
or were issues that TAC would handle. Chairman Parrott said anyone could present to the Board 
what they wanted and that the Board had to consider everything they heard. 
 
Ms. Margeson said it was a tough application and thought Attorney Durbin did an outstanding 
job of presenting. She said there were a lot of areas where one could say that the property has 
special conditions because it’s sort of land-locked and is large enough to build on. She said she 
would not support the application. She thought 30 feet street frontage was probably workable on 
a street other than McNabb Court. She said she was very familiar with the street and thought it 
was much too difficult to make such a diminution. She noted that the street frontages on McNabb 
Court for the four New Englanders also did not meet zoning, but placing 30 feet street frontage 
in this particular area at the end of this block was just too difficult. She said there were public 
health, safety, and welfare issues and also an issue with the character of the neighborhood, which 
was those four little New Englanders. She said she recognized that it was a very unique situation 
for this lot in the back of the primary lot on South Street, and if there were access off of South 
Street and perhaps some sort of surface that would not create as much drainage, it might work, 
but she thought it was just too difficult off of McNabb Street and she could not support the 
petition. Vice-Chair Lee agreed with Ms. Margeson and said he was a little conflicted on a lot of 
those points. He referred to his real estate career when he saw a real unique situation and 
thought, ‘Good grief, what were they thinking when they built this.’ He said McNabb Court 
qualified as one of those situations. He said it was a really constricted little neighborhood and the 
application did not meet all the criteria, so he could not support it either. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Ms. Margeson moved to deny the petition, based upon the public interest and the spirit of the 
ordinance prongs of the criteria. Ms. Eldridge seconded. 
  
Ms. Margeson said the variance relief violates the public interest and the spirit of the ordinance 
and alters the essential character of the neighborhood, which is essentially the four little New 
Englanders. She said there were very small lot sizes and very small houses there, and she thought 
there is a threat to the public’s health, safety, and welfare. She noted that the motion to deny only 
has to identify that one of the criteria is not met. Ms. Eldridge concurred and had nothing to add. 
 
Mr. Mannle said he appreciated the presentation and all the comments for and against the 
petition. He said the lot was a unique one in Little Harbor, although he could show you a dozen 
of the exact same lots on Middle Road. He said he knew the property was unique, but turning a 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 17 
 

100-ft street frontage down to 70 feet was just too far for him. He said he would support the 
motion to deny. 
 
The motion passed by a vote of 7-0. 

 
F. The request of Peggi L. Morrow (Owner), for property located at 139 Essex Avenue 

whereas relief was needed to demolish existing dwelling and construct new single-family 
dwelling which requires the following:  1) Variances from Section 10.521 to allow a) lot 
area and lot area per dwelling unit of 11,581 square feet where 15,000 is required for 
each; and b) 75' of continuous street frontage where 100' is required. Said property is 
located on Assessor Map 233 Lot 60 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) 
District. (LU-22-25) 

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
Attorney Derek Durbin was present on behalf of the applicant, along with the Joe Caldarola, who 
was under contract to purchase the property. Attorney Durbin reviewed the petition, noting that 
the existing house encroached on the right yard setback by five feet. He said the house was in 
poor condition and there was no justification to restore it, so they wanted to demolish it and 
replace it with a small 3-bedroom house. He reviewed the criteria and said the property would be 
brought into greater conformance and would observe the density goal of the SRB zoning. 
 
The Board had no questions. Chairman Parrott opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. 
 
SPEAKING IN OPPOSITION TO THE PETITION 
 
Joanne Wolfe of 213 Gates Street said she was present on behalf of her daughter, who lived at 56 
Sheffield Street and abutted the property. She said she questioned the plans that were submitted 
because there was talk of a 2-story, 3 bedroom, and 2-1/2 bath, but the plans showed a 3-story 
with a balcony in the back and 3-1/2 baths, including a full bath on the third story. She asked 
what the building was really planning to do. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
Joe Caldarola of 70 Dennett Street said the floor plan was the same as the existing house. As to 
the question of whether the attic gets finished or not, he said when they drew the plans for the lot 
they decided to finish the attic, so it was actually a 3-1/2 shared bath and the 2-1/2 bath was a 
misstatement. He said the inset balcony didn’t project up or out and that it was inset under the 
roof, so he would call the house a 2-story New Englander with a finished third floor. 
 
No one else spoke, and Chairman Parrott closed the public hearing. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 18 
 

DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Vice-Chair Lee moved to grant the variances as presented, and Mr. Mannle seconded. 
 
Vice-Chair Lee said it seemed that demolishing and rebuilding existing homes has become a 
thing in Portsmouth, and he thought it was a good thing overall because there was a code-
compliant house with all the life safety features that some of the older houses didn’t have, and 
having a brand new home in the neighborhood would enhance property values. He said granting 
the variance would not be contrary to the public interest and would observe the spirit of the 
ordinance because the current house would be demolished and replaced with a new one, with 
exactly the same floor plan. He noted that it was slightly noncompliant now and will be the same 
amount of noncompliance when it’s completed. He said substantial justice would be done 
because the benefit to the applicant would not be outweighed by any harm to the general public 
or other individuals. He said granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding 
properties, and literal enforcement of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship to the 
applicant because he wouldn’t be able to complete the purchase and present Portsmouth with a 
brand new code-compliant house for a nice family to live in. For those reasons, he moved that 
the application be approved as presented and advertised. 
 
Mr. Mannle concurred and said the structure will be more conforming than it currently is. Ms. 
Margeson said she echoed what Vice-Chair Lee’s comment said about seeing a lot of houses 
demolished and then reconstructed, which she thought was unfortunate. She said she thought the 
house was really neat and was sorry to lose it, but it wasn’t within the Board’s purview, so she 
would vote for this because she thought the variance request was reasonable and de minimis. 
 
The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0. 
 
NOTE: The Board then addressed Petition E, 405 South Street. 
 
At this time, it was moved, seconded, and approved unanimously, 7-0, to extend the meeting past 
10:00. 
 

G. The request of Brian A. Fritz (Owner), for property located at 169 Martha Terrace 
whereas relief was needed to add a second floor on the existing dwelling which requires 
the following: 1) A Variances from Section 10.521 to allow a) a 37' rear yard where 40' is 
required; and b) 14% building coverage where 10% is the maximum.  2) A Variance from 
Section 10.321 to allow a nonconforming building or structure to be expanded, 
reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance. Said 
property is located on Assessor Map 283 Lot 9 and lies within the Single Residence A 
(SRA) district. (LU-22-20) 

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
Applicant Brian Fitz was present to review the petition. He said the house was a very small ranch 
and that his growing family needed more room. He noted that his house was the only one in the 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting, March 15, 2022                                  Page 19 
 

neighborhood that didn’t have an addition or had gone up in height, and he said the proposed 
style was the same as other houses in the neighborhood. He reviewed the criteria briefly. 
 
The Board had no questions. Chairman Parrott opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF OR IN OPPOSITION TO THE PETITION OR 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. Chairman Parrott closed the public hearing. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Rossi moved to grant the variances for the petition as presented, and Mr. Mannle seconded. 
 
Mr. Rossi said the lot is already noncompliant and the requested variances do not affect that in 
any way. He said there is no public interest in restricting a second floor, therefore it’s not 
contrary to the public interest to grant the variances. He said granting the variances would 
observe the spirit of the ordinance because this is a single-family residence area and this project 
enhances the value of the property for a single-family. He said substantial justice would be done 
because no one in the area is sacrificing anything for the benefit of the homeowner. He said 
granting the variances would not diminish the value of surrounding properties, and it would be 
an unnecessary hardship to require that this lot be brought into conformance in order to add a 
second floor. 
 
Mr. Mannle concurred and had nothing to add. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0. 
 
IV.   OTHER BUSINESS 

 
There was no other business. 
 
V.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Joann Breault 
BOA Recording Secretary 
 
 







From: Kimberli Kienia
To: Kimberli Kienia
Subject: FW: 1 Congress Street
Date: Monday, April 11, 2022 8:48:29 AM

 

From: FX Bruton [mailto:fx@brutonlaw.com] 
Sent: Saturday, April 9, 2022 7:02 AM
To: Peter M. Stith <pmstith@cityofportsmouth.com>
Cc: Mark McNabb <house@mcnabbgroup.com>; Nicholas J. Cracknell
<njcracknell@cityofportsmouth.com>; Beverly M. Zendt <bmzendt@cityofportsmouth.com>
Subject: 1 Congress Street
 
Mr. Stith,                                         
 
               The Applicant for Case LU-22-12, One Market Square, LLC, is schedule for a hearing before

the ZBA on April 19th on its application for a variance.  In addition, the Applicant is scheduled to be
heard on its Appeal of Administrative Decision (Case LU-22-12). 
 

Upon inquiry, the City Attorney has indicated that additional time is needed by that office in
terms of its review of the status of Haven Court.  In addition, the Applicant will need a period of time
for review of the City Attorney’s findings.   The status of Haven Court is relevant to both the variance
request and the Appeal of Administrative decision.   As such, the Applicant has agreed, and therefore

requests, that the hearing for April 19th for both applications be postponed until May 17th, which is
the next hearing date.  We understand that this review by the City Attorney will facilitate the ZBA
with regard to its review of both cases.
 
                Please thank the Board for its consideration of the above.
 
 
Francis X. Bruton, III, Esquire
Bruton & Berube, PLLC
601 Central Avenue 
Dover, New Hampshire 03820
p: (603) 749-4529
F: (603) 343-2986
 
PLEASE NOTE OUR NEW OFFICE HOURS ARE MONDAY THROUGH
THURSDAY FROM 8:30 AM TO 5:00 PM AND FRIDAY FROM 8:30 AM TO 1:00
PM. 
 
IMPORTANT PRIVACY NOTICE: The information contained in this transmission and any
accompanying documents or attachments is private, confidential and may be subject to the
attorney/client priviledged or considered attorney work product. It may also be private
and/or confidential information protected under state and federal laws. As such, it is
intended only for the recipient(s) listed above. If you are neither the intended recipient(s)
nor a person responsible for the delivery of this transmission to the intended recipient(s),
you are hereby notified that any unauthorized disclosure, distribution or copying of this
transmission, or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is strictly

mailto:kkienia@cityofportsmouth.com
mailto:kkienia@cityofportsmouth.com
mailto:fx@brutonlaw.com
mailto:pmstith@cityofportsmouth.com
mailto:house@mcnabbgroup.com
mailto:njcracknell@cityofportsmouth.com
mailto:bmzendt@cityofportsmouth.com


prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please destroy the original
transmission immediately and contact our office at (603) 749-4529.
 





STATEMENT OF AUTHORIZATION  

The undersigned, Mark McNabb, Manager of One Market Square, LLC, a New Hampshire 

limited liability company (the "Company"), owner of property located on High Street (Tax Map 

117, Lot 15) and at 1 Congress Street (Tax Map 117, Lot 14) in Portsmouth, NH, does hereby 

authorize Francis X. Bruton, III, Esquire, or any other attorney with the law firm of Bruton & 

Berube, PLLC, to prepare, sign and file any and all applications and supporting materials with the 

City of Portsmouth land use boards and departments, including, but not limited to, the Zoning 

Board of Adjustment and/or Planning Board, and does further authorize Francis X. Bruton, III, 

and any other attorney associated with the firm of Bruton & Berube, PLLC, to represent the 

Company's interests before the said land use boards with regard to the proposed project by One 

Market Square, LLC on the property located at on High Street and at 1 Congress Street in 

Portsmouth, NH. 

 

 

     One Market Square, LLC 

 

          By:         

      Mark McNabb, Manager 



 Page 1 of 4 

ONE MARKET SQUARE, LLC  

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCES 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

 

The property subject to this application is located at High Street in Portsmouth, New 

Hampshire and is depicted on the Portsmouth City Tax Maps as Map 117, Lot 15 (hereinafter “Lot 

15”). Lot 15 is located in the CD4 District, and is also within the Historic District and Downtown 

Overlay Districts.  Lot 15 is owned by the Applicant and contains an asphalt parking lot.  

 

The Applicant is also the owner of the parcel located at 1 Congress Street, depicted on the 

Tax Maps as Map 117, Lot 14 (hereinafter “Lot 14”).  Lot 14 is located in the CD5 District, and 

also within the Historic District and Downtown Overlay District. Lot 14 contains an existing 

building with unique historic features that are to be preserved by the Applicant. 

 

The project will involve the merger of Lot 14 and Lot 15, the renovation of a portion of 

the existing historic structures located on Lot 14 and the new construction of an addition to the 

historic structures on Lot 14 and a new connected building in the parking lot of Lot 15. The 

renovations will involve updating the portions of the building to comply with Americans with 

Disabilities Act (hereinafter the “ADA”) and International Building Codes requiring two means of 

egress per floor.  The renovated portion of the historic structures of Lot 14 will be comprised of 

approximately 3,820 sq. ft. of the existing footprint, while the new construction on the merged lot 

will be comprised of 8,720 sq. ft. of footprint upon Lot 14 and Lot 15.  The proposed project is 

represented and depicted by the attached plans by ARCove, LLC (hereinafter “ARCove Plans”) 

and Ambit Engineering, Inc. (hereinafter “Ambit Plans”). The project will also provide for one 

level of subgrade parking.  The entire project will be comprised of commercial uses.  The new 

structure will abut Haven Court, also owned by the Applicant, which itself will be upgraded in 

order to benefit access for the general public and easement rights to an abutting property. 

 

Pursuant to Map 10.5A21B (hereinafter the “Height Map”) within the Portsmouth Zoning 

Ordinance, Lot 15 is subject to a height restriction of 2-3 stories with a concurrent height limitation 

of 40’ (this designation represents a “green” designation on the Height Map).  However, Lot 14 is 

subject to a height restriction of 2-3 (4th short) stories with a concurrent height limitation of 45’ 

(this designation represents an “orange” designation on the Height Map).  As depicted on the 

Height Map the parcels directly adjacent to Lot 15, along High Street, are designated as “orange,” 

and thus subject to a height restriction of 2-3 (4th short) with a concurrent height limitation of 45’.   

 

As set forth hereinabove, the Applicant proposes the construction of an addition to the 

retained portion of the existing historic structures on Lot 14 and a new connected building on Lot 

15 in a manner that provides for a uniform height between the buildings in order to construct an 

elevator and stair towers required to meet Americans with Disabilities Act and International 

Building Code. As depicted on the ARCove Plans, the proposed structure would be permitted to 

have 104’ 2” of building length with a short 4th story, all located on Lot 14.  That portion of the 

building length that is restricted to 3 stories, all located on Lot 15, is 68’ 7”. Thus, the Applicant 

requests a variance to the Height Map to provide that Lot 15 be considered “orange,” thus 

permitting the structure on Lot 15 to contain a “4th short” floor, with the concurrent height 

restriction of 45’. 

 



 Page 2 of 4 

Lot 15 previously contained a structure that had a 4th short story, with a height that was 

approximately the same as the existing historic buildings located on Lot 14.  The structure was 

known as the Dolphin Hotel built in approximately 1895 (see photos of the hotel in the ARCove 

Plans).  The Dolphin Hotel was destroyed by fire in 1969, resulting in the creation of the existing 

asphalt parking lot.  The Applicant thus seeks to recreate a structure that is similar to the historic 

structure as to number of stories that had existed previously on the same sight for approximately 

94 years. 

 

Lot 15 itself is unique as it is located directly adjacent to a lot not subject to the zoning 

ordinance, containing the City parking garage.  Additionally, the Lot is unique given its location 

down High Street, which generally serves more as a secondary entranceway to the City Garage 

than an actively used downtown main street.  Furthermore, it is strange that Lot 15 is the only lot 

in that immediate area subject to CD4 District when all abutting properties are in the CD5 District. 

  

 

II. REQUEST OF THE APPLICANT FOR VARIANCES 

 

For the purposes set forth herein, the Applicant is requesting the following variance: 

 

1. Relief from Map 10.5A21B (the “Height Map”) within the Portsmouth Zoning Ordinance 

to permit a 3 story (4th short) building with a concurrent height restriction of 45’  

 

Rationale for Request:  This parcel is adjacent to Lot 14, which is to be merged with Lot 

15. The Height Map permits structures on Lot 14 to be 3 stories (4th short) and concurrently 

45’ in height.  Essentially, the variance will permit an additional half story in the form of a 

4th short story, as 3 stories are permitted already on Lot 15.  The Applicant seeks the 

variance in order to create uniformity as to height with the proposed addition located on 

Lot 14, particularly in light of the proposed location of the structure adjacent to the City 

parking garage and to meet Americans With Disabilities access for an elevator and two 

new stair towers for a means of egress. 
 

III. VARIANCE CRITERIA 

 

New Hampshire RSA 674:33, I (a)(2) and Section 10.233 of the Portsmouth Zoning 

Ordinance set forth five criteria upon which variances may be granted. The application of these 

criteria to the Applicant's proposal is discussed hereafter. 

 

A. Granting the variances will not be contrary to the public interest. 

 

To be contrary to the public interest or injurious to public rights, the variances must unduly 

and in a marked degree conflict with the basic zoning objectives of the ordinance. See Chester Rod 

& Gun Club, 152 N.H. at 581. In making the determination, the Board should determine whether 

the variance would “alter the essential character of the locality or threaten public health, safety or 

welfare.” 

 

Section 10.121 of the Portsmouth Zoning Ordinance states that, “[t]he purpose of this 

Ordinance is to promote the health, safety and general welfare of Portsmouth and its region in 

accordance with the City of Portsmouth Master Plan.  



 Page 3 of 4 

 

The request is essential for a short 4th story in order for the new constructions to be uniform 

as to stories and height to that on Lot 14, with is permitted to contain a short 4th story.  Granting 

the variance would result in a building that is similar to the height of adjacent structures along 

Congress Street and High Street while remaining consistent with the massing of adjacent 

structures, as depicted on the ARCove Plans. In addition, in terms of a historical perspective, the 

proposed stories and height will be similar as to those of the historic Dolphin Hotel, a structure 

that existed on the sight for approximately 95 years.  In light of the foregoing, it is respectfully 

submitted that the grant of the variance (a 4th short story) will not alter the essential character of 

the High Street and Congress Street.  Given the above, there is no negative aspect of the request 

that could threaten public health, safety or welfare. 

 

B. The spirit of the ordinance is observed. 

 

When considering whether the granting of the variances will observe the spirit of the 

ordinance, the New Hampshire Supreme Court has indicated this review is substantially related, 

and similar to the review regarding public interest. See Harborside Associates, L.P. v. Parade 

Resident Hotel, LLC, 162 NH 508, 514 (2011). Thus, the Applicant submits that the rationale set 

forth above regarding “public interest” is equally applicable to the Board’s review as to whether 

the spirit of the ordinance is observed with the grant of the variance.  

 

C. The granting of the requested relief will do substantial justice. 

 

In Malachy Glen Associates v. Town of Chester, 155 N.H. 102, 109 (2002), the New 

Hampshire Supreme Court held that, “the only guiding rule [in determining whether the 

requirement for substantial justice is satisfied] is that any loss to the individual that is not 

outweighed by a gain to the general public is an injustice.” The Court also noted that it would look 

at whether a proposed development was consistent with the area's present use.  In this instance, the 

grant of the variance would result in substantial justice as that would allow the proposed addition 

to be uniform in stories and height. Additionally, there is no negative aspect that the public will 

suffer. Thus, denial of the variances would result in a loss to the Applicant that is not outweighed 

by any gain to the general public. As such, granting of the requested relief would result in 

substantial justice. 

 

 D. Granting the variance will not result in the diminution on value of the 

surrounding properties. 

 

It is respectfully submitted that all of the surrounding properties have a value associated 

with them which is premised upon the existence of the existing buildings and uses located upon 

the Applicant’s property.  In this instance, it is believed, and therefore averred, that the aesthetic 

and historic additions and upgrades of the property and considering the existing uses of the 

property, will not result in a diminution of surrounding property values.  Currently, on Lot 14, 

there are structures built, on a piece-by-piece basis, with an inconsistent design.  The proposed 

structure will represent an upgraded and uniform design on Lots 14 and 15, which will require 

historic review by the Historic District Commission. 

 

 



 Page 4 of 4 

E. Literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would result in an 

unnecessary hardship. 

 

An unnecessary hardship exists when, owing to special conditions of the property that 

distinguish it from other property, no fair and substantial relationship exists between the public 

purposes of the ordinance provisions and the specific application of those provisions to the 

property and the proposed use is a reasonable one. (Section 10.233.31 of Zoning Ordinance). 

 

As set forth with the Introduction, Lot 15 is distinguished from other properties in the area 

as it is located directly adjacent to the City parking garage. Additionally, Lot 15 is unique given 

its location down High Street, which generally serves more as a secondary entranceway to the city 

garage than an actively used downtown main street.  In addition, in terms of a historical 

perspective, the parcel was the site of the Dolphin Hotel, which contained a 4th short story, a 

structure that existed on the sight for approximately 95 years.  The historical photos of the Dolphin 

Hotel appear to suggest that the hotel had a height that exceeds the request made herein. 

 

The proposed structure will not pose a conflict with the public purpose of the ordinance as 

the additional structure will be consistent with the historical massing of a previous structure on the 

parcel and consistent with adjacent structures containing a short 4th story along High Street and 

Congress Street. In addition, the structure will present an updated and uniform design for this 

location, providing a sense of symmetry and congruent design of the integrated building from 

Congress Street and up to Haven Court to the general public.  The designs reflect a massing that 

is consistent with the overall goals of the zoning ordinance in the specific area.  The Applicant 

respectfully submits, for all of the reasons set forth herein, the denial of the requested variance 

would result in an unnecessary hardship to the Applicant.   

     

For the specific reasons set forth above, the Applicant respectfully submits that the uses 

proposed are reasonable. 

 

IV. CONCLUSION 

 

For all of the reasons set forth above One Market Square, LLC respectfully requests that 

the relief requested herein be granted.  



COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:
01/13/2022

COVER
ONE MARKET SQUAREA0.0

RENOVATION & ADDITIONS
ONE MARKET SQUARE

1 CONGRESS STREET
ONE MARKET SQUARE, LLC

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 
WORK SESSION 1

DRAWING INDEX

A0.1 CONTEXT MAP
A0.2 EXISTING BUILDING PHOTOS
A0.3 CONTEXT PHOTOS
A0.4 HISTORIC CONTEXT
A0.5 HISTORIC CONTEXT
A1.0 SITE PLAN, EXISTING
A1.1 SITE PLAN, PROPOSED
A2.1 MASSING STREET SECTIONS
A2.2 MASSING STREET SECTIONS

PROJECT NARRATIVE

REHABILITATION AND ADAPTIVE REUSE OF FOCAL 
EXISTING HISTORIC STRUCTURES ON LOT 15, WITH A 
NEW ADJACENT STRUCTURE ON LOT 14 (CURRENTLY 
A SURFACE PARKING LOT, AND PRIOR TO 1969 THE 
LOCATION OF A 3-1/2 STORY C. 1895 HOTEL).

ONE LEVEL OF BELOW GRADE PARKING IS 
PROPOSED. 

HAVEN COURT, A PRIVATE EASEMENT RIGHT OF WAY 
IS PROPOSED TO BE SIGNIFICANTLY IMPROVED AND 
REGRADED PROVIDING PUBLIC ACCESS CONNECTING 
MARKET STREET TO FLEET STREET. THIS WOULD BE 
AN INTEGRAL LINK BETWEEN THE MCINTYRE'S PUBLIC 
SPACES, THROUGH COMMERCIAL ALLEY, LADD 
STREET AND HAVEN COURT TO A SMALL COURTYARD 
ON FLEET STREET. LANDSCAPING, PAVERS, SITE 
AMENITIES AND OUTDOOR LIGHTING WOULD BE 
PROVIDED TO MAKE THIS SPACE A WELCOMING 
BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY.

A LOT MERGER WILL BE PURSUED TO COMBINE LOTS 
14 & 15 INTO ONE SINGLE LOT, WITH A VARIANCE FOR 
UNIFORM APPLICATION OF LOT 14 HEIGHT AND 
STORIES FOR THE WHOLE MERGED LOT. 

EXISTING FOCAL BUILDINGS ON CONGRESS AND HIGH 
STREETS WILL BE REPAIRED, RESTORED AND 
BROUGHT UP TO CURRENT BUILDING AND LIFE 
SAFETY CODES.THE SMALLER WOODEN SHED 
ADDITIONS TO THE REAR OF THESE BUILDINGS WILL 
BE REPLACED WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION.



R 500' - 0"

COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:  1" = 200'-0"

01/13/2022

CONTEXT MAP

ONE MARKET SQUARE
A0.1



COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:
01/13/2022

EXISTING BUILDING PHOTOS
ONE MARKET SQUAREA0.2



COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:
01/13/2022

CONTEXT PHOTOS
ONE MARKET SQUAREA0.3

HIGH STREET

CONGRESS STREET NORTH

CONGRESS STREET SOUTH PLEASANT STREET

FLEET STREET AT HAVEN COURT

LADD STREET

HAVEN COURT



COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:
01/13/2022

HISTORIC CONTEXT
ONE MARKET SQUAREA0.4

1890

1920

1880

1918



COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:
01/13/2022

HISTORIC CONTEXT
ONE MARKET SQUAREA0.5

The Jarvis Bock, originally known as the Fay Block, is at the northwest corner of Congress and High Streets.  This 
block consists of several connected buildings and housed a wide variety of businesses over the years including 
banks, insurers, printers, clothing, dentist, bakery/sweets, restaurant, photographers, and toys, with some 
residences above. The Roman Catholic Church held its first religious service in Portsmouth in the wooden building, 
which was torn down in 1890.
1 Congress Street  - The current three story brick and brownstone building was constructed in 1892 for National 
Mechanic and Traders Bank.  It was designed by Portsmouth architect William Ashe in a Richardsonian 
Romanesque style. Unique gabled dormers, and one of the earliest skylights in Portsmouth adorn the mansard 
roof.  Brownstone lintels, cornice & frieze band, and terracotta rosettes, a pressed metal classical roof curb (partially 
covered with contemporary flashing). The storefront corner was significantly altered in the mid 20th century. The 
current building replaced a late 18th century three-story wood hip-roofed structure, along a much taller brick parti 
wall, suggesting a taller previous structure. 
3-5 Congress Street - A stucco Italianate structure constructed in 1860, the first and second floor storefront and 
fenestration has been significantly altered. The upper floor lintels and pronounced bracketed cornice remain intact, 
with a shallow gable roof beyond. The modified second floor windows were stained glass at mid-20th century.
18 High Street - New-baroque 3 story wooden structure with unusually elaborate and ornate trim detailing.  The 
façade is topped with a distinctive shallow arched pediment. 
0 High Street (Lot 14 parking lot) – was previously the National Hotel, later known as the Dolphin Hotel, built in the 
mid 19th century. This 3 and a half story gable structure had a high level of wood detailing, trim, coining and 
brackets. It was destroyed by fire in 1969.

SANBORN MAP, 1887

SANBORN MAP, 1920

.

DOLPHIN HOTEL / NATIONAL HOTEL, C.1895

DOLPHIN HOTEL / NATIONAL HOTEL, C.1912



COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:

01/13/2022

SITE PLAN - EXISTING

ONE MARKET SQUARE
A1.0



94' - 5"

10' - 0"

20' - 1 3 /4"

68
' - 

7"
22

' - 
5"

20
' - 

2"
59

' - 
7"

ADDITION 
FOOTPRINT - 8,720 SF

ENTRANCE TO UNDERGROUND 
PARKING BELOW

ROOF ADDITIONS 
BEHIND EXISTING 
FACADE

42' - 8"

10
' - 

3"
10

' - 
3"

EA
SE

ME
NT

15
' - 

0" CENTERLINE OF ALLEY EASEMENT

HANOVER PARKING GARAGE

NEWBURY'S
LADD STREET

CONGRESS STREET

RENOVATION 
FOOTPRINT -

3,280 SF

28' - 11 3/4"16' - 0"49' - 5"

34
' - 

7"
34

' - 
0"

COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:  1" = 30'-0"
01/13/2022

SITE PLAN - PROPOSED
ONE MARKET SQUAREA1.1



48
' - 

1"

33
' - 

2"

44
' - 

11
"

41
' - 

0"

PROPOSED ADDITION

32
' - 

6" 44
' - 

8"59
' - 

0"

16
4' 

- 4
"

59
' - 

1"

16
4' 

- 7
"

49
' - 

4"

47
' - 

4"

47
' - 

4"

COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:  1" = 40'-0"
01/13/2022

MASSING STREET SECTIONS
ONE MARKET SQUAREA2.1

1" = 40'-0"1 EAST SIDE OF HIGH STREET

1" = 40'-0"2 WEST SIDE OF HIGH STREET



44
' - 

11
"

33
' - 

6"

30
' - 

1"

35
' - 

0"

41
' - 

0"

38
' - 

9"

48
' - 

7"

34
' - 

10
"

46
' - 

0"

40
' - 

11
"

52
' - 

2"

58
' - 

0"

PROPOSED ADDITION

16
4' 

- 2
"

6 3' -  1 "47
' - 

9"

35
' - 

10
"

41
' - 

3"

COPYRIGHT © 2022

SCALE:  1" = 40'-0"
01/13/2022

MASSING STREET SECTIONS
ONE MARKET SQUAREA2.2

1" = 40'-0"1 CONGRESS STREET - NORTH SIDE

1" = 40'-0"2 Elevation 2 - c  HDC













UP

UP

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8-HC

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

21' - 9 1/2"

bicycles & mopeds6' 
- 0

"
22

' - 
2 7

/8"
STORAGE

010
STORAGE

011

MECHANICAL
006

TRASH
002

ELECTRIC
004

SPRINKLER
005

PARKING
GARAGE

001

STORAGE
008

VEHICLE
ELEVATOR

003

19' - 0"
18' - 11 1/4"

6"

19' - 0" 6"

9' - 6 1/8"

11' - 0"
5' - 0"

9' - 8 3/8"

bicycles & mopeds

27' - 0"

R 22' - 0"

16' - 0 1/8"

19' - 0"
19' - 0"

6"

59
' - 

1 3
/8"

10
9' 

- 1
1 1

/4"

93' - 0 1/8"

118' - 2 1/8"

59' - 10 7/8"

32' - 11"

42' - 8"

55
' -  

6"

37' - 0"
12' - 1 7/8"

43' - 9"

Scale:

Project Number:
Date:

COPYRIGHT © 2022

3 Congress St, Ste 1
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
T 603.731.5187
arcove.com

Ambit Engineering Inc
Civil Engineering
200 Griffin Rd Unit 3
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 430-9282
ambitengineering.com

Terra Firma Landscape
Landscape Architecture
163a Court St
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 531-9109
terrafirmalandarch.com

1/8" = 1'-0"

1/
28

/2
02

2 
4:

40
:4

5 
PM

E:
\U

se
rs

\A
dm

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\1
M

S 
ce

nt
ra

l 2
02

2-
01

-2
5_

Tr
ac

y.
ko

za
k.

rv
t

1002
01/25/2022

BASEMENT
FLOOR PLAN

BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT

ONE MARKET SQUARE

ONE MARKET SQUARE
LLC, OWNER

1 CONGRESS STREET & HIGH STREET
PORTSMOUTH, NH  03801

A.00

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

Map U117 
Lot 14 and Lot 15

Note:  Locations of 
parking spaces, stair 
towers and elevator 
are approximate and 
subject to change.

N

0' 4' 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



UP

DN

-
---

RETAIL
101

RETAIL
103

RETAIL
104

VEHICLE
ELEVATOR

100

20' - 3 3/4"20' - 0"
42' - 11 3/8"

8' - 8 1/8"

32
' - 

9 5
/8"

3' 
- 4

"
31

' - 
4 1

/2"
22

' - 
5 5

/8"

79' - 3 1/ 4"

3' - 10"
3' - 4"

6' - 8"
3' - 4"

8' - 5"
3' - 4"

50' - 4 1/ 4"

89
' - 

11
 5/

8"

108' - 5 3/4"

8' - 5 1/4"

32' - 10 7/8"

42' - 8"

59' - 10 1/4"

EQ EQ

6' 
- 6

"
8' 

-  3
"

3' 
-  4

"
4' 

-  4
 5 /

8"

HI
GH

 S
TR

EE
T

Scale:

Project Number:
Date:

COPYRIGHT © 2022

3 Congress St, Ste 1
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
T 603.731.5187
arcove.com

Ambit Engineering Inc
Civil Engineering
200 Griffin Rd Unit 3
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 430-9282
ambitengineering.com

Terra Firma Landscape
Landscape Architecture
163a Court St
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 531-9109
terrafirmalandarch.com

1/8" = 1'-0"

1/
28

/2
02

2 
4:

41
:0

6 
PM

E:
\U

se
rs

\A
dm

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\1
M

S 
ce

nt
ra

l 2
02

2-
01

-2
5_

Tr
ac

y.
ko

za
k.

rv
t

1002
01/25/2022

FIRST FLOOR
PLAN

BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT

ONE MARKET SQUARE

ONE MARKET SQUARE
LLC, OWNER

1 CONGRESS STREET & HIGH STREET
PORTSMOUTH, NH  03801

A.01

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

Map U117 
Lot 14 and Lot 15

Note:  Locations of 
parking spaces, stair 
towers and elevator 
are approximate and 
subject to change.

N

0' 4' 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



DN

OFFICE
302

OFFICE
210

OFFICE
211

83' - 3 1/8"
8' - 8 1/8"

79
' - 

3 1
/8"

22
' - 

5 5
/8"

67
' - 

6"

59' - 10 3/8"

32' - 10 5/8"

108' - 6 1/4"

8' - 8 3/8"

42' - 6 1/2"

Scale:

Project Number:
Date:

COPYRIGHT © 2022

3 Congress St, Ste 1
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
T 603.731.5187
arcove.com

Ambit Engineering Inc
Civil Engineering
200 Griffin Rd Unit 3
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 430-9282
ambitengineering.com

Terra Firma Landscape
Landscape Architecture
163a Court St
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 531-9109
terrafirmalandarch.com

1/8" = 1'-0"

1/
28

/2
02

2 
4:

41
:2

7 
PM

E:
\U

se
rs

\A
dm

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\1
M

S 
ce

nt
ra

l 2
02

2-
01

-2
5_

Tr
ac

y.
ko

za
k.

rv
t

1002
01/25/2022

SECOND FLOOR
PLAN

BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT

ONE MARKET SQUARE

ONE MARKET SQUARE
LLC, OWNER

1 CONGRESS STREET & HIGH STREET
PORTSMOUTH, NH  03801

A.02

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

Map U117 
Lot 14 and Lot 15

Note:  Locations of 
parking spaces, stair 
towers and elevator 
are approximate and 
subject to change.

N

0' 4' 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



OFFICE
301

OFFICE
310

OFFICE
311

79
' - 

3 1
/8"

22
' - 

5 5
/8"

67
' - 

6"

60' - 11 5/8"

32' - 11"

83' - 3 1/8"
8' - 8 1/8"

108' - 6 1/4"

8' - 8 3/8"

42' - 6 1/2"

Scale:

Project Number:
Date:

COPYRIGHT © 2022

3 Congress St, Ste 1
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
T 603.731.5187
arcove.com

Ambit Engineering Inc
Civil Engineering
200 Griffin Rd Unit 3
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 430-9282
ambitengineering.com

Terra Firma Landscape
Landscape Architecture
163a Court St
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 531-9109
terrafirmalandarch.com

1/8" = 1'-0"

1/
28

/2
02

2 
4:

41
:4

4 
PM

E:
\U

se
rs

\A
dm

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\1
M

S 
ce

nt
ra

l 2
02

2-
01

-2
5_

Tr
ac

y.
ko

za
k.

rv
t

1002
01/25/2022

THIRD FLOOR
PLAN

BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT

ONE MARKET SQUARE

ONE MARKET SQUARE
LLC, OWNER

1 CONGRESS STREET & HIGH STREET
PORTSMOUTH, NH  03801

A.03

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

Map U117 
Lot 14 and Lot 15

Note:  Locations of 
parking spaces, stair 
towers and elevator 
are approximate and 
subject to change.

N

0' 4' 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



OFFICE
401

OFFICE
410

OFFICE
411

DECK

DECK

32' - 9 3/4"

18
' - 

7 7
/8"

91
' - 

6 1
/8"

60
' - 

0 1
/8"

59' - 9 3/8"

83' - 3 1/8"
8' - 8 5/8"

108' - 5 5/8"

8' - 8 3/4"

46' - 0 1/2"

Scale:

Project Number:
Date:

COPYRIGHT © 2022

3 Congress St, Ste 1
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
T 603.731.5187
arcove.com

Ambit Engineering Inc
Civil Engineering
200 Griffin Rd Unit 3
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 430-9282
ambitengineering.com

Terra Firma Landscape
Landscape Architecture
163a Court St
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 531-9109
terrafirmalandarch.com

1/8" = 1'-0"

1/
28

/2
02

2 
4:

41
:5

8 
PM

E:
\U

se
rs

\A
dm

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\1
M

S 
ce

nt
ra

l 2
02

2-
01

-2
5_

Tr
ac

y.
ko

za
k.

rv
t

1002
01/25/2022

FOURTH FLOOR
PLAN

BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT

ONE MARKET SQUARE

ONE MARKET SQUARE
LLC, OWNER

1 CONGRESS STREET & HIGH STREET
PORTSMOUTH, NH  03801

A.04

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

Map U117 
Lot 14 and Lot 15

Note:  Locations of 
parking spaces, stair 
towers and elevator 
are approximate and 
subject to change.

N

0' 4' 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



18
" /

 12
"

18" / 12"

18" / 12"

18" / 12"
1 1/2" / 12"

1 1/2" / 12"

[No Slope]

[No Slope]

[No Slope]

46' - 10"

55' - 0"

34' - 0"

44' - 10"

34' - 0"

50' - 8"

Scale:

Project Number:
Date:

COPYRIGHT © 2022

3 Congress St, Ste 1
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
T 603.731.5187
arcove.com

Ambit Engineering Inc
Civil Engineering
200 Griffin Rd Unit 3
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 430-9282
ambitengineering.com

Terra Firma Landscape
Landscape Architecture
163a Court St
Portsmouth NH 03801
(603) 531-9109
terrafirmalandarch.com

1/8" = 1'-0"

1/
28

/2
02

2 
4:

42
:1

5 
PM

E:
\U

se
rs

\A
dm

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\1
M

S 
ce

nt
ra

l 2
02

2-
01

-2
5_

Tr
ac

y.
ko

za
k.

rv
t

1002
01/25/2022

ROOF PLAN

BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT

ONE MARKET SQUARE

ONE MARKET SQUARE
LLC, OWNER

1 CONGRESS STREET & HIGH STREET
PORTSMOUTH, NH  03801

A.05

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

Map U117 
Lot 14 and Lot 15

Note:  Locations of 
parking spaces, stair 
towers and elevator 
are approximate and 
subject to change.

N

0' 4' 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0' 4' 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"































































































Chuck and Allison Dudas 
32 Monteith Street 

Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 
March 16th, 2022 
 
City of Portsmouth 
c/o Peter Stith  
Zoning Board of Adjustment  
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 
Re:  Variance Application  
 Tax Map 143 Lot 22 
 32 Monteith St  
 Portsmouth, NH 03801  
 
Dear Peter, 
 
We are pleased to submit this memo and the attached documents in support of 
Zoning Relief for the construction of a garage with an accessory dwelling unit above 
within the side setback to be considered by the ZBA at the April 19, 2022 meeting.   
 
Exhibits:  

 Site Plan  
 Plan Set- issued by Amy Dutton Home 
 Site Photographs  
 Tax Map 143 

 
Property/Project  
 
32 Monteith is a 30,644 sq ft lot with a single family home. The property is located in 
the Single Residence A District and borders North Mill Pond with street frontage 
along Monteith St and Thornton St. We are proposing to demolish the existing shed 
that is 2’ from the side property line and require relief to construct an attached 
garage with accessory dwelling unit above that would be 8’ from the side property 
line.  
 
The project received a Wetlands Conditional Use Permit in June 2020 which showed 
the proposed garage at 10’ from the side property line. A 1-year extension was 
granted to the Wetlands Conditional Use Permit in June 2021.  
 
This variance application is a modification of the plans approved for the Wetlands 
Conditional Use Permit in that the proposed garage footprint is enlarged by 2’ in 



width and would be within the 10’ side yard setback.  No changes have been made 
to the plans within the 100’ wetlands buffer.  
 
The project is seeking the variance to enlarge the garage by 2’ in width due to the 
location of the existing gas meter along the house. The existing gas meter will 
require bollards to be placed in front of it which will impact the placement of the 
garage doors and vehicle entry/exit of the garage. Without the additional 2’ in 
width, the bollards could result in only allowing a single vehicle to utilize the two-
car garage.  
 
The project is pursing a conditional use permit for the attached dwelling unit 
located above the garage at the April 21, 2022 Planning Board meeting.  
 
 
Relief Required 
Variance Section/Requirement  Existing  Proposed  
Portsmouth Zoning Ordinance 
10.521: Dimensional Standards  
10’ Minimum Side Yard 
Dimension  

2’  8’  

 
 
Variance Criteria 
 
The	variances	will	not	be	contrary	to	the	public	interest	and	the	spirit	of	the	ordinance	
is	observed.		
 
The existing property is currently non-conforming with the shed located 2’ from the 
side property line. The demolition of the shed and construction of a garage/ADU 
located 8’ from the side property line would bring the property more in line with 
Zoning Ordinance which is a benefit to abutters and the greater public.  
 
Denial	of	the	variances	results	in	an	unnecessary	hardship.		
 
As noted above, due to the existing location of the gas meter and requirement for 
bollards in front of the gas meter, denial of the variance may impact whether the 
proposed 2-car garage can be utilized for its intended purpose.  
 
Substantial	justice	will	be	done	by	granting	the	variance.		
 
There would be no harm done to the public by granting this variance.  
 
Granting	the	variance	will	not	dimmish	surrounding	property	values.		
	



The values of the surrounding properties will not be diminished by granting the 
variance. The project is in keeping with the character of the neighborhood and of the 
existing house.  
	
	
For the reasons described above, we respectfully request the Board grant this 
variance.  
 
 
 
Respectfully,  
 

         
 
 
Chuck & Allison Dudas 



N
A

D
8

3
(
2

0
1

1
)

100'

 
M

a
y
 
0
1
,
 
2
0
2
0
 
-
 
1
0
:
4
6
a
m

\
\
T

F
M

-
B

E
D

F
O

R
D

4
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
C

i
v
i
l
-
S

u
r
v
e
y
\
M

S
C

 
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
4
7
3
7
5
 
-
 
3
2
 
M

o
n
t
i
e
t
h
 
S

t
 
-
 
P

o
r
t
s
m

o
u
t
h
\
4
7
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
-
 
D

u
d
a
s
 
-
 
3
2
 
M

o
n
t
e
i
t
h
 
S

t
\
C

a
r
l
s
o
n
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
\
D

w
g
s
\
4
7
3
7
5
-
0
0
S

u
r
v
e
y
.
d
w

g

LOCATION PLAN

Ó

MSC

A division of TFMoran, Inc.

NOTES:

SKETCH PLAN

32 MONTEITH STREET

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

CHARLES & ALLISON DUDAS

SITE

NORTH

MILL

POND

05-01-2020
5/1/2020



A1

SHEET:

SCALE:

DATE:

1/26/22

C
O
N
TA

C
T:

A
M
Y
	D
U
TT

O
N
	H
O
M
E

9	
W
A
LK

E
R
	S
TR

E
E
T	
|	K

IT
TE

R
Y
,	M

E
am

y@
am

yd
ut
to
nh
om

e.
co
m

20
7.
70
3.
06
96

SCALED	FOR:
24"	X	36"

C
LI
E
N
T:

C
ha
rle
s	
an
d	
A
lli
so
n	
D
ud
as

32
	M
on
te
ith
	S
tre

et
P
or
ts
m
ou
th
,	N

H

O
V
E
R
V
IE
W

DRAWING	SCALE

OVERVIEW
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

SPECIFICATIONS	+	NOTES
*ROOFING	MATERIAL:	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*ALL	TRIM	PACKAGE:	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*SIDING:	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*BRACKETS:	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*STAIR	SYSTEM:

_EXTERIOR:
*BROSCO:	Liberty	Extruded	Rail	System
*RISER:	AZEC-	WHITE
*TREAD:	SELECTWOOD,	ZURI	"Weathered

Grey"
_INTERIOR:

*NEWEL
*HANDRAIL
*BALUSTERS
*RISER	FINISH
*TREAD

*WINDOWS:
_MANUFRACTURER:
_EXT.	FINISH:
_INT.	FINISH:

*DOORS:	
_MANUFRACTURER:
_EXT.	FINISH:
_INT.	FINISH:

*FLOORING:
_1ST	FLOOR:	WOOD
_2ND	FLOOR:	WOOD
_REFINISH	AREAS:

*KITCHEN:
_CABINETRY	NOTES:	SPECS	TO	BE	PREPARED	

*MANTLE:
_BUILT-IN	IN	GREATROOM	AND	AROUND

FIREPLACE

*FIREPLACE:
_GAS
_WOOD:	INT.	FIREBOX:	RED	BRICK	VS.	YELLOW

BRICK
_HEARTH:	RAISED	VS.	FLUSH

*MATERIAL:

NOTES:
*CEILING	HEIGHTS:	1ST	FLOOR:	8'-6"	|	2ND	FLOOR:	7'-8"
*CORNER	BOARDS:	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*WATER	TABLE:	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*RAKE	BOARD:	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*SOFFIT	-	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*ROOF	VENT	-	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
*WINDOW	TRIM:	TO	MATCH	EXISTING

GENERAL	NOTES:
1. DO	NOT	SCALE	DRAWINGS
2. ALL	TRASH	GENERATED	BY	THE	CONTRACTOR	WILL	BE	PLACED	IN	A	TRASH	CONTAINER	PROVIDED	BY	THE	CONTRACTOR
ON	SITE	AT	THE	END	OF	EACH	DAY.

3. VERIFY	ALL	DIMENSIONS,	CONDITIONS,	AND	UTILITY	LOCATIONS	ON	THE	JOB	SITE	PRIOR	TO	BEGINNING	ANY	WORK	OR
ORDERING	ANY	MATERIAL.	NOTIFY	DESIGNER	OF	ANY	CONFLICTS	OR	DISCREPANCIES	IN	THE	DOCUMENTS	IMMEDIATELY.

4. ALL	ELECTRICAL	AND	MECHANICAL	WORK	SHALL	BE	PERFORMED	BY	SUB-CONTRACTOR	AND	COORDINATED	BY	THE
GENERAL	CONTRACTOR	AND	INTERIOR	DESIGNER	WITH	RESPECT	TO	LIGHTING	AND	CEILING	DETAILS.

5. COORDINATE	ALL	ELECTRICAL	AND	MECHANICAL	FIXTURES	TO	FIT	WITHIN	CEILING,	FLOOR,	AND	WALL	SPACES.	VERIFY
LOCATIONS	WITH	DESIGNER.

6. IT	IS	THE	INTENT	AND	MEANING	OF	THESE	DOCUMENTS	THAT	THE	CONTRACTOR	AND	EACH	SUBCONTRACTOR	PROVIDE	ALL
LABOR,	TRANSPORTATION,	SUPPLIES,	EQUIPTMENT,	ETC.	TO	COMPLETE	THE	WORK	WITHIN	THE	RECOGNIZED	STANDARDS
OF	THE	CONSTRUCTION	INDUSTRY.

DRAWING	INDEX
1 OVERVIEW
2 SITE	PLAN
3 DEMO
4 FOUNDATION
5 FIRST	FLOOR
6 SECOND	FLOOR
7 ROOFS
8 ELEVATIONS
9 ELEVATIONS
10 SECTIONS
11 FRAMING
12 FRAMING
13 FRAMING
14 ELECTRICAL
						

N.T.S
.



UP

DN

UP

UP

UP

26
'

18'-10	1/2"

15
'-5
	1
/2
"

8'-5"24'-1"

8'
-7
"

24
'

100'-1.068"

19'

15
'

15'-4"

19'

14
'-1
1	
15

/1
6"

10'
12:00	P

M	10/15/1
9 MA

P	1
43

LO
T	2
2

30
,64
4±

S.F
.

(0
.70
3±

AC
RE
S)

GM

~

CR
EE

K

H
IG
H
ES

T	
O
BS

ER
VA

BL
E

TI
D
E/
H
IG
H
	W
AT

ER

M
AR

K	
9/
23
/1
9

N
O
R
TH

	M
IL
L	
P
O
N
D

HIGHE
ST	OBS

ERVAB
LE

TIDE/H
IGH	WATER

MARK	
9/23/19

24
"	C
LA
Y

IN
V.=

0.8

CB
#1
09
1

RI
M	
EL
.=8
.0MONTEITH	STREET

(PUBLIC	R.O.W.)

FO
UN
D	1
½"

IRO
N	P
IPE
	0.
40
	B.
G.

9/2
3/2
01
9

FO
UN
D	
1½
"	IR

ON

PIP
E	F

LU
SH

9/2
3/2
01
9

TH
O
RN
TO
N
	S
TR
EE
T

(P
U
BL
IC
	R
.O
.W
.)

CB
#1
05
6

RI
M	
EL
.=1
3.0
3

DM
H#
10
57

RI
M	
EL
.=1
3.1
7

FO
UN
D	
1½
"	IR

ON
	PI
PE

0.4
0	A

.G
.	9
/23
/20
19

FO
UN
D	
4"X

4"	
CO

NC
.	B
OU

ND

0.6
0	B

G	
9/2
3/2
01
9

FO
UN
D	1
½"
	IR
ON
	PI
PE

0.
30
	BG
	9/
23
/20
19

SE
PT
IC

CO
VE
R

#3
2

EX
IST

IN
G

BU
ILD

IN
G

IN
V.=

6.9
6

IN
V.=

6.9
6

GA
RA
GE

100
'	W

ET
LAN

D

BU
FFE

R

ED
GE

	OF

WE
TLA

ND

(T
ID
A
L)

PROPERTY	LINE

15
'	F
R
O
N
T

S
E
TB

A
C
K 10'	SIDE	SETBACK

FO
UN
D	
2"	
IR
ON

	PI
PE

2.3
	A.
G.

9/2
3/2
01
9

20'	REAR	SETBACK 30
"	R
CP

IN
V.=

5.9

SH
ED

15
0'

NA
TU
RA

L
W
O
O
DL
AN

D
BU

FF
ER

25
0'	
SH

O
RE

LA
ND

BU
FF
ER

50
'	P
RI
M
AR

Y

ST
RU

CT
UR

E
SE
TB
AC

K

30
"

RC
P

IN
V.=

5.9

TIE
	LIN

E

20
4'
±	
AL
O
N
G

H
IG
H
	W
AT

ER
	M
AR

K

222'±	ALONG
CENTERLINE	OF	CREEK

SEE	NOTE	12

PR
OP
OS
ED

AD
DI
TIO

N

PR
OP
OS
ED

DE
CK

PR
OP
OS
ED

GA
RA
GE

52
9	S

F

18
3	S

F

49
5	S

F

28
3	S

F

PR
OP
OS
ED

DR
IVE

WA
Y

41
	SF

RE
LO
CA

TE
D

SH
ED13
0	S

F

13
3	S

F

NOTE:	12"	STEP-
IN

MONTEITH
STREET

P
R
O
P
E
R
TY

	L
IN
E

15'	SETBACK

10
'	S

E
TB

A
C
K

A2

SHEET:

SCALE:

DATE:

1/26/22

C
O
N
TA

C
T:

A
M
Y
	D
U
TT

O
N
	H
O
M
E

9	
W
A
LK

E
R
	S
TR

E
E
T	
|	K

IT
TE

R
Y
,	M

E
am

y@
am

yd
ut
to
nh
om

e.
co
m

20
7.
70
3.
06
96

SCALED	FOR:
24"	X	36"

C
LI
E
N
T:

C
ha
rle
s	
an
d	
A
lli
so
n	
D
ud
as

32
	M
on
te
ith
	S
tre

et
P
or
ts
m
ou
th
,	N

H

SITE	PLAN
SCALE:	1"	=	20'-0"

S
IT
E
	P
LA

N

DRAWING	SCALE

CALCULATIONS
ZONING	MAXIMUMS:
front	setback:	 15'
rear	setback: 20'
side	setbacks:	 10'
lot	coverage:	 25%

EXISTING	CONDITIONS:
LOT	SIZE:	0.70	ACRES
GROSS	SF: 2,544
LIVABLE	SF: 1,534
	FIRST	FLOOR:	 694	SF
	UPPER	STORY: 560	SF
	HALF	STORY: 280	SF
EXISTING	SETBACKS:
			FRONT: 6	FT,	SECONDARY	FRONT:	90	FT
			REAR: 129	FT	(TO	GARAGE)
			LEFT: 35	FT	TO	WETLAND
			RIGHT: 2	FT	(TO	SHED)
EXISTING	LOT	COVERAGE:	809	+	496	+	130	=	1435	/	30644	=	4.7%
EXISTING	PARCEL	AREA:	0.033	ACRES

PROPOSED	CONDITIONS:
LIVABLE	SF: 2,655
	FIRST	FLOOR:	 1321	SF
	UPPER	STORY: 1054	SF
	HALF	STORY: 280	SF
PROPOSED	SETBACKS:
			FRONT: 6	FT
			REAR: 20	FT
			LEFT: 47	FT	TO	WETLAND
			RIGHT: 10	FT
PROPOSED	LOT	COVERAGE:	762	+	497	+	285+	658	+	130	=	2332	/
30644	=	7.6%
PROPOSED	PARCEL	AREA:	0.054	ACRES

=	ADDITION	&	DECK	~	778	SF
=	GARAGE	/	MUDROOM	~	662	SF

=	GARAGE	AND	SHED	TO	BE
REMOVED	~	630	SF

SITE	PLAN	LEGEND

DRAWING	INDEX
1 OVERVIEW
2 SITE	PLAN
3 DEMO
4 FOUNDATION
5 FIRST	FLOOR
6 SECOND	FLOOR
7 ROOFS
8 ELEVATIONS
9 ELEVATIONS
10 SECTIONS
11 FRAMING
12 FRAMING
13 FRAMING
14 ELECTRICAL
						

710 SF

8 FT

710 2384

7.7%
0.055

8'

57
6



S S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

26
59

26
59

30310

26
10
LS

W04W04

W04W04

W04W04

W04W04

UP

UP

494	sq	ft

720.25	sq	ft

30.34	sq	ft

28682868

3068

28682868

7'
-1
0"

24" 24"

10"

12
"

12
"

4"	LALLYS

DOUBLE	P.T.	PLATE
T.B.D

#4	REBAR		2"	CLEAR

FLOOR	JOISTS	T.B.D.	(SEE	ENGINEER'S	SPECS	ATTACHED)

2x6

#4	REBAR		2"	CLEAR

FLOOR	JOISTS	T.B.D.	(SEE	ENGINEER'S	SPECS	ATTACHED)

28682868

3068

28682868

TYPICAL	WALL	SECTION

R-30	FLOOR

R-19		WALLS

R-38	CEILING

ENGINEERED	TRUSS	SYSTEM	(SEE	SPECS	ATTACHED)

3/4"	ADVANTEC	or	EQUIV.
SUBFLOOR	GLUED

1/2"	DRYWALL

CONTINUOUS
VENTED
SOFFIT

CONTINUOUS
RIDGE	VENT

PROPER	VENT

DRIP	EDGE

1/2"	DRYWALL

5/8"	x	12"	ANCHOR	BOLTS

	
	

VINYL	SIDING	ON
ZIPWALL	SYSTEM		5/8"

ROOF	7/16"	WALL
SHEATHING

ASPHALT	SHINGLES	on	15#	FELT	w
ONE	COURSE	of	ICE	&	WATER
SHIELD	at	EAVES	&	VALLEYS

E6
10
E6
10E

le
va
tio
n	
6

E8
10
E8
10

Elevation	8

E9E9
Elevation	9

E11E11
Elevation	11

38'-11	5/8" 4'-2	1/8"

43'-1	3/4"

10'-7	1/2" 12'-11	3/4"

23'-7	1/4"

5'
-6
	1
/8
"

18
'-5
	7
/8
"

24
'

51
'-8
"

7'
-1
0	
5/
8"

7'
-1
1	
7/
8"

11
'-9
	1
/2
"

15
'-1
0	
1/
2"

23'-10"8'-8"

66'-9"

5'-4"28'-11"

34'-3"

8'
-6
"

15
'-2
"

15
'-2
"

8'-8"

8'
-6
"

23'-10"

24
'

19'

26
'

1'
1'

12
'-8
"

15'-3"

19'

5'
-1
"

15
'-1
0"

5'
-1
"

9'-7"9'-5"

9'-5" 9'-7"

6'
-1
"

4'-8"

11'-1" 13'-2"

8'
-9
"

1'-4"

18'-4"	X	26'-4"
482	SQ	FT

17'-10"	X	24'-4"
434	SQ	FT

7'-10"	X	6'-11"
69	SQ	FT

22'-2"	X	22'-4"
495	SQ	FT

PROPOSED	GARAGE	SLOPED	SLAB
(45"	BELOW	EXISTING	HOUSE

FLOOR)

SLAB

SLAB

SAW	CUT	BELOW
WINDOW	FOR	FULL
BASEMENT	ACCESS

SUMP	PIT

FUTURE	BILCO	'C'
SIZE	BULKHEAD
(VERIFY	WALL
DIMENSIONS
NEEDED	BY

MANUFACTURER)

RADON	VENT	UP

SAW	CUT	BELOW
WINDOW	FOR	FULL
BASEMENT	ACCESS

SLAB	FOR	ENTRY	45"
BELOW		EXISTING	HOUSE

FLOOR)

2'	x	2'	x	12"	Deep	Pad

C
E
N
TE

R
LI
N
E
	o
f	G

A
R
A
G
E
	D
O
O
R

NEW	16"	WIDE	by	12"
DEEP	FOOTING

NEW	FOUNDATION	&
DOWELED	TO	OLD
FOUNDATION	W	#4

REBAR	@	1'CENTERS	2"
CLEAR	MIN.	4"	EMBED

NEW	FOUNDATION
DOWELED	TO	OLD
FOUNDATION	W	#4

REBAR	@	1'CENTERS	2"
CLEAR	MIN.	4"	EMBED

26
13

LS
26

13
LS

2610LS

26
10

LS

30310

18'-4"	X	26'-4"

81	SQ	FT
LIVING	AREA

SLAB

=	ADDITION

LEGEND

GENERIC	WINDOW	SCHEDULE	(VERIFY	R.O.	FROM	MANUFACTURER)
NUMBER LABEL QTY FLOOR SIZE WIDTH HEIGHT EGRESS
W01 1933SC 		2 1 1933SC 21	" 39	"
W02 7148MU 		1 2 7148 85	" 56	"
W03 2024FX 		4 2 2024FX 24	" 28	"
W04 2613LS 		4 0 2613LS 30	" 15	"
W06 2656DH 		8 1 2656DH 30	" 65	1/2	"
W07 3050DH 		2 2 3050DH 36	" 60	" YES
W08 5448MU 		2 2 5448 64	" 55	1/2	"
W09 5636MU 		1 3 5636 66	" 42	"
W10 5636MU 		1 3 5636 66	7/16	" 42	"
W11 61056MU 		1 1 61056 82	" 65	1/2	"

GENERIC	DOOR	SCHEDULE	(VERIFY	R.O.	FROM	MANUFACTURER)
NUMBER LABEL QTY FLOOR SIZE WIDTH HEIGHT
D01 2268 		1 2 2268	L	IN 26	" 80	"
D02 2468 		1 2 2468	R	IN 28	" 80	"
D03 2868 		2 2 2868	L	IN 32	" 80	"
D04 2878 		1 1 2878	L	EX 32	" 92	"
D05 2268 		1 2 2268	R 26	" 80	"
D06 2468 		1 2 2468	L 28	" 80	"
D07 2668 		2 2 2668	L	IN 30	" 80	"
D08 1968 		1 2 1968	R	IN 21	" 80	"
D09 2068 		1 2 2068	R	IN 24	" 80	"
D10 1768 		1 1 1768	R	IN 19	" 80	"
D11 3668 		1 1 3668	L/R	IN 42	" 80	"
D12 2068 		1 1 2068	L 24	" 80	"
D13 3068 		1 2 3068	L	EX 36	" 80	"
D14 4068 		1 2 4068	L/R	IN 48	" 80	"
D15 2668 		1 2 2668	R	IN 30	" 80	"
D17 9080 		2 1 9080 108	" 96	"

A4

SHEET:

SCALE:

DATE:

1/26/22

C
O
N
TA

C
T:

A
M
Y
	D
U
TT

O
N
	H
O
M
E

9	
W
A
LK

E
R
	S
TR

E
E
T	
|	K

IT
TE

R
Y
,	M

E
am

y@
am

yd
ut
to
nh
om

e.
co
m

20
7.
70
3.
06
96

1/4"	=	1'-0"

SCALED	FOR:
24"	X	36"

C
LI
E
N
T:

C
ha
rle
s	
an
d	
A
lli
so
n	
D
ud
as

32
	M
on
te
ith
	S
tre

et
P
or
ts
m
ou
th
,	N

H

FO
U
N
D
A
TI
O
N

PROPOSED	FOUNDATION	PLAN
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

EXISTING	FOUNDATION	PLAN
SCALE:	1/8"	=	1'-0"

DRAWING	SCALE

WINDOW	NOTES:
1 WOOD	INTERIOR	WITH	CLAD	EXTERIOR
2 FULL	SCREENS	ON	ALL	WINDOWS
3 INTERIOR	WINDOW	COLOR:	TBD
4 EXTERIOR	WINDOW	COLOR:	TBD
5 HARDWARE	MATERIAL:	TBD
6 MANUFACTURER:	MARVIN	ELEVATE	(WOOD,	CLAD)	ESSENTIAL	(CLAD,
CLAD),	SIGNATURE	COLLECTION

7 WINDOW	ROUGH	OPENING:	1/2"	FOR	TOP/BOTTOM	&	1/2"	FOR	SIDES
8 BEDROOM	WINDOWS	SILL	FINISHED	MUST	BE	WITHIN	44:	OF	THE	FLOOR
AND	PROVIDE	MINIMUM	CLEAR	OPENINGS	OF	5.7	SQFT	WITH	HEIGHT
DIMENSION	NOT	LESS	THAN	24"	AND	WIDTH	DIMENSION	NOT	LESS	THAN
20"	AS	TO	MEET	EGRESS

DOOR	NOTES:
1 DOORS	SHALL	BE	96"
2 ALL	DOORS	SHALL	BE	SOLID	CORE	1-3/4"	THICK
3 INTERIOR	DOORS	SHALL	BE	PTD.	OR	STAINED,	VERIFY	WITH	DESIGNER
4 DOORS	BETWEEN	GARAGE	AND	LIVING	AREA	SHOULD	BE	1-3/4"	TIGHT
FITTING	SOLID	CORE	DOORS

5 EXTERIOR	EXIT	DOORS	SHALL	BE	36"	MIN.
NET	CLEAR	DOORWAY	SHALL	BE	32"	MIN.
DOOR	SHALL	BE	OPENABLE	FROM	INSIDE
6 GARAGE	DOORS	TO	BE	SECTIONAL	INSULATED,	OVERHEAD	DOORS.
GLASS	PANELS	TO	BE	INSULATED

7 ALL	GLAZING	WITHIN	18IN.	OF	THE	FLOOR	AND/OR	WITHIN	24	IN.	OF	ANY
DOOR	ARE	TO	HAVE	SAFETY	GLAZING

8 ALL	TUB	AND	SHOWER	ENCLOSURES	ARE	TO	BE	GLAZED	WITH	SAFETY
GLASS

9 BARN	DOORS,	MEASURE	TO	FIT	OPENING.	ALL	HARDWARE	TO	BE
STAINLESS

DRAWING	INDEX
1 OVERVIEW
2 SITE	PLAN
3 DEMO
4 FOUNDATION
5 FIRST	FLOOR
6 SECOND	FLOOR
7 ROOFS
8 ELEVATIONS
9 ELEVATIONS
10 SECTIONS
11 FRAMING
12 FRAMING
13 FRAMING
14 ELECTRICAL
						



B3336B3336

bench

B3036

RB3636

1DB24
WOLF-	
MD24TE/S

B2136RB2836 B3036 B2136R

TRASH/	RECYCLE D/W	_	ASKO
D5556XXLFI

B
39
18

14
B
39
18

14

bench

B3036

RB3636

1DB24
WOLF-	
MD24TE/S

B2136RB2836 B3036 B2136R

TRASH/	RECYCLE D/W	_	ASKO
D5556XXLFI

B
39
18

14
B
39
18

14

HBLP651UCHBLP651UC

U
17
24

10
5R

U
17
24

10
3L

OTC302790

REFRIGERATOR	CABINET_SUBZERO	-	IC-36ROD-RH

U242490R

W421513

W2142L W2142R

204
0D
H

3440FX

2040DH

3068

30
68

10
07
6

28
68

26
48
D
H

26
48
D
H

26
48
D
H

4068

W01W01 W01W01

26
33
D
H

30
68

30
68

W06W06W06W06

4014AW

4014AW 4014AW 4014AW

2568

26
43
D
H

30
68

D17D17D17D17

3068

W06W06

W06W06

W06W06

W06W06

W06W06

W06W06

W11W11 D04D04

D12D12

D11D11

D10D10

UP

DN

UP

UP

UP

		B
ea

m
	S
iz
e	
T.
B
.D
.

		B
ea

m
	S
iz
e	
T.
B
.D
.

E3
8
E3
8

Back	Elevation

E6
10
E6
10E

le
va
tio
n	
6

E8
10
E8
10

Elevation	8

E9E9
Elevation	9

E11E11
Elevation	11

10'-2"

7'-2"

1'
-2
"

1'-5" 1'-7"

11" 6'-0	5/8" 12'

1'-6	3/4"
11	1/2"

5	3/4"
2	1/2"

11
'-6
	3
/4
"

11'-6"11'-5	3/4"

3'

5'
-2
	1
/2
"

1'-3"

6'-11	5/8"

4'

6	1/2"

4'
-5
	1
/4
"

2'-8"

26'-11	5/8" 1'-8	1/8" 1'-8	1/4" 3'-11	3/4" 1'-8	3/4"1'-10	1/8"1'-1"

43'-1	3/4"

5'
-1
1	
3/
4"

23'-7	1/4"

24
'

7'-11	1/8"

6'
-7
	3
/4
"

3'-8	5/8"

4'

4'-2	3/8"

3'
-9
"

19'

15
'

4'-10"

3'
-6
	3
/4
"

2'
-1
"

4'-1" 1'-3"

4'-0	3/4"

8'
-7
"

24'-1"

15
'-5
	1
/2
"

8'-5"

26
'

1'
1'

3'-6	1/2" 5'-5" 6'-5" 4'-5" 4'

2'
-7
"

2'
-5
"

10
'-1
"

7'
14

'
3'

10
'-5
"

15'-4	1/2"

2'
-2
	1
/2
"

2'
-1
1"

2'
-1
1"

9'
-1
1"

2'
-1
1"

2'
-1
1"

2'
-2
	1
/2
"

9'-5" 5'-2	3/4" 4'-2	3/4"

4'-6	5/8"9'-9	5/8"4'-6	1/4"

4'7'-10"	X	6'-3"
49	SQ	FT

6'-11"	X	5'-10"
41	SQ	FT

23'-2"	X	23'-0"
532	SQ	FT

15'-10"	X	25'-0"
449	SQ	FT

7'-10"	X	8'-3"
64	SQ	FT

19'-0"	X	14'-11"
283	SQ	FT

LIVING	AREA

PORCH

PROPOSED	GREAT	ROOM
(14"	BELOW	MAIN	HOUSE

FLOOR)

MUDROOM

GARAGE

ENTRY

RELOCATED	E.	PANEL

DECK

FACED	W
CABINET
MATERIAL

BENCH

4"
	W

A
LL
	T
O
	B
E
C
O
M
E
	6
"

DECK	STEPS	DOWN	7"	FROM	FIRST	FLOOR

204
0D
H

3440FX

2040DH

3068

27
48

D
H

28
68

26
48

D
H

26
48

D
H

26
48

D
H

41168

39
40

FX

30
68

26
13

FX

28
68

1840DH

18
40
DH

2568

2868

2633DH 2748DH 2748DH

DN

DN

UP

10'-2"

7'-2"

1'
-2
"

1'-5" 1'-7"

11" 6'-0	5/8" 12'

1'-6	3/4"
11	1/2"

5	3/4"
2	1/2"

11
'-6
	3
/4
"

15
'-5
	1
/2
"

11'-6"

4'-6	1/8"

1'-7	1/2"

1'-6"

4'
-8
"

11'-5	3/4"

2'
-4
	1
/2
"

7'
-4
	1
/4
"

3'
-2
	1
/2
"

4'-6"2'

15
'-5
	1
/2
"

3'

8'-6	3/4"

5'-0	5/8"

12
'-5
	1
/2
"

5'
-2
	1
/4
"

4"

6'-11	5/8"

4'

6	1/2"

4'
-5
"

2'-8"

8	
1/
4"

2'-9"	X	5'-1"
DECK

=	EXISTING	EXTERIOR	WALL

=	NEW	EXTERIOR	WALL

=	INTERIOR	6

=	EXISTING	INTERIOR	4

=	NEW	INTERIOR	4

=	GLASS	TOP	TILE	BOTTOM	PONY	WALL

=	GLASS	SHOWER	WALL

WALL	LEGEND

GENERIC	WINDOW	SCHEDULE	(VERIFY	R.O.	FROM	MANUFACTURER)
NUMBER LABEL QTY FLOOR SIZE WIDTH HEIGHT EGRESS
W01 1933SC 		2 1 1933SC 21	" 39	"
W02 7148MU 		1 2 7148 85	" 56	"
W03 2024FX 		4 2 2024FX 24	" 28	"
W04 2613LS 		4 0 2613LS 30	" 15	"
W06 2656DH 		8 1 2656DH 30	" 65	1/2	"
W07 3050DH 		2 2 3050DH 36	" 60	" YES
W08 5448MU 		2 2 5448 64	" 55	1/2	"
W09 5636MU 		1 3 5636 66	" 42	"
W10 5636MU 		1 3 5636 66	7/16	" 42	"
W11 61056MU 		1 1 61056 82	" 65	1/2	"

GENERIC	DOOR	SCHEDULE	(VERIFY	R.O.	FROM	MANUFACTURER)
NUMBER LABEL QTY FLOOR SIZE WIDTH HEIGHT
D01 2268 		1 2 2268	L	IN 26	" 80	"
D02 2468 		1 2 2468	R	IN 28	" 80	"
D03 2868 		2 2 2868	L	IN 32	" 80	"
D04 2878 		1 1 2878	L	EX 32	" 92	"
D05 2268 		1 2 2268	R 26	" 80	"
D06 2468 		1 2 2468	L 28	" 80	"
D07 2668 		2 2 2668	L	IN 30	" 80	"
D08 1968 		1 2 1968	R	IN 21	" 80	"
D09 2068 		1 2 2068	R	IN 24	" 80	"
D10 1768 		1 1 1768	R	IN 19	" 80	"
D11 3668 		1 1 3668	L/R	IN 42	" 80	"
D12 2068 		1 1 2068	L 24	" 80	"
D13 3068 		1 2 3068	L	EX 36	" 80	"
D14 4068 		1 2 4068	L/R	IN 48	" 80	"
D15 2668 		1 2 2668	R	IN 30	" 80	"
D17 9080 		2 1 9080 108	" 96	"

A5

SHEET:

SCALE:

DATE:

1/26/22

C
O
N
TA

C
T:

A
M
Y
	D
U
TT

O
N
	H
O
M
E

9	
W
A
LK

E
R
	S
TR

E
E
T	
|	K

IT
TE

R
Y
,	M

E
am

y@
am

yd
ut
to
nh
om

e.
co
m

20
7.
70
3.
06
96

1/4"	=	1'-0"

PERSPECTIVE	VIEW
SCALE:	NTS

EXISTING	FIRST	FLOOR	PLAN
SCALE:	1/8"	=	1'-0"

SCALED	FOR:
24"	X	36"

C
LI
E
N
T:

C
ha
rle
s	
an
d	
A
lli
so
n	
D
ud
as

32
	M
on
te
ith
	S
tre

et
P
or
ts
m
ou
th
,	N

H

PROPOSED	FIRST	FLOOR	PLAN
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

FI
R
S
T	
FL

O
O
R

DRAWING	SCALE

WINDOW	NOTES:
1 WOOD	INTERIOR	WITH	CLAD	EXTERIOR
2 FULL	SCREENS	ON	ALL	WINDOWS
3 INTERIOR	WINDOW	COLOR:	TBD
4 EXTERIOR	WINDOW	COLOR:	TBD
5 HARDWARE	MATERIAL:	TBD
6 MANUFACTURER:	MARVIN	ELEVATE	(WOOD,	CLAD)	ESSENTIAL	(CLAD,
CLAD),	SIGNATURE	COLLECTION

7 WINDOW	ROUGH	OPENING:	1/2"	FOR	TOP/BOTTOM	&	1/2"	FOR	SIDES
8 BEDROOM	WINDOWS	SILL	FINISHED	MUST	BE	WITHIN	44:	OF	THE	FLOOR
AND	PROVIDE	MINIMUM	CLEAR	OPENINGS	OF	5.7	SQFT	WITH	HEIGHT
DIMENSION	NOT	LESS	THAN	24"	AND	WIDTH	DIMENSION	NOT	LESS	THAN
20"	AS	TO	MEET	EGRESS

DOOR	NOTES:
1 DOORS	SHALL	BE	96"
2 ALL	DOORS	SHALL	BE	SOLID	CORE	1-3/4"	THICK
3 INTERIOR	DOORS	SHALL	BE	PTD.	OR	STAINED,	VERIFY	WITH	DESIGNER
4 DOORS	BETWEEN	GARAGE	AND	LIVING	AREA	SHOULD	BE	1-3/4"	TIGHT
FITTING	SOLID	CORE	DOORS

5 EXTERIOR	EXIT	DOORS	SHALL	BE	36"	MIN.
NET	CLEAR	DOORWAY	SHALL	BE	32"	MIN.
DOOR	SHALL	BE	OPENABLE	FROM	INSIDE
6 GARAGE	DOORS	TO	BE	SECTIONAL	INSULATED,	OVERHEAD	DOORS.
GLASS	PANELS	TO	BE	INSULATED

7 ALL	GLAZING	WITHIN	18IN.	OF	THE	FLOOR	AND/OR	WITHIN	24	IN.	OF	ANY
DOOR	ARE	TO	HAVE	SAFETY	GLAZING

8 ALL	TUB	AND	SHOWER	ENCLOSURES	ARE	TO	BE	GLAZED	WITH	SAFETY
GLASS

9 BARN	DOORS,	MEASURE	TO	FIT	OPENING.	ALL	HARDWARE	TO	BE
STAINLESS

DRAWING	INDEX
1 OVERVIEW
2 SITE	PLAN
3 DEMO
4 FOUNDATION
5 FIRST	FLOOR
6 SECOND	FLOOR
7 ROOFS
8 ELEVATIONS
9 ELEVATIONS
10 SECTIONS
11 FRAMING
12 FRAMING
13 FRAMING
14 ELECTRICAL
						



DN

DN

S
B
27
21

36
R

S
B
27
21

36
R

S
B
36
36

S
B
36
36

S
B
30
18

36
S
B
30
18

36

LC
B
36

36
R

B2436R

D
W

P
O
17
"

S
B
30
18

36
S
B
30
18

36

LC
B
36

36
R

B2436R

D
W

P
O
17
"

W
30
27

W
18
36

R
W
15
36

L

D06D06

26
68

5068

30
68

2043DH2043DH2643DH

4014AW

2068 2668 D15D15

W02W02

26
43
D
H

26
43
D
H

2850DH 2850DH 2850DH

W08W08

W08W08

26
30
D
H

W03W03W07W07W03W03

W03W03 W07W07 W03W03

D03D03

D01D01

2668

D03D03

D02D02

D08D08

D07D07

D05D05

26
33
D
H

D13D13

D14D14

D09D09

D07D07

UP

		B
ea

m
	S
iz
e	
T.
B
.D
.

E6
10
E6
10E

le
va
tio
n	
6

E8
10
E8
10

Elevation	8

E9E9
Elevation	9

E10E10

E
le
va
tio
n	
10

E11E11
Elevation	11

5'
-9
	1
/4
"

8'-7	1/2"

5'

11
'-5
	3
/4
"

1'
-6
" 4'-1" 3'-6" 3'-7"

5'
-1
"

13
'-9
	1
/4
"

9'-8	1/4"9'
-6
"

5'-9"

9'-10	7/8"

4'
-7
"

4'
-6
	3
/4
"

4'-8" 9'-6" 4'-9"

3'-4	1/2"

3'
-6
	5
/8
"

3'

26
'

3'-0	1/2"

2'

1'
1'

19'

6'-5	1/2"3'3'6'-5	1/2"

6'-5	1/2" 3' 3' 6'-5	1/2"

9'
-5
"

7'
-2
"

9'
-5
"

3'
-0
	1
/8
"

2'
-1
1	
1/
2"

4'
-1
0"

3'-2"	X	4'-9"
15	SQ	FT

8'-8"	X	11'-6"
102	SQ	FT

14'-6"	X	12'-4"
156	SQ	FT

15'-11"	X	12'-4"
182	SQ	FT

3'-5"	X	4'-7"
15	SQ	FT

4'-9"	X	3'-7"
17	SQ	FT

4'-9"	X	2'-7"
12	SQ	FT

4'-5"	X	3'-7"
16	SQ	FT

2'-0"	X	5'-9"
11	SQ	FT

4'-5"	X	2'-7"
11	SQ	FT

3'-5"	X	3'-4"
11	SQ	FT

3'-2"	X	8'-6"
27	SQ	FT

1667	SQ	FT

2'-0"	X	4'-9"
9	SQ	FT

12'-6"	X	8'-1"
101	SQ	FT

7'-9"	X	4'-7"
62	SQ	FT

1'-5"	X	2'-11"
4	SQ	FT

STAIRWELL

W D

PROPOSED	BEDROOM	1

STORAGE STORAGE

STORAGESTORAGE

PORCH	ROOF	BELOW

OFFICE

LIN.

CLOSET

CLOSET

DROP	CEILING	AT
STRUCTURAL
BEAM	POINT

ROOFS	BELOW

PROPOSED	BEDROOM	2

CEILING	BREAK	LINES

CEILING	BREAK	LINES

HALL

LIVING	AREA

STAIRWELL

BEDROOM

BATHROOM

EGRESS

CLOSET

LIN

DN

2668

26
68

5068

24
30

D
H

24
43

D
H

2043DH2043DH2643DH

2668

26
68

2668

2068 2668

26
43

D
H

26
43

D
H

2643DH

UP

5'
-9
"

7'-2	5/8" 12'

5'

11
'-5
	1
/2
"

1'
-6
" 4'-1" 3'-6" 3'-7"

7'
-4
"

13
'-9
	1
/4
"

9'-5	1/4"9'
-6
"

5'-6"

4'-0	3/8"

9'-6	3/8"

4'
-7
"

529	SQ	FT

3'-1"	X	8'-6"

LIVING	AREA

STAIRWELL

W D

=	EXISTING	EXTERIOR	WALL

=	NEW	EXTERIOR	WALL

=	INTERIOR	6

=	EXISTING	INTERIOR	4

=	NEW	INTERIOR	4

=	GLASS	TOP	TILE	BOTTOM	PONY	WALL

=	GLASS	SHOWER	WALL

WALL	LEGEND

DN

W10W10

W09W09

2635DH

2635DH

26
68

20
65

26
68

16'-6	1/2" 2'-4	5/8"

7'
-7
	3
/4
"

5'
-0
	1
/4
"

13
'-9
"

7'-6"

12
'-1
1"

6'-5	1/4"

9'
-3
	3
/8
"

9'
-5
	1
/8
"

9'
-3
	1
/2
"

9'-0"	X	3'-10"
43	SQ	FT

STAIRWELL

HALF	WALLS

WINDOWS	REPLACED
(DUE	TO	ROOF	RIDGE	OF	ADDITION)	

ADDITION	ROOF	BELOW

DN

36
40

D
C

36
40

D
C

2635DH

2635DH

26
68

20
65

26
68

16'-5" 2'-4	5/8"

7'
-7
	1
/2
"

5'
-0
	1
/4
"

13
'-9
"

7'-11"

12
'-1
1"

6'-3	3/4"

8'-10"	X	3'-10"
STAIRWELL

HALF	WALLS

GENERIC	WINDOW	SCHEDULE	(VERIFY	R.O.	FROM	MANUFACTURER)
NUMBER LABEL QTY FLOOR SIZE WIDTH HEIGHT EGRESS
W01 1933SC 		2 1 1933SC 21	" 39	"
W02 7148MU 		1 2 7148 85	" 56	"
W03 2024FX 		4 2 2024FX 24	" 28	"
W04 2613LS 		4 0 2613LS 30	" 15	"
W06 2656DH 		8 1 2656DH 30	" 65	1/2	"
W07 3050DH 		2 2 3050DH 36	" 60	" YES
W08 5448MU 		2 2 5448 64	" 55	1/2	"
W09 5636MU 		1 3 5636 66	" 42	"
W10 5636MU 		1 3 5636 66	7/16	" 42	"
W11 61056MU 		1 1 61056 82	" 65	1/2	"

GENERIC	DOOR	SCHEDULE	(VERIFY	R.O.	FROM	MANUFACTURER)
NUMBER LABEL QTY FLOOR SIZE WIDTH HEIGHT
D01 2268 		1 2 2268	L	IN 26	" 80	"
D02 2468 		1 2 2468	R	IN 28	" 80	"
D03 2868 		2 2 2868	L	IN 32	" 80	"
D04 2878 		1 1 2878	L	EX 32	" 92	"
D05 2268 		1 2 2268	R 26	" 80	"
D06 2468 		1 2 2468	L 28	" 80	"
D07 2668 		2 2 2668	L	IN 30	" 80	"
D08 1968 		1 2 1968	R	IN 21	" 80	"
D09 2068 		1 2 2068	R	IN 24	" 80	"
D10 1768 		1 1 1768	R	IN 19	" 80	"
D11 3668 		1 1 3668	L/R	IN 42	" 80	"
D12 2068 		1 1 2068	L 24	" 80	"
D13 3068 		1 2 3068	L	EX 36	" 80	"
D14 4068 		1 2 4068	L/R	IN 48	" 80	"
D15 2668 		1 2 2668	R	IN 30	" 80	"
D17 9080 		2 1 9080 108	" 96	"

A6

SHEET:

SCALE:

DATE:

1/26/22

C
O
N
TA

C
T:

A
M
Y
	D
U
TT

O
N
	H
O
M
E

9	
W
A
LK

E
R
	S
TR

E
E
T	
|	K

IT
TE

R
Y
,	M

E
am

y@
am

yd
ut
to
nh
om

e.
co
m

20
7.
70
3.
06
96

1/4"	=	1'-0"

SCALED	FOR:
24"	X	36"

C
LI
E
N
T:

C
ha
rle
s	
an
d	
A
lli
so
n	
D
ud
as

32
	M
on
te
ith
	S
tre

et
P
or
ts
m
ou
th
,	N

H

S
E
C
O
N
D
	F
LO

O
R

PROPOSED	SECOND	FLOOR	&	THIRD	FLOOR	PLAN
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

PERSPECTIVE	VIEW
SCALE:	NTS

EXISTING	SECOND	FLOOR	PLAN
SCALE:	1/8"	=	1'-0"

DRAWING	SCALE

PROPOSED	THIRD	FLOOR	PLAN
WINDOWS	CHANGED	ONLY
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

EXISTING	THIRD	FLOOR	PLAN
SCALE:	1/8"	=	1'-0"

DRAWING	INDEX
1 OVERVIEW
2 SITE	PLAN
3 DEMO
4 FOUNDATION
5 FIRST	FLOOR
6 SECOND	FLOOR
7 ROOFS
8 ELEVATIONS
9 ELEVATIONS
10 SECTIONS
11 FRAMING
12 FRAMING
13 FRAMING
14 ELECTRICAL
						



DN

2310129

-54610-54610

7	
:	1
2

7	
:	1
2

7	
:	1
2

4	
:	1
2

4	
:	1
2

3	:	12

3	
:	1
2

4	
:	1
2

4	:	12 4	:	12

4	
:	1
2 4	:	12

4	
:	1
2

3	:	12

0	
:	1
2

12	:	12 12	:	12

2047

0	
:	1
2

0	
:	1
2

0	
:	1
2

7	
:	1
2

7	
:	1
2

7	
:	1
2

2	3/8	:	12

2034

12	:	12 12	:	12

12	:	12 12	:	12

12	:	1212	:	12

16'-6	1/2" 2'-4	5/8"

7'
-7
	3
/4
"

5'
-0
	1
/4
"

13
'-9
"

7'-6"

12
'-1
1"

6'-5	1/4"

9'
-3
	3
/8
"

9'
-5
	1
/8
"

9'
-3
	1
/2
"

5'-11"

513	SQ	FT
LIVING	AREA

STAIRWELL

2	
x	
10
	R
af
te
rs
	@

	1
6"
	o
.c
.

2	
x	
10
	R
af
te
rs
	@

	1
6"
	o
.c
.

2	x	10	Rafters	@	16"	o.c.

2	x	10	Rafters	@	16"	o.c.

2	
x	
10
	R
af
te
rs
	@

	1
6"
	o
.c
.

2	
x	
10
	R
af
te
rs
	@

	1
6"
	o
.c
.

2	
x	
10
	R
af
te
rs
	@

	1
6"
	o
.c
.

2	x	8	Rafters	@	16"	o.c.

2	x	12	Ridge

DN

UP

12	:	12

12	:	1223101211

0	
:	1
2

0	
:	1
2

2047

0	
:	1
2

0	
:	1
2

STAIRWELL

DN

2	3/8	:	12

2034

-54610-54610

510	SQ	FT
LIVING	AREA

STAIRWELL

A7

SHEET:

SCALE:

DATE:

1/26/22

C
O
N
TA

C
T:

A
M
Y
	D
U
TT

O
N
	H
O
M
E

9	
W
A
LK

E
R
	S
TR

E
E
T	
|	K

IT
TE

R
Y
,	M

E
am

y@
am

yd
ut
to
nh
om

e.
co
m

20
7.
70
3.
06
96

1/2"	=	1'-0"

SCALED	FOR:
24"	X	36"

C
LI
E
N
T:

C
ha
rle
s	
an
d	
A
lli
so
n	
D
ud
as

32
	M
on
te
ith
	S
tre

et
P
or
ts
m
ou
th
,	N

H

R
O
O
FS

PROPOSED	ROOF	PLAN
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

DRAWING	SCALE

NOTES:
1. PROVE	2	X	10	FLOOR	JOISTS	AT	16"	o.c.	TYPICAL
2. INTERIOR	NON-BEARING	STUD	WALLS	ARE	2	X	4	AT	16"o.c.
3. INTERIOR	BEARING	WALLS	ARE	2	X	6	AT	16"	o.c.	#S-2	OR	BETTER
4. HEADERS	FOR	DOORS	AND	WINDOWS	UP	TO	6	FEET	ARE	(2)	2	X	10's
5. ENGINEERED	FLOOR	BEAM	TO	BE	DESIGNED	AND	SUBMITTED	PRIOR	TO	CONSTRUCION	BY	STRUCTURAL	ENGINEER.
6. CEILING	JOISTS	FOR	THE	SECOND	FLOOR	ARE	2X6.
7. EXISTING	3RD	FLOOR	WALLS	ARE	GREY
8. 	ROOF	PLANES	ARE	GREEN

PERSPECTIVE	VIEW
SCALE:	NTS

EXISTING	ROOF
SCALE:	1/8"	=	1'-0"

DRAWING	INDEX
1 OVERVIEW
2 SITE	PLAN
3 DEMO
4 FOUNDATION
5 FIRST	FLOOR
6 SECOND	FLOOR
7 ROOFS
8 ELEVATIONS
9 ELEVATIONS
10 SECTIONS
11 FRAMING
12 FRAMING
13 FRAMING
14 ELECTRICAL
						



Grade	Level
0.0'

ADDITION	Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
2.6'

EXISTING	Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
3.8'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	2nd	Floor
12.9'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	3rd	Floor
21.7'

Highest	Rough	Ceiling
29.6'

Highest	Ridge
32.3'

25
'-3
"	:
	P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
	H
T

32
'-4
"	:
	E
X
IS
TI
N
G
	H
T

23
'-2
	7
/8
"	P

R
O
P
O
S
E
D
	H
E
IG
H
T	
G
A
R
A
G
E

20
'-9
	1
/2
"	P

R
O
P
O
S
E
D
	H
E
IG
H
T	
	C
O
N
N
E
C
TO

R

EQUAL	ON	EACH	SIDE

A8

SHEET:

SCALE:

DATE:

1/26/22

C
O
N
TA

C
T:

A
M
Y
	D
U
TT

O
N
	H
O
M
E

9	
W
A
LK

E
R
	S
TR

E
E
T	
|	K

IT
TE

R
Y
,	M

E
am

y@
am

yd
ut
to
nh
om

e.
co
m

20
7.
70
3.
06
96

ELEVATIONS

NORTH	ELEVATION	|	FRONT	VIEW
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

SOUTH	ELEVATION	|	REAR	VIEW
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

TYPICAL	NOTES:	

ASPHALT	SHINGES,	TO	MATCH	EXISTING.	
RIDGE	VENT,	TO	MATCH	EXISTING.
PVC	RAKE	AND	BHADOW	TRIM	BOARDS,	TO	MATCH	EXISTING.
PVC	TRIM	BOARDS,	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
ALUMINUM	OR	PVS	RAILING	SYSTEMS,	TO	MATCH	EXISTING.	
SHINGLE	OR	CLAPBOARD	SIDING	ON	SHEATHING
DECORATIVE	PVC	TRIM
NEW	WINDOWS	PER	SCHEDULE
FOUNDATION	MATERIAL	(IE.	STONE	VENEER)	TO	MATCH	EXISTING
NEW	FOUNDATION	WALLS

1/4"	=	1'-0"

SCALED	FOR:
24"	X	36"

C
LI
E
N
T:

C
ha
rle
s	
an
d	
A
lli
so
n	
D
ud
as

32
	M
on
te
ith
	S
tre

et
P
or
ts
m
ou
th
,	N

H

E
LE

V
A
TI
O
N
S

DRAWING	SCALE

DRAWING	INDEX
1 OVERVIEW
2 SITE	PLAN
3 DEMO
4 FOUNDATION
5 FIRST	FLOOR
6 SECOND	FLOOR
7 ROOFS
8 ELEVATIONS
9 ELEVATIONS
10 SECTIONS
11 FRAMING
12 FRAMING
13 FRAMING
14 ELECTRICAL
						



8'-6	1/8"
3'-5"

17
'-9
"	:
	P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
	H
T

25
'-3
"	:
	P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
	H
T

32
'-4
"	:
	E
X
IS
TI
N
G
	H
T

A9

SHEET:

SCALE:

DATE:

1/26/22

C
O
N
TA

C
T:

A
M
Y
	D
U
TT

O
N
	H
O
M
E

9	
W
A
LK

E
R
	S
TR

E
E
T	
|	K

IT
TE

R
Y
,	M

E
am

y@
am

yd
ut
to
nh
om

e.
co
m

20
7.
70
3.
06
96

EAST	ELEVATION	|	SIDEVIEW
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0"

WEST	ELEVATION	|	SIDEVIEW
SCALE:	1/4"	=	1'-0" 1/4"	=	1'-0"

ELEVATIONS

SCALED	FOR:
24"	X	36"

C
LI
E
N
T:

C
ha
rle
s	
an
d	
A
lli
so
n	
D
ud
as

32
	M
on
te
ith
	S
tre

et
P
or
ts
m
ou
th
,	N

H

E
LE

V
A
TI
O
N
S

DRAWING	SCALE

DRAWING	INDEX
1 OVERVIEW
2 SITE	PLAN
3 DEMO
4 FOUNDATION
5 FIRST	FLOOR
6 SECOND	FLOOR
7 ROOFS
8 ELEVATIONS
9 ELEVATIONS
10 SECTIONS
11 FRAMING
12 FRAMING
13 FRAMING
14 ELECTRICAL
						



 
 

Front View (from Monteith St) 

 

       
Rear View (towards Monteith St) 



 

Side View of House & Shed (facing east) 
 

 

 

Right Side Neighbors View (facing west) 



North Mill Pond

73
.80

'

10
4'

297'

680'

60' 105.48'
90'

80'

96.36'

210'

80
'

76
.1'

18
4'

48' 50'

46.5'

110'

77
.25

'

5'

20
'

110.01'
110'

15
2'

30.03'

20
.00

'

99.59'

304.26'

101.50'

79.00'

215.38'

180.41'

169.23'

16
8.7

2'

95
.07

'

99
.11

'

116'

22
'

221.98'

5' 5'

20
'

20'

20'

55'

24'

24'

55'

114.73'

87.5'

15
.53

'

16.8'

76.
22'

101
.68

'

120.51'

121.8'

74.5'

208.73'

60'

50'

50'

60' 110'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

87
'

81
.52

'

85
'

109.3'

17
5.7

8'

50.6'

54'

19
8'

65.75'
50'

46' 37.67'

69
.4'

59.41'

70
'

70
'

87.5'

34
'

76.25'

70.5'

129'

118'

108.2'

86'

83'

68
'

65
'

31'

34.33'

28.17'
59'

59'41.5'68'

74'

24
.5'

90'

134.5'

74
.75

'
73

.58
'89

.41
'

63
'

30.5'

83
'

85
.4'

34'

39.9'

77
.5'

125.6'

45.5'

125.60'

91'

100
.00

'

13.63'

124.88'

124.57'

124.24'

28.04' 32'

124'

32'29'

17
7.6

'

68'

194.2'

84'

30.02'

85
.28

'

33.37'

56.7'

82
.1'

14
4.5

'
62

.5'

223.8'

33.75'
4.5'

59.85'

14.00

44.3'

66
'

18
0.4

'

70.9'

21'

50'

100'

236'

20'

125'

137'

101'

100'

102'

103'

100'
90'

103'

100'

200'

10.06'

102.91'

105'

238'

240'

107'

109'

125'

102.81'
142.65'

45.72'

15
7.0

8'

95.16'

200'

200'

95'
95'

8.5'
8.6'

139.5'

114'
115.86'

23.16'
2'

158'

100.00'

62.80'

109.5'

83.5'

57.57'

2'

12
5'

106.35'

50'

126.42'
85.5' 41.44'

18
.67

'

127'
128.69'

120'70'
50'

12
0'

12
0'

68.52'
50' 122.6'

85.2'

90
.4'

50.4'

140'

73'

100'

58'50'47.8'

10
0'

50'

10
8.4

'

51.5'

10
0' 10

0'

6.5'

11
9.6

'
10

0'

80'

144'

101.08'

110'

149.36'

174.91''

10
1'

87
.2'

86.58'

110.38'

40.78'

62.35'

49
.2'

24
.7'

106.5'

99.49'

17
.06

'

123.37'

50'125.71'

74.62'

10
0'

75' 110
.80

'

20'

187.70'

25.90'

23.08'

10
6.6

' 164.6'

12
0'

96
.4'

312'

102'

89.3'

100'

35
'

14'10
8'

90'

50'

77'

61'

56.5'

47'

50'

100'

106'

42.8'
28'

55
'

48
'

75'

51
'

70'

39'

60'

50'

50'

103.3'

40.1' 50'

102'
102.5'

50
'

50
'

99.5'

50'
50'

99'

96.5'

95.5'

50'

100'

88.5'

10
0'

50
'

55
'

75'

98'

96
'

106'

113'

56'

50' 201'

53'

88'

53'

122.5'
143'

147'

137'

14
5.5

'

88
'

142'

60'

81'

50'41'

50
'

50
'

50'

53.17'

55.6'

59
.48

'

52.5'

60
.57

'

52.3'

80.92'

52
'

60
'

54'

77.17'
54'

22'

59
.5' 60
'

62'

45'

54'

40'

56
' 62

'

60'
61'

50
'

10' 26.67'
68'

12
0'

50
' 52

'

43
.79

'
16

.4'

156'

90'

54
'

53
.5'

60
'

60
'

88'

107'

90'

36'

53
.5' 54

'

109' 93'

63
'

26
'

68
.8'39'

108'

100'

60'

60'

160'

10
0'

97.00'

10
1.5

0'

14
4.1

7'

82
.00

'
13

8.4
3'

59.79'

12
8'

60'
12'

83.57'

79.86'

58.28'

60'

11
8'

78
'

45
'

228'

31
.95

'

67.04'

5'

68
.49

'

134.81'

8.86'

101
.01

'

55'

12
3'

60'

60' 60'

18
4'

12
3'

12
4'

52.00'

11
8'

16' 60'

11
8.8

'
11

8'

10
9'

10
9.9

2'

100.06'

100.21'

98.76'

27.21'

183.50'

128'

175.11'

10
9.0

8'

50.51'

124.77'

39.14'

100.40'

56.72'
102.28'

15'

12
'

60.95

136.11'

30.00'

103.63'

79.87'

206.43'

8.0'

20
.00

'

20
.00

'

20.00'

79.00'

20.50'

19
.00

' 

63.41'

85.69'

42.94'

44.69'

42.43'

101.84'

57.90'

9.81'

43.43'

77.33'

178
.7'

80'

89.
5'

51.9'
65'

51' 120.51'

38'

65'

51'



























































































































MILL POND WAY

DENNETT ST

SPARHAW
K ST

THORNTON ST

HU
NT

ER
S 

HI
LL

 A
VE

RUTH ST

KANE ST

TH
OR

NT
ON

ST

MONTEITH ST

140-24-A

160-2-1
160-1-1

140-
19

160-
36

142-
9142-

6

159-
2

142-
24

142-
8

159-
1

160-
40 142-

7

140-
20

140-
18

142-
3 142-

4 142-
5

160-
1

160-
7

160-
2

160-
3

160-
37

159-
5

159-
4

159-
3

2
0.138 ac

1
(0.545

ac)

7-1
0.963 ac

29
0.311 ac

10
0.425 ac

16
0.344 ac

7-3
0.266 ac

3
0.191 ac

9
0.461 ac

7-2
0.277 ac

4
0.268 ac

6
0.143 ac

5
0.172 ac

8
0.402 ac

13-1
0.111 ac

13
0.119 ac

12
0.424 ac

23
0.222 ac

19
0.233 ac

18
0.213 ac

24
0.115 ac

25
0.283 ac

28
0.122 ac

15
0.436 ac

27
0.109 ac 26

0.150 ac

14
0.229 ac

11
0.343 ac

21
0.280 ac

22
0.869 ac

20
0.565 ac

17
0.433 ac

9-1
0.610 ac

Tax Map
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

2020

  This map is for assessment purposes only.  It
is not intended for legal description or conveyance.
  Parcels are mapped as of April 1.
  Building footprints are 2006 data and may not
represent current structures.
  Streets appearing on this map may be paper
(unbuilt) streets.
  Lot numbers take precedence over address
numbers.  Address numbers shown on this map
may not  represent posted or legal addresses.

220
209

142

143

160

159
140

158

141

139

161

162

235

º

Map Location

Nearby Tax Maps

Partial Legend
See the cover sheet for the complete legend.

Water boundary
Parcel/ROW boundary
Parcel/Parcel boundary

Structure (1994 data)

7-5A Lot or lot-unit number

 Address number

SIMS AVE Street name

2.56 ac Parcel area in acres (ac) or square feet (sf)

Parcel from a neighboring map
(see other map for current status)

68' Parcel line dimension

Parcel covered by this map

233-137 Parcel number from a neighboring map

143

0 10050 Feet

0 4020 Meters





















EXHIBIT 1

MWhelan
Highlight





Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3
(3/3/2022)

Dear Builders and Home Buyers,

In addition to our Terms and Conditions (the "Terms"), please be
aware of the following:

This design may not yet have Construction Drawings (as defined in
the Terms), and is, therefore, only available as a Design Drawing (as
defined in the Terms and together with Construction Drawings,
"Drawings'). It is possible that during the conversion of a Design
Drawing to a final Construction Drawing, changes may be necessary
including, but not limited to, dimensional changes. Please see Plan
Data Explained on www.ArtformHomePlans.com to understand room
sizes, dimensions and other data provided. We are not responsible
for typographical errors.

Artform Home Plans ("Artform") requires that our Drawings be built
substantially as designed. Artform will not be obligated by or liable
for use of this design with markups as part of any builder agreement.
While we attempt to accommodate where possible and reasonable,
and where the changes do not denigrate our design, any and all
changes to Drawings must be approved in writing by Artform. It is
recommended that you have your Drawing updated by Artform prior
to attaching any Drawing to any builder agreement. Artform shall not
be responsible for the misuse of or unauthorized alterations to any
of its Drawings.
Facade Changes:
• To maintain design integrity, we pay particular attention to features
on the front facade, including but not limited to door surrounds,
window casings, finished porch column sizes, and roof friezes. While
we may allow builders to add their own flare to aesthetic elements,
we don't allow our designs to be stripped of critical details. Any such
alterations require the express written consent of Artform.
• Increasing ceiling heights usually requires adjustments to window
sizes and other exterior elements.
Floor plan layout and/or Structural Changes:
• Structural changes always require the express written consent of
Artform
• If you wish to move or remove walls or structural elements (such as
removal of posts, increases in house size, ceiling height changes,
addition of dormers, etc), please do not assume it can be done
without other additional changes (even if the builder or lumber yard
says you can).

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex

EXHIBIT 2

MWhelan
Highlight



Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3  
(3/3/2022)

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex



Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3  
(3/3/2022)

First Floor Plan
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

D
W

D
W

64'-0"

42
'-0

"

14'-0" 5'-0" 13'-0" 13'-0" 5'-0" 14'-0"

6'
-6

"

6'
-6

"
21

'-1
1"

3'
-8

" 4'-8"

3'
-8

" 4'-8"

Up

Dn

Living
14'-2" x 21'-7"

Up

Dn

Porch Porch

Up

Dn

Kit / Dine
22'-10" x 19'-5"

Living
14'-2" x 21'-7"

Kit / Dine
22'-10" x 19'-5"

Mud
5'-7" x
8'-2"

Mud
5'-7" x
8'-2"

Garage

Is
la

nd

Is
la

nd

Deck Deck

Duct Chase

Pwdr
7'-10" x 3'-0"

Pwdr
7'-10" x 3'-0"

Entry
4'-10" x
5'-11"

Entry
4'-10" x
5'-11"

Garage

Duct Chase

Living Area this Floor
(Per Unit): 921 sq ft

9 ft Ceilings

Line of Roof Edges Above

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex



Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3  
(3/3/2022)

Second Floor Plan
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Bedroom
13'-0" x 13'-6"

M Bdrm
18'-0" x 15'-1"

M Bdrm
18'-0" x 15'-1"

W

Bedroom
13'-0" x 13'-6"

Living Area this Floor (Per Unit): 1131 sq ft
8 ft Ceilings

Dn Dn

Ldry/Bath
10'-9" x 9'-2"

D

Ldry/Bath
10'-9" x 9'-2"

Hall Hall

7'-2" Wall Ht. 7'-2" Wall Ht.

7'-2" Wall Ht. 7'-2" Wall Ht.

Ceiling changes from
sloped to flat, typ.

Bedroom
12'-6" x 11'-0"

Shwr
3'-7" x
4'-4"

Clos
5'-9" x 3'-9" Clos

6'-5" x 9'-11"

Bedroom
12'-5" x 11'-0"

Clos
6'-5" x 9'-11"

Clos
5'-8" x 3'-9"

Closet
5'-9" x 1'-11"

Closet
5'-8" x 1'-11"

Bath
5'-4" x
9'-1"

Bath
5'-4" x
9'-1"

Shwr
3'-6" x
4'-4"

6'-10" Knee Wall 6'-10" Knee Wall

Line of Porch Below, typ.

W D

Hall
6'-10" x 3'-6"

Hall
6'-9" x 3'-6"

Clos
Lin

Clos
Lin

Attic
Access

Attic
Access

Low Wall
or Rail

Low Wall
or Rail

6'-3" Knee Wall 6'-3" Knee Wall

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex



Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3  
(3/3/2022)

Foundation Plan
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Up Up

Fill Under
Garage

Fill Under
Garage

Unfinished
Basement

Number and locations of
support columns may vary.

Number and locations of
support columns may vary.

Code required emergency
exit shown as bulkhead.

May be via egress window
or walk-out door.

Duct
Above

Duct
Above

Unfinished
Basement

Code required emergency
exit shown as bulkhead.

May be via egress window
or walk-out door.

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex



Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3  
(3/3/2022)

Front Elevation
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

28
'-8

"
1'

-1
0"

26
'-1

0"

First Floor Subfloor

Presumed Grade

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex



Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3  
(3/3/2022)

Right Elevation
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex



Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3  
(3/3/2022)

Rear Elevation
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex



Maypop Expanded Duplex
471.224.v3  
(3/3/2022)

Left Elevation
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3/
3/

20
22

603-431-9559

©2012-2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved.
You may not build this design without purchasing a license,
even if you make changes. This design may have geographic
restrictions.  

CRS 471.224.v3 Maypop Expanded Duplex



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)

Dear Builders and Home Buyers,
  
In addition to our Terms and Conditions (the "Terms"), please be
aware of the following:
  
This design may not yet have Construction Drawings (as defined in
the Terms), and is, therefore, only available as a Design Drawing (as
defined in the Terms and together with Construction Drawings,
"Drawings'). It is possible that during the conversion of a Design
Drawing to a final Construction Drawing, changes may be necessary
including, but not limited to, dimensional changes. Please see Plan
Data Explained on www.ArtformHomePlans.com to understand room
sizes, dimensions and other data provided. We are not responsible
for typographical errors.
  
Artform Home Plans ("Artform") requires that our Drawings be built
substantially as designed. Artform will not be obligated by or liable
for use of this design with markups as part of any builder agreement.
While we attempt to accommodate where possible and reasonable,
and where the changes do not denigrate our design, any and all
changes to Drawings must be approved in writing by Artform. It is
recommended that you have your Drawing updated by Artform prior
to attaching any Drawing to any builder agreement. Artform shall not
be responsible for the misuse of or unauthorized alterations to any
of its Drawings.
Facade Changes:
• To maintain design integrity, we pay particular attention to features
on the front facade, including but not limited to door surrounds,
window casings, finished porch column sizes, and roof friezes. While
we may allow builders to add their own flare to aesthetic elements,
we don't allow our designs to be stripped of critical details. Any such
alterations require the express written consent of Artform.
• Increasing ceiling heights usually requires adjustments to window
sizes and other exterior elements.
Floor plan layout and/or Structural Changes:
• Structural changes always require the express written consent of
Artform
• If you wish to move or remove walls or structural elements (such as
removal of posts, increases in house size, ceiling height changes,
addition of dormers, etc), please do not assume it can be done
without other additional changes (even if the builder or lumber yard
says you can).

3/
23

/2
02

2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)3/

23
/2

02
2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)

First Floor Plan
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

D
/W

REF.

10
'-0

"

10'-0"

14'-0" 22'-0"

37
'-0

"
2'

-7
"

2'
-5

"
42

'-0
"

36'-0"
17

'-7
"

22
'-0

"
2'

-5
"

O
pt

 F
P

O
pt

 Is
la

nd

Living
13'-8" x 17'-1"

Kitchen/Dine
21'-4" x 17'-1"

Garage

Opt Deck

Living Area this Floor: 924 sq ft
8 ft Ceilings

Duct
Chase

Boxed Beam Above

Porch

Ptry
Cab

Comp
Closet
5'-2" x
7'-5"

Lav

Hall
4'-7" x
13'-2"

Line of Roof Edges Above

Foyer
7'-10" x 5'-1"

Dn

Up

3/
23

/2
02

2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)

Second Floor Plan
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Living Area this Floor: 1246 sq ft
8 ft Ceilings

Line of Walls Below, typ.

Bdrm
13'-5" x 14'-4"

Dn

King

Hall
14'-10" x 5'-1"

Bedroom
10'-0" x 12'-8"

Study
7'-5" x 9'-10"

72 sq ft

Master Bdrm
15'-5" x 15'-0"

3x6

Ldry
6'-0" x
10'-1"Bath

6'-0" x
11'-0"

Bath
12'-5" x 9'-1"

Closet
6'-6" x
8'-1"

Closet
6'-6" x
6'-6"

Lin

Lin

3/
23

/2
02

2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)

Foundation Plan
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Code required emergency exit
shown as bulkhead. May be via
egress window or walk-out door.

Number and
locations of support
columns may vary.

Unfinished Basement

Fill Under Garage

Duct Above

Up

3/
23

/2
02

2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)

Front Elevation
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

2'
-0

"
24

'-5
"

26
'-5

"

First Floor Subfloor

Presumed Grade

3/
23

/2
02

2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)

Right Elevation
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3/
23

/2
02

2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)

Rear Elevation
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3/
23

/2
02

2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



Ben Gabriel
1096.124 GR  (3/23/2022)

Left Elevation
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3/
23

/2
02

2

603-431-9559

©2022 Art Form Architecture, Inc., all rights reserved. You may
not build this design without purchasing a license, even if you
make changes. This design may have geographic restrictions.  

CRS 1096.124 GR Ben Gabriel



2/21/22, 10:01 AM Woodbury Ave & Boyd Rd - Google Maps 

Google Maps Woodbury Ave & Boyd Rd

Imagery C2022 Maine GeoUbrary, Maxar Technologies, U.S. GeoloQlcol survey, USDA Farm Service Agency, Mop dalo C2022 100 f1 

https:/MWN,google.com/maps/placol'Noodbury+Avo+%26•8oyd+Rd, +Portsmoulh, +NH+03801 /@43.0726185,•70. 7769074.329m/dala=!3m 1 I 1o3!4m5!3m4! 1 s0x89o2bf97560e4d91 :0x34bfdbb75098c0d3!8m2!3d43.0728458!4d• 70.776344 1 1/1 

EXHIBIT 3

MWhelan
Highlight



















EXHIBIT 4

MWhelan
Highlight



















Location 6 BOYD RD Mblu 0175/ 0013/ 0000/ /

Acct# 35292 Owner BAILEY FREDERICK J III

PBN Assessment $335,500

Appraisal $335,500 PID 35292

Building Count 1

Owner BAILEY FREDERICK J III
Co-Owner NELSON JOYCE S
Address 4 SHORE RD 

WOLFEBORO, NH 03894

Sale Price $238,000
Certificate
Book & Page 5500/0334

Sale Date 12/06/2013
Instrument 24

Year Built: 1951
Living Area: 1,318
Replacement Cost: $215,624

 

6 BOYD RD

Current Value

Appraisal

Valuation Year Improvements Land Total

2020 $150,900 $184,600 $335,500

Assessment

Valuation Year Improvements Land Total

2020 $150,900 $184,600 $335,500

Owner of Record

Ownership History

Ownership History

Owner Sale Price Certificate Book & Page Instrument Sale Date

BAILEY FREDERICK J III $238,000  5500/0334 24 12/06/2013

COLLINS GLORIA C LIVING REVOC TR 1999 $0  4708/0976  09/15/2006

Building Information

Building 1 : Section 1



Building Percent Good: 70
Replacement Cost 
Less Depreciation: $150,900

Building Attributes

Field Description

Style: Ranch

Occupancy 1

Exterior Wall 2  

Interior Wall 2  

Interior Flr 2 Carpet

Model Residential

Grade: C

Stories: 1

Exterior Wall 1 Clapboard

Roof Structure: Gable/Hip

WB Fireplaces 1

Extra Openings 0

Roof Cover Asph/F Gls/Cmp

Metal Fireplaces 0

Extra Openings 2 0

Bsmt Garage 1

Interior Wall 1 Drywall/Sheet

Interior Flr 1 Hardwood

Heat Fuel Oil

Heat Type: Hot Water

AC Type: None

Total Bedrooms: 3 Bedrooms

Total Bthrms: 1

Total Half Baths: 1

Total Xtra Fixtrs: 1

Total Rooms: 6

Bath Style: Avg Quality

Kitchen Style: Below Avg Qual

Kitchen Gr  

Legend

Building Photo

(http://images.vgsi.com/photos2/PortsmouthNHPhotos//\00\02\02\67.jpg)

Building Layout

(ParcelSketch.ashx?pid=35292&bid=35292)

Building Sub-Areas (sq ft)

Code Description
Gross 
Area

Living 
Area

BAS First Floor 1,318 1,318

UBM Basement, Unfinished 1,318 0

WDK Deck, Wood 160 0

  2,796 1,318

Legend

Extra Features

Extra Features

 
No Data for Extra Features  

 

Land

http://images.vgsi.com/photos2/PortsmouthNHPhotos///00/02/02/67.jpg
http://gis.vgsi.com/PortsmouthNH/ParcelSketch.ashx?pid=35292&bid=35292


Land Use

Use Code 1010
Description SINGLE FAM MDL-01  
Zone GRA
Neighborhood 129
Alt Land Appr No
Category

Land Line Valuation

Size (Acres) 0.15
Frontage
Depth
Assessed Value $184,600
Appraised Value $184,600

Legend

(c) 2022 Vision Government Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

Outbuildings

Outbuildings

 
No Data for Outbuildings  

 

Valuation History

Appraisal

Valuation Year Improvements Land Total

2020 $150,900 $184,600 $335,500

2019 $150,900 $184,600 $335,500

2018 $139,200 $174,500 $313,700

Assessment

Valuation Year Improvements Land Total

2020 $150,900 $184,600 $335,500

2019 $150,900 $184,600 $335,500

2018 $139,200 $174,500 $313,700



City of Portsmouth, NH March 22, 2022

MAP FOR REFERENCE ONLY
NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT

City of Portsmouth, NH makes no claims and no
warranties, expressed or implied, concerning the
validity or accuracy of the GIS data presented on this
map.

Geometry updated 3/9/2022
Data updated 3/9/2022

Print map scale is approximate. Critical
layout or measurement activities should not
be done using this resource.

1" = 343.11963002703794 ft

EXHIBIT 5

MWhelan
Highlight



Map Theme Legends

Zoning

City of Portsmouth



[] 

BOYD RD 

73.3' ...... 

1 
a.mac 

0 
162-
58 

. I Legend 
Part1a plete legend See the cover sheet for the com 

7 -SA Parcel area in acres (ac) or 
Lot or lot-unit number square feet (5f) 

2.•,•, sc Addcess o,mb" a neighboring map 
233-137 Parcel number from .. Parcel line dimension 

S AVE Street name 

SIM Parcel/Parcel bo,nda,y 

Parcel/ROW boundary 

Water boundary 

-- Structure (1994 data) 

Parcel covered by this map 

[=:J . hbo,ing map r--7 Parcel from a n~rg current status) L--J (see other map Of 

50 100 Feet 

20 

urposes only. It . forassessmentp - rconveyance. This map IS d for legal descrlpt,~n o 
is not ,ntende apped as of Apnl ·and may not 
Pa~~ls ~:;rints are 2006 data 
Bw/d,ng nt structures. y be paper 

represent cu:ring on this map ma 

Streets app ts ver address 
(unbuilt) stree t~ke precedence o n on this map 
Lot numb:Jdress numbers s;o:, addresses. 

numberst .represent posted or g may no 

2020 

TaxM 

EXHIBIT 6

MWhelan
Highlight



Zoning Board of Adjustments 
City of Portsmouth  
1 Junkins Avenue 
 Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 
Proposed Improvement: 
 

I am seeking to build a 22’ x25’ deck in the back yard replacing where an in ground pool 
used to reside.  The deck would provide not only a private space to enjoy but would also alleviate 
the safety concerns resulting from the inability to completely remove the pool surround.  The rest 
of my house is currently conformed within zoning board guidelines and this is the only relief I plan 
to require for additional structures. The deck will be tastefully designed and several neighbors 
within the cul-de-sac have existing deck structures on their property as well which maintains the 
feel of the neighborhood. I have lived in Portsmouth my entire life, bought my current house from 
my grandparents, and hope to maintain this property to keep in the family for generations to come. 

 
 
Variance Relief: 
Building Coverage: to allow a 21.8% where a 20% is required. (Current building coverage is 19.6%)  

My current total land coverage is 2625sqft which is roughly 19.6% of the 20% allotted  
coverage as determined by land use codes.  I’m requesting to add an additional 297’ square feet to 
my property coverage in the form of this deck which would put my total land coverage to 2992sqft 
and exceed the allotted coverage by 1.8% (total of 21.8% once the deck is added).  

 
Justification in response to the Zoning Board Criteria is as follows: 
10.233.21 The variance will not be contrary to the public interest; and 10.233.22 The spirit of the 
Ordinance will be observed: There are many houses in this neighborhood that do not comply with 
the setback or coverage requirement. This neighborhood has recently undergone massive 
renovation and several houses have grown additions and been granted into nonconforming lots. 
The proposed improvement will remain consistent with the character of the neighborhood and will 
not or threaten the health, safety and welfare of the public. This improvement will observe the 
spirit of the Ordinance and not be contrary to public interest. The residential characteristics of the 
neighborhood would not be altered by this improvement. 
 
10.233.23 Substantial justice will be done; The requested building coverage relief is reasonable. 
The proposed deck is within the existing conforming footprint and will not increase the conforming 
setbacks at all. A deck will allow for safely covering the area of the former in ground pool which is 
unable to be filled in via standard measures as well as increasing aesthetic appeal to the overall 
property appearance and it is reasonable for the Board to conclude that substantial justice will be 
done by granting this variance. 
 
10.233.24 The values of surrounding properties will not be diminished; My home was refurbished 
recently and contributes to the property values in the area.. The proposed deck will increase the 
value of the house and may help maintain, or raise the values of the surrounding properties. It is 
reasonable for the Board to conclude that the values of the surrounding properties will not be 
diminished. 
 
10.233.25 Literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would result in an unnecessary 
hardship. Due to the cement footings of the overhanging second floor the former pool was unable to 
be fully filled in and the existing cement surround exceeds the 18” allowance for non-conforming 



structures, therefore to ensure safety some sort of covering must be added which would exceed the 
20% building coverage allowance. Literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance will result 
in an unnecessary hardship as well as decrease aesthetic appeal to the property and increase risk of 
harm. 
 
My family has been gathering at this house for decades while it was previously owned by my 
grandparents and with this deck I hope to be able to continue these gatherings for decades more to 
come. Your consideration for approval of this project is appreciated. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Amanda Blanchette 
240 Hillside Drive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 



 



 
 
138 Gates Street 
Map  103  Lot  54 
 
1-Story Addition at Rear of Residence 
 
To permit the following: 
 

1. Building Coverage of 35.8% where 30% is allowed. 
2. Expansion of a non-conforming structure 

 
The undersigned agrees that the following circumstances exist……… 
 

1. The Existing Building Coverage is 30.8% and the Addition & Landing over 18"adds 
136sf. 
 

 2. The Existing Residence is non-conforming on the Front & Left Side Setbacks and is  
  over the 30% allowed Building Coverage. 
   
 
Criteria for the Variance: 
 
 1. The Variances are not contrary to the public interest in that many properties in this 
  neighborhood are non-conforming to Building Area & Setbacks.  The Addition is tucked 
  into the corner created by the rear of the Existing House and a 2-Story Ell that extends 
  into the rear yard.  The Addition is just partially visible from Gates Street and is within 
  the required yard setbacks. 
 
 2. The Variances are consistent with the spirit of the ordinance in that it will allow this 
  small Addition to add needed living space without adversely affecting the abutters 
  & neighborhood. 
 
 3. Substantial justice will be done, as this will allow a small addition on this undersized 
  property.  The Addition will be built over an existing patio and the landscaped rear  
  yard will not be affected. 
 
 4. These Variances will not diminish the value of surrounding properties. 
 
 5. The special condition of this property is the non-conformity of the Existing Residence 
  and Lot.  The Lot at 2439sf is less than half of the required 5000sf in this Zone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3/28/22, Anne Whitney Architect     For: Fredrick & Sandra Wiese 
 











Trisha and Kevin Anderson
328 Aldrich Rd

Portsmouth NH 03801
Tl r8O3 (D ma i l. ha rva rd. ed u; kra nders @sm a i l. co m

617 -997 -3993 ; 9t 8-430-2487

Board of Adjustment Variance Request

Submitted March 29, 2022

Dear Board of Adjustment:

We are writing to request a variance for work we'd like to do at our home, which we share with
our three young children (ages 8, 6, and 3).

Brief Description of work:
We have an old garage/shed (10.5' X21,.25') on our property (328 Aldrich Rd)that is rotten and

in disrepair and cannot be salvaged. The garage/shed sits in the middle of ouryard. We would
like to remove this structure as it is dangerous and needs to be replaced. We would like to plant

grass where the garage/shed currently sits to open up our backyard space. We will also rip up

part of our oversized driveway and plant grass to allow for additional backyard/grass/green
space. We would like to build a new, custom-made, smaller shed (12'X1-6') on the side of our
propertyclosestto 312 Aldrich with a S-footset backfrom our neighbors aL312 Aldrich. The

owners of 312 Aldrich, Debora and John Mayer, know about this plan and are supportive (see

attached plans and statement from the Mayer family).

How the request complies with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance as provided in Article
2:

This work will involve replacing a dangerous, rotting, unsightly structure that sits in the middle of
our yard with a safe, attractive shed. The new shed wlll better match the character of our home

and neighborhood (color, materials, etc.). The placement of the new shed will allow for
uninterrupted, additional greenspace in our yard and for a smaller driveway, which is more in
line with the other single-family homes in our neighborhood. We believe these changes will
enhance the look of our property and the value of surrounding properties and thus, be very
welcomed. lf we were required to repair the existing shed/garage and/or were unable to move it
from its current space, we would have a larger-than-necessary, unsightly structure in the middle
of ouryard, reduced green spaceforourchildren to play, and would continueto have an

unnecessarily large driveway for a single-family home.

As described above, we believe these changes will be not be contrary to the public interest
(1,0.233.21,), the spirit of the ordinance will be observed (1,0.233.22), and substantialjustice will
be done (10.233.23). The values of surrounding properties will not be diminished (10.233.24)



and literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would result in an unnecessary

hardship (10.233.25).

Thank you for your consideration and for your time in reading our application.

Sincerely,

Trisha and Kevin Anderson

,4 r';)
'/*rrt (1t*"'-

I ncl uded:
o Letter of Support from Mayer Family (312 Aldrich)
o Pictures of current garage/shed in disrepair
o Plans showing current position of garage/shed and proposed location and dimensions of

new shed (to scale)



Sohn andDebaraMayer
6Stabat Street
P ortsrlraut*1, l4ll A38AL

Letter at supporttar your

,.,r,

ge and
towithinS'ot

John and Debora Mayer '



',,r,."," " t, : a. 
",' 

:,r. :::, :,',, :,
,,..:,/.::,, l::.,.t: :/::..:.1:,.11: : :.., : : :::: :

...r4,..4.4.t:r...t.. 1., | .,

-t:rr,,taa,rt r/,:r:..,,,: .'....tt:,r//l:,,/,,r, I Z//,

l,

,/:,,

,/:"
/./

././,,,

. rgl
6'lL'ij

* 4r*,
'{r.A

",4r/
'/t

. /,
"*,

u,? ,-

,?.,,

: t"! ..



",tt,,l
,, ,:t',t,,,
',,L1L:,.:)l)

,*. 
zit:t1:::::t:

t'/13

1?/.'
.7',',,

1 
"..

1t,
,.1.,
tl,t ..
/t.;.
.1,,|t



.

'17,.2'

,'r%,%1:72'z

'7,
Ir2r////.,,:,



7%
ii

I

' 
:,:/:'t

/.//-

,.,,,/.,.

W



;t,z:

ru%72

'ffi'- 
ru*l

W
W

,

F
%

r

I

W
7/t/7/./.
1.
%

, ,'/t'

%
V

t

,,,%
,



*;

,,:

'1i 
27,;"

':,/,,, 
'' 

%l;,',',
z/:ll: 7. :

lZr,, '.,.,,%2,

%,
%,

o ,tt ,
.:. I :

t"

"bt
,.//''
,i:/.42,4""/,.,,
,,;,ilr'.1\ .

7i/.4,, 
,

/l:,Ll'. .

,e
(.r".t ,

ru:t'. /
1u .1.

' , 
.11,.

%'.,'j,
'\,

't, '
,.t
,.

, .:.

1 
,.'

,'i.
' ,Llz

,,,/,

ffi,
W
Wru
WW,'
wW;;
W: "ffi"
ru

t.
,i
,,



' .
/, 

'. 
.)

///
/i/

/-
 
11

 :
 .

.:
il1

.//
2,

"1
 .

/Z

, 
'l

/:;
;l

:. 
,7

1;
l

".
v4

1

%
',r

u

7/
//Z



C
ur

re
nt

 L
ay

ou
t

A
ld

ric
h 

R
oa

d

S
id

ew
al

k
S

id
ew

al
k

U =
. o € o.

)

(,
A

)

N
)

o- -.
1-

,
c) = F o o) o-

J o -t o oJ
.

J =
')

?
N

J
(o

_

U

o-
4

o 
oe

-
+

r 
o)

O
 

tJ
,

=J ]n J o o- o 5 O
J o -

(, N
)

00 o-
*

-!
Y o'
h

J(
D v o o) o-

ts
(,

o= ;-
 o

v.
l o

-
x N

)
H i.) u]



P
ro

po
se

d 
La

yo
ut

A
ld

ric
h 

R
oa

d

S
id

ew
al

k
S

id
ew

al
k

l l l l l I j i i I I I I I l l l l l l I l l l i i l I I i

U =
. o { o)

U
J

N
)

o- -.
1-

.
o ) o o) o-

= J o -l o 9. J =
'

J gq I g

@ o
E

xt
en

d 
ya

rd
 -

1-
0'

(n lJ
1 o .+ o o.
) o T -l o 3 o .+ 2. o- o E o E o -l t+ J o

JN o(
o

o-
lJ

1
H

rD
5u o)

 oJ
oo

-l o 3 ) o €

o) -t o- oq -t o) V
,

1r
)

(, N
)

@ o-
*

Q
-;

J(
D

n o o) o-

ez N
69 r{ P
 

(/
l

ei
l o-































MAP 222 LOT 18

TAX MAP 223, LOT 30-1

TAX MAP 222, LOT 20

S
A

G
A

M
O

R
E

 A
V

E
.

TID
E

W
A

TC
H

 C
O

N
D

O
M

IN
IU

M
S

(P
R

IV
A

TE
 R

O
A

D
)

Plan Name:

Project:

Owner of Record:
JBE PROJECT NO.

DRAWING No.

C1
E-MAIL: JBE@JONESANDBEACH.COM

FAX: 603-772-0227
603-772-4746

PO Box 219
Stratham, NH 03885

85 Portsmouth Ave.

Date:

Drawing Name:
Checked:
Design:

Scale:
Draft:

Project No.: 

BYREV. REVISIONDATE

THIS PLAN SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT WRITTEN
PERMISSION FROM JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. (JBE).

ANY ALTERATIONS, AUTHORIZED OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
AT THE USER'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO JBE.

TOTAL LOT AREA
84,795  SQ. FT.

1.95 ACRES

PROJECT PARCEL
CITY OF PORTSMOUTH
TAX MAP 222, LOT 19

DJMISSUED FOR REVIEW1/6/220

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT2/4/221

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT2/10/222

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT3/21/223

18134.1

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
5-UNIT RESIDENTIAL SITE

635 SAGAMORE AVE., PORTSMOUTH, NH
635 SAGAMORE DEVELOPMENT, LLC

3612 LAFAYETTE RD., DEPT 4, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 BK 6332 PG 1158
SHEET 1 OF 3

JAC
JAC

DJM

18134-CONCEPT-8.dwg

12/07/2021
18134.1AS NOTED

Designed and Produced in NH

EXISTING CONDITIONS NOTES:

TAX MAP 222, LOT 14

TAX MAP 222, LOT 14-1

ABUTTERS ACROSS
SAGAMORE AVE.:

SCALE: 1"=1000'
LOCUS

EXHIBIT 1



MAP 222 LOT 18

TAX MAP 223, LOT 30-1

TAX MAP 222, LOT 20

S
A

G
A

M
O

R
E

 A
V

E
.

TID
E

W
A

TC
H

 C
O

N
D

O
M

IN
IU

M
S

(P
R

IV
A

TE
 R

O
A

D
)

Plan Name:

Project:

Owner of Record:
JBE PROJECT NO.

DRAWING No.

C2
E-MAIL: JBE@JONESANDBEACH.COM

FAX: 603-772-0227
 603-772-4746

PO Box 219
Stratham, NH 03885

85 Portsmouth Ave.

Date:

Drawing Name:
Checked:
Design:

Scale:
Draft:

Project No.: 

BYREV. REVISIONDATE

THIS PLAN SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT WRITTEN
PERMISSION FROM JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. (JBE).

ANY ALTERATIONS, AUTHORIZED OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
AT THE USER'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO JBE.

TOTAL LOT AREA
84,795  SQ. FT.

1.95 ACRES

PROJECT PARCEL
CITY OF PORTSMOUTH
TAX MAP 222, LOT 19

DJMISSUED FOR REVIEW1/6/220

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT2/4/221

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT2/10/222

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT3/21/223

18134.1

ZBA SITE PLAN
5-UNIT RESIDENTIAL SITE

635 SAGAMORE AVE., PORTSMOUTH, NH
635 SAGAMORE DEVELOPMENT, LLC

3612 LAFAYETTE RD., DEPT 4, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 BK 6332 PG 1158
SHEET 2 OF 3

JAC
JAC

DJM

18134-CONCEPT-8.dwg

12/07/2021
18134.1AS NOTED

Designed and Produced in NH

SITE NOTES:

TAX MAP 222, LOT 14

TAX MAP 222, LOT 14-1

ABUTTERS ACROSS
SAGAMORE AVE.:

SCALE: 1"=1000'
LOCUS



S
A

G
A

M
O

R
E

 A
V

E
.

TID
E

W
A

TC
H

 C
O

N
D

O
M

IN
IU

M
S

(P
R

IV
A

TE
 R

O
A

D
)

Designed and Produced in NH
Plan Name:

Project:

Owner of Record:
JBE PROJECT NO.

DRAWING No.

C3
E-MAIL: JBE@JONESANDBEACH.COM

FAX: 603-772-0227
 603-772-4746

PO Box 219
Stratham, NH 03885

85 Portsmouth Ave.

Date:

Drawing Name:
Checked:
Design:

Scale:
Draft:

Project No.: 

BYREV. REVISIONDATE

THIS PLAN SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT WRITTEN
PERMISSION FROM JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. (JBE).

ANY ALTERATIONS, AUTHORIZED OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
AT THE USER'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO JBE.

TOTAL LOT AREA
84,795  SQ. FT.

1.95 ACRES

PROJECT PARCEL
CITY OF PORTSMOUTH
TAX MAP 222, LOT 19

DJMISSUED FOR REVIEW1/6/220

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT2/4/221

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT2/10/222

DJMREVISED CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT3/21/223

18134.1

ZBA TOPOGRAPHIC SITE PLAN
5-UNIT RESIDENTIAL SITE

635 SAGAMORE AVE., PORTSMOUTH, NH
635 SAGAMORE DEVELOPMENT, LLC

3612 LAFAYETTE RD., DEPT 4, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 BK 6332 PG 1158
SHEET 3 OF 3

JAC
JAC

DJM

18134-CONCEPT-8.dwg

12/07/2021
18134.1AS NOTED



Exhibit 2







































EXHIBIT 3 

 

Aerial view of Property 



EXHIBIT 3 

 

Front View of Property (Sagamore Ave)  

 



EXHIBIT 3 

 

Front View of Property  



EXHIBIT 3 

 

Front View of Property  



EXHIBIT 3 

 

Side View of Property 



EXHIBIT 3 

 

View of Service Garage and Shed 



EXHIBIT 3 

 

Rear View of Property  



Location 635 SAGAMORE AVE Mblu 0222/ 0019/ 0000/ /

Acct# 35416 Owner 635 SAGAMORE
DEVELOPMENT LLC

PBN Assessment $682,800

Appraisal $682,800 PID 35416

Building Count 2

Owner 635 SAGAMORE DEVELOPMENT LLC
Co-Owner
Address 3612 LAFAYETTE RD DEPT 4 

PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801

Sale Price $387,133
Certificate
Book & Page 6332/1158

Sale Date 09/24/2021

Year Built: 1950
Living Area: 4,477

635 SAGAMORE AVE

Current Value

Appraisal

Valuation Year Improvements Land Total

2020 $407,600 $275,200 $682,800

Assessment

Valuation Year Improvements Land Total

2020 $407,600 $275,200 $682,800

Owner of Record

Ownership History

Ownership History

Owner Sale Price Certificate Book & Page Sale Date

635 SAGAMORE DEVELOPMENT LLC $387,133 6332/1158 09/24/2021

HINES FAMILY REVO TRUST $0 4885/1538 02/11/2008

Building Information

Building 1 : Section 1

Exhibit 4



Replacement Cost: $513,721
Building Percent Good: 54
Replacement Cost 
Less Depreciation: $277,400

Building Attributes

Field Description

Style: Retail/Apartment

Model Commercial

Grade C

Stories: 2

Occupancy 3.00

Residential Units  

Exterior Wall 1 Vinyl Siding

Exterior Wall 2 Pre-Fab Wood

Roof Structure Gable/Hip

Roof Cover Asph/F Gls/Cmp

Interior Wall 1 Drywall/Sheet

Interior Wall 2  

Interior Floor 1 Inlaid Sht Gds

Interior Floor 2 Carpet

Heating Fuel Oil

Heating Type Hot Water

AC Type Unit/AC

Bldg Use PRI COMM

Total Rooms  

Total Bedrms  

Total Baths  

Kitchen Grd  

Heat/AC NONE

Frame Type WOOD FRAME

Baths/Plumbing AVERAGE

Ceiling/Wall CEIL & WALLS

Rooms/Prtns AVERAGE

Wall Height 10.00

% Comn Wall  

1st Floor Use:  

Class  

Legend

Building Photo

Building Photo
(http://images.vgsi.com/photos2/PortsmouthNHPhotos///0033/DSC01732_3

Building Layout

(ParcelSketch.ashx?pid=35416&bid=35416)

Building Sub-Areas (sq ft)

Code Description
Gross 
Area

Living 
Area

BAS First Floor 1,676 1,676

FUS Upper Story, Finished 1,676 1,676

TQS Three Quarter Story 776 582

SFB Base, Semi-Finished 776 543

CAN Canopy 138 0

FEP Porch, Enclosed 63 0

SLB Slab 2,668 0

UAT Attic 2,452 0

UST Utility, Storage, Unfinished 458 0

WDK Deck, Wood 140 0

  10,823 4,477

Year Built: 2000
Living Area: 1,650
Replacement Cost: $153,450

Building 2 : Section 1

http://images.vgsi.com/photos2/PortsmouthNHPhotos///0033/DSC01732_33185.JPG
http://gis.vgsi.com/PortsmouthNH/ParcelSketch.ashx?pid=35416&bid=35416


Building Percent Good: 84
Replacement Cost 
Less Depreciation: $128,900

Building Attributes : Bldg 2 of 2

Field Description

Style: Service Shop

Model Commercial

Grade C

Stories: 1

Occupancy 1.00

Residential Units  

Exterior Wall 1 Vinyl Siding

Exterior Wall 2  

Roof Structure Gable/Hip

Roof Cover Asph/F Gls/Cmp

Interior Wall 1 Drywall/Sheet

Interior Wall 2  

Interior Floor 1 Concr-Finished

Interior Floor 2 Carpet

Heating Fuel Oil

Heating Type Hot Water

AC Type None

Bldg Use AUTO S S&S

Total Rooms  

Total Bedrms  

Total Baths  

Kitchen Grd  

Heat/AC NONE

Frame Type WOOD FRAME

Baths/Plumbing AVERAGE

Ceiling/Wall CEIL & WALLS

Rooms/Prtns AVERAGE

Wall Height 12.00

% Comn Wall  

1st Floor Use:  

Class  

Legend

Building Photo

Building Photo
(http://images.vgsi.com/photos2/PortsmouthNHPhotos///0033/DSC01731_3

Building Layout

(ParcelSketch.ashx?pid=35416&bid=40140)

Building Sub-Areas (sq ft)

Code Description
Gross 
Area

Living 
Area

BAS First Floor 1,500 1,500

FAT Attic 600 150

SLB Slab 900 0

  3,000 1,650

Legend

Extra Features

Extra Features

http://images.vgsi.com/photos2/PortsmouthNHPhotos///0033/DSC01731_33186.JPG
http://gis.vgsi.com/PortsmouthNH/ParcelSketch.ashx?pid=35416&bid=40140


Land Use

Use Code 0310
Description PRI COMM  
Zone SRA
Neighborhood 306
Alt Land Appr No
Category

Land Line Valuation

Size (Acres) 1.93
Frontage
Depth
Assessed Value $275,200
Appraised Value $275,200

Legend

(c) 2022 Vision Government Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

 
No Data for Extra Features  

 

Land

Outbuildings

Outbuildings

Code Description Sub Code Sub Description Size Value Bldg #

PAV1 PAVING-ASPHALT   1344.00 S.F. $1,200 1

SHD1 SHED FRAME   96.00 S.F. $100 1

Valuation History

Appraisal

Valuation Year Improvements Land Total

2020 $418,400 $275,200 $693,600

2019 $418,400 $275,200 $693,600

2018 $391,100 $254,800 $645,900

Assessment

Valuation Year Improvements Land Total

2020 $418,400 $275,200 $693,600

2019 $418,400 $275,200 $693,600

2018 $391,100 $254,800 $645,900



City of Portsmouth, NH March 28, 2022

635 Sagamo re Avenue

Property Information
Property
ID

0222-0019-0000

Location 635 SAGAMORE AVE
Owner 635 SAGAMORE DEVELOPMENT

LLC

MAP FOR REFERENCE ONLY
NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT

City of Portsmouth, NH makes no claims and no
warranties, expressed or implied, concerning the
validity or accuracy of the GIS data presented on this
map.

Geometry updated 3/9/2022
Data updated 3/9/2022

Print map scale is approximate. Critical
layout or measurement activities should not
be done using this resource.

1" = 200 ft

Exhibit 5



Map Theme Legends

Zoning

City of Portsmouth



Variance Application Summary 
Tyler Forthofer & Savannah Fodero 

629 Broad Street, Portsmouth, NH  03801 
(860) 918-4439 | tyler.forthofer@gmail.com 
(603) 812-5496 | fodero1014@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 
 
To permit the following: 
 

1. Modification of existing flat gravel roof over the current garage. The modification will 
replace the flat gravel roof with a pitched roof and will change the overall height of the 
garage from 8 feet to 12 feet. The garage is an existing non-conforming structure within 
the setback. This modification will not expand/modify the floor space or footprint of the 
existing garage and is only related to roofing work. 

 
Background: 
 
 The house located at 629 Broad Street and is situated on the corner of Jones Avenue 
and Broad Street. The garage and driveway outlet on to Jones Avenue. The current roof on the 
garage is a flat gravel roof which leaks with any precipitation. The leaking allows for standing 
water inside the garage preventing any type of storage inside the garage. The leaking has 
continued for a significant time and has started to cause damage to the framing of the garage 
itself. The proposed roof is a pitched, asphalt roof that will create water runoff in three directions 
and will control the runoff with gutter systems. Solving the leaking problem will allow for further 
improvements inside the garage such as adding fireproofing, improving lighting, and creating a 
safer egress route into the garage. Lastly, this will improve the overall look, appearance and 
value of the home by making the garage look and feel like the other homes in the neighborhood. 
 
 
Criteria for the Variance: 
 

1. The variance is not contrary to the public interest in that many properties in this 
neighborhood are non-conforming to Building Area and Setbacks. This is also a 
modification to an existing non-conforming structure in order to improve the structural 
integrity. 

 
2. The Variance is consistent with the spirit of the ordinance in that it will allow this 

modification, which will allow for further improvements in areas related fireproofing, 
egress and appearance of the home. 
 

3. Substantial justice will be done as this work will allow the owner to improve the property 
without affecting adjacent properties. 
 

4. This variance will not diminish the value of surrounding properties. 
 

5. Literal enforcement of the provisions of this ordinance would result in unnecessary 
hardship in that the current roof leaks with any precipitation which prevents further 
improvements to electrical work inside the garage, fireproofing improvements, and 
causes water seepage into the basement of the home. 
 

 

mailto:tyler.forthofer@gmail.com


Variance Application Summary 
Tyler Forthofer & Savannah Fodero 

629 Broad Street, Portsmouth, NH  03801 
(860) 918-4439 | tyler.forthofer@gmail.com 
(603) 812-5496 | fodero1014@gmail.com 

 

 

Survey: 

 

 

Corner of garage is 2’ from edge of 

property at its closest. 13’ of the 

garage (50%) falls within the 

setback on a diagonal 

mailto:tyler.forthofer@gmail.com


Variance Application Summary 
Tyler Forthofer & Savannah Fodero 

629 Broad Street, Portsmouth, NH  03801 
(860) 918-4439 | tyler.forthofer@gmail.com 
(603) 812-5496 | fodero1014@gmail.com 

 

 

Existing vs. Proposed (Looking from Jones Ave): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8’ Height 

12’ Height 

mailto:tyler.forthofer@gmail.com


Variance Application Summary 
Tyler Forthofer & Savannah Fodero 

629 Broad Street, Portsmouth, NH  03801 
(860) 918-4439 | tyler.forthofer@gmail.com 
(603) 812-5496 | fodero1014@gmail.com 

 

 

Existing vs. Proposed (From backyard): 

 

 

mailto:tyler.forthofer@gmail.com


Civil/Structural Engineering 
ROSS ENGINEERING, LLC

& Surveying
Portsmouth, NH  03801

(603) 433-7560

909 Islington St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGAMORE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERDUN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARNE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYLER J. FORTHOFER & SAVANNAH M. FODERO TAX MAP 221, LOT 13 RCRD 6278-1369 6,586 SF, 0.15 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DEAN C. RAIZES TAX MAP 221, LOT 53 RCRD 6057-0936

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TYLER B. & MEREDITH P. JACKSON TAX MAP 221, LOT 14 RCRD 5924-0508

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F ADAM & BETH E. CROWELL TAX MAP 222, LOT 30 RCRD 3706-0313

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 70°07'55" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
116.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 12°05'43" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 58°10'42" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 13°19'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' CORNER REAR LOT LINE SEE NOTE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT WALKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT TO BE SET MONUMENT FOUND UTILITY POLE 6' STOCKADE FENCE VERTICAL GRANITE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOCUS PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UREFERENCE PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1)  "PLAN OF LAND FOR HENRY F. DEWITT ET AL BROAD STREET & JONES AVENUE COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE" BY AMBIT SURVEY.  DATED SEPTEMBER 18, 1991.  RCRD B-21258 2) "PLAN OF LOT 603 BROAD STREET PORTSMOUTH, N.H." BY JOHN W. DURGIN. DATED MAY 1958. 3) "SANBORN FIRE INSURANCE MAP FROM PORTSMOUTH, ROCKINGHAM COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE" BY SANBORN MAP COMPANY. DATED 1920, REPUBLISHED 1956. 4) "PLOT PLAN OF LOT NO. 62 ON BROAD ST PORTSMOUTH, N.H." BY JOHN W. DURGIN. DATED APRIL 1951. 5) "LAND OF J. RICHARD MCCORMACK CORN. JONES & MARNE AVES. PORTSMOUTH, N.H." BY JOHN W. DURGIN. DATED JUNE 1940. 6) "PLAN OF LAND NO 305 SAGAMORE AVE PORTSMOUTH, N.H." BY JOHN W. DURGIN. DATED APRIL 1940. 7) "PLAN OF LOTS OF LAND EXTENDING FROM SOUTH ROAD TO JONES AVENUE PORTSMOUTH, N.H." BY A.C. HOYT SURVEYOR. DATED AUGUST 1, 1893. RCRD 00287

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1) OWNER OF RECORD:  TYLER J. FORTHOFER & SAVANNAH M. FODERO TAX MAP 221, LOT 13 629 BROAD ST PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 RCRD: 6278-1369 AREA:  6,586 SF, 0.15 ACRES 2) BASIS OF BEARING HELD FROM PLAN REFERENCE #1. 3) PARCEL IS IN GENERAL RESIDENCE A (GRA) ZONE: MINIMUM LOT AREA.........................................7,500 SF MIN. LOT AREA PER DWELLING UNIT......7,500 SF MINIMUM FRONTAGE.........................................100 FT MINIMUM DEPTH..................................................70 FT SETBACKS: FRONT..........................................................15 FT SIDE..............................................................10 FT REAR............................................................20 FT MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: SLOPED ROOF.........................................35 FT FLAT ROOF...............................................30 FT MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE................25% MINIMUM OPEN SPACE....................................30% 4) AS PER PORTSMOUTH ZONING ORDINANCE, IF A REAR LOT LINE IS LESS THAN 10 FT IN LENGTH OR IF THE LOT FORMS A POINT AT THE REAR, THE REAR LOT LINE SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE A LINE 10 FT IN LENGTH WITHIN THE LOT. THE REAR SETBACK IS CALCULATED FROM THIS 10 FT LOT LINE. 5) THE PARCEL IS NOT WITHIN A FEMA FLOOD ZONE, AS THE PARCEL IS NOT WITHIN A FEMA FLOOD ZONE, AS PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP #33015C0270F, PANEL 270 OF 681, DATED JANUARY 29, 2021. VERTICAL DATUM IS NAVD 1988.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-163

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 221, LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/18/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
629 BROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.ROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYLER FORTHOFER 629 BROAD ST PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY SURVEY & EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.D.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 2










	Staff Memo
	0 Simms (11 Fletcher)
	686 Maplewood
	1 Congress Appeal
	1 Congress Variance
	32 Monteith 
	212 Woodbury
	240 Hillside
	138 Gates 
	328 Aldrich
	635 Sagamore
	629 Broad 

	4-19-2022 BOA AG_rev
	March 15, 2022 Minutes
	11 Fletcher St Request
	686 Maplewood Avenue
	Postpone 1 Congress
	1 Congress Street 
	1 Congress St. Appeal
	1MS HDCws1 01.14.2022.pdf
	A00
	Sheets
	A0.0 - COVER


	A01
	Sheets
	A0.1 - CONTEXT MAP


	A02
	Sheets
	A0.2 - EXISTING BUILDING PHOTOS


	A03
	Sheets
	A0.3 - CONTEXT PHOTOS


	A04
	Sheets
	A0.4 - HISTORIC CONTEXT


	A05
	Sheets
	A0.5 - HISTORIC CONTEXT


	A10
	Sheets
	A1.0 - SITE PLAN - EXISTING


	A11
	Sheets
	A1.1 - SITE PLAN - PROPOSED


	A21
	Sheets
	A2.1 - MASSING STREET SECTIONS


	A22
	Sheets
	A2.2 - MASSING STREET SECTIONS



	1 Market Square Site Plan Set 1-26-22.pdf
	01 Cover
	02 SBS
	03 C1
	04 C2
	05 C3

	A00
	Sheets
	A.00 - BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN


	A01
	Sheets
	A.01 - FIRST FLOOR PLAN


	A02
	Sheets
	A.02 - SECOND FLOOR PLAN


	A03
	Sheets
	A.03 - THIRD FLOOR PLAN


	A04
	Sheets
	A.04 - FOURTH FLOOR PLAN


	A05
	Sheets
	A.05 - ROOF PLAN




	32 Monteith Street
	212 Woodbury Avenue
	Exibit 1
	Exibit 2
	Exibit 3
	Exibit 4
	Exibit 5
	Exibit 6

	240 Hillside Drive
	Plan

	138 Gates Street
	Plans

	328 Aldrich Road
	Elevations Site Plan

	635 Sagamore Avenue
	Exibit 1
	Exibit 2
	Exibit 3
	Exibit 4
	Exibit 5

	629 Broad Street
	Plans




